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FINANCIAL & OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

Year Ended December 31, 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS 1

Net new orders 4,967 4,898 4,014 2,795 2,461

New home deliveries 4,956 4,602 3,291 2,528 2,646

Homes in backlog at year‐end 1,711 1,700 1,404 681 414

Backlog sales value at year‐end      $916,376 $800,494 $515,469 $232,583 $137,423

Average Active Selling Communities      182 166 155 152 130

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Homebuilding revenues 
1 $2,411,178 $1,914,609 $1,236,958 $882,993 $912,418

Income (loss) before income taxes $349,964 $257,698 $78,187 ($16,473) ($12,281)

Net income (loss) $215,865 $188,715 $531,421 ($16,417) ($11,724)

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $0.54 $0.47 $1.44 ($0.05) ($0.05)

Gross margin % from homes sales 
1 26.1% 24.6% 20.5% 18.4% 22.2%

SG&A % from home sales 
1

11.7% 12.1% 14.5% 17.5% 16.6%

FINANCIAL POSITION

Homebuilding cash (including restricted cash) $218,650 $376,949 $366,808 $438,157 $748,754

Inventories owned 
1 $3,255,204 $2,536,102 $1,971,418 $1,477,239 $1,181,697

Total assets $4,174,420 $3,662,105 $3,113,074 $2,200,383 $2,133,123

Total debt 
2 $2,225,495 $1,940,462 $1,634,177 $1,371,756 $1,350,598

Stockholders’ equity $1,676,688 $1,468,960 $1,255,816 $623,754 $621,862

Stockholders’ equity per share
 3

$4.62 $4.02 $3.48 $1.82 $1.83

1 Excludes unconsolidated joint ventures.
2 Includes indebtedness of the Company’s financial services subsidiary.
3 Shares outstanding includes the common equivalent shares issuable upon conversion of the preferred shares outstanding.
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15360 Barranca Parkway 
Irvine, California 92618  

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 

 

The 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Standard Pacific Corp. will be held at 15360 Barranca Parkway, 
Irvine, CA 92618, on Wednesday, June 3, 2015 at 10:30 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:  

(1) To elect seven directors to hold office until the 2016 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and until their 
successors are duly elected and qualified;  

(2) Ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public 
accounting firm for 2015; 

(3) Ratification of the Company's Amended and Restated Stockholder Rights Agreement; 
(4) Ratification of the Amended Forum Selection Provision in the Company's Amended and Restated 

Bylaws; and 
(5) To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and any postponement 

or adjournment thereof.  

These items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this notice. The Board 
of Directors recommends stockholders vote FOR proposals (1), (2), (3) and (4).  

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on April 8, 2015 as the record date for the 
determination of stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the meeting and any postponements or 
adjournments of the meeting.  The presence, either in person or by proxy, of persons entitled to vote a majority of 
the voting power of our capital stock that is entitled to vote at the meeting is necessary to constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business at the meeting.  To ensure that your vote is recorded, please provide your voting 
instructions as soon as possible, even if you plan to attend the meeting in person.  We encourage you to vote via 
the internet or by telephone.  If you requested a paper copy of our proxy materials, you also have the option of 
voting by completing, signing, dating and returning the proxy card that accompanied the printed materials.  
Submitting your vote via the internet or by telephone or proxy card will not affect your right to vote in person if you 
decide to attend the annual meeting. 

We are pleased to take advantage of the rules that allow companies to furnish their proxy materials via the 
internet.  As a result, we are mailing to our stockholders a notice of internet availability of proxy materials instead of 
a paper copy of our proxy statement and our annual report to stockholders.  The notice of internet availability of 
proxy materials contains instructions on how to access those documents via the internet.  The notice of internet 
availability of proxy materials also contains instructions on how to request a paper copy of our proxy materials, 
including our proxy statement, our annual report to stockholders and a form of proxy card or voting instruction card, 
as applicable.   

 

 By Order of the Board of Directors
  
 JOHN P. BABEL
 Secretary

Irvine, California  
April 24, 2015   



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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PROXY STATEMENT 

 
STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. 

15360 Barranca Parkway 
Irvine, California 92618 

 
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS 

 
TO BE HELD ON JUNE 3, 2015 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

This proxy statement contains information related to our annual meeting of stockholders to be held 
Wednesday, June 3, 2015, beginning at 10:30 a.m., local time, at our headquarters, located at 15360 Barranca 
Parkway, Irvine, CA 92618 (the "Annual Meeting").  Your proxy for the meeting is being solicited by the 
Standard Pacific Corp. Board of Directors.  This proxy statement will be available on the internet, and the notice 
of internet availability of proxy materials is first being mailed to stockholders beginning on or about April 24, 2015.  

The entire cost of this solicitation of proxies will be borne by the Company, including expenses in connection 
with preparing, assembling and mailing the notice of internet availability of proxy materials. The Company may 
reimburse brokers or persons holding stock in their names or in the names of their nominees for their expenses in 
sending proxy materials to beneficial owners who request paper copies. Certain officers, directors and regular 
employees of the Company, who will receive no extra compensation for their services, may solicit proxies by mail, 
telephone, facsimile, e-mail or personally.  

In accordance with the rules and regulations adopted by the SEC, we have elected to provide access to our 
proxy materials to our stockholders via the internet.  Accordingly, a notice of internet availability of proxy materials 
has been mailed to our stockholders. Stockholders have the ability to access the proxy materials at 
www.proxyvote.com, or request that a printed set of the proxy materials be sent to them, by following the 
instructions set forth on the notice of internet availability of proxy materials mailed to them.  Some banks, brokers 
and other nominee record holders may be participating in the practice of "householding" proxy materials.  This 
means that only one copy of our proxy materials or notice of internet availability of proxy materials, as applicable, 
may have been sent to multiple stockholders in the same house.  We will promptly deliver a separate notice of 
internet availability of proxy materials and, if requested, a separate proxy statement and annual report, to each 
stockholder that makes a request using the procedure set forth on the notice of internet availability of proxy 
materials. 

RECORD DATE AND VOTING 

On April 8, 2015 (the "Record Date"), the Company had outstanding a total of 275,116,482 shares of 
Company common stock (the "Common Stock") and 267,829 shares of Series B Junior Participating Convertible 
Preferred Stock (the "Series B Preferred Stock" and, collectively with the Common Stock, the "Shares").  Holders 
of the Shares are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting.  As of the Record Date, the holders 
of Series B Preferred Stock were entitled to vote on all matters upon which the holders of Common Stock are 
entitled to vote, with holders of the Common Stock (excluding the holder of the Series B Preferred Stock) entitled to 
51% of the total voting power of the Shares and the holder of the Series B Preferred Stock entitled to 49% of the 
total voting power of the Shares (the combined voting power of the Common Stock and Series B Preferred Stock 
held by the holder of the Series B Preferred Stock equals 49%).  

The presence, either in person or by proxy, of persons entitled to vote a majority of the voting power of the 
Shares is necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting. 
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The persons named in the accompanying proxy card will vote Shares represented by all valid proxies in 
accordance with the instructions contained thereon.  In the absence of instructions, Shares represented by properly 
completed proxies will be voted:  

 FOR the election of the directors of the Company designated herein as nominees (see "Proposal No. 1:  
Election of Directors");  

 FOR ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered 
public accounting firm for 2015 (see "Proposal No. 2: Ratification of Auditor"); 

 FOR ratification of the Company’s Amended and Restated Stockholder Rights Agreement (see 
"Proposal No. 3: Ratification of Amended and Restated Stockholder Rights Agreement"); and 

 FOR ratification of the Amended Forum Selection Provision in the Company's Amended and Restated 
Bylaws (see "Proposal No. 4: Ratification of the Amended Forum Selection Provision in the 
Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws"). 

Any stockholder may revoke his or her proxy at any time prior to its use by writing to the Secretary of the 
Company, by voting again via mail, telephone or the internet, or by attending the Annual Meeting and casting his or 
her vote in person.  A stockholder’s last timely vote will be the vote that is counted.  

If your shares are held in a brokerage account or by another nominee, you are considered the "beneficial 
owner" of shares held in "street name", and the notice of internet availability of proxy materials is being forwarded 
to you by your broker or nominee (the "record holder") along with a voting instruction card.  As the beneficial 
owner, you have the right to direct your record holder regarding how to vote your shares, and the record holder is 
required to vote your shares in accordance with your instructions.  Rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the 
"NYSE") determine whether proposals presented at stockholder meetings are "routine" or "non-routine." If a 
proposal is routine, a broker or other entity holding shares for a beneficial owner in street name may vote on the 
proposal absent voting instructions from the beneficial owner.  If a proposal is non-routine, the broker or other entity 
may vote on the proposal only if the beneficial owner has provided voting instructions.  A "broker non-vote" occurs 
when the broker or other entity is unable to vote on a proposal because the proposal is non-routine and the beneficial 
owner does not provide instructions.   

Votes cast by proxy or in person at the Annual Meeting will be counted by the persons appointed by the 
Company to act as election inspectors for the meeting.  The election inspectors will treat abstentions and broker non-
votes as Shares that are present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining the presence of a quorum.  For 
purposes of determining the outcome of any matter as to which a broker or nominee has physically indicated on the 
proxy or indicated electronically that it does not have discretionary authority to vote, those Shares will be treated as 
not present and not entitled to vote with respect to that matter (even though those Shares are considered entitled to 
vote for quorum purposes and may be entitled to vote on other matters).  Under such circumstances, the broker non-
vote will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the proposals to be voted on at the 2015 Annual Meeting.  

Stockholders may provide voting instructions by telephone by calling toll free 1-800-690-6903 from the U.S. 
or Canada, or via the internet at www.proxyvote.com at any time before 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on June 2, 2015. 
Telephone and internet voting access is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week until 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on 
June 2, 2015.  Please have your notice and proxy control number in hand when you telephone or visit the website. 
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PROPOSAL NO. 1    ELECTION OF DIRECTORS 

Our Board of Directors consists of a single class of seven members that are elected annually.  The Board of 
Directors has nominated each of our current seven directors to stand for election at the meeting.  If elected, each 
nominee will serve until the 2016 annual meeting of stockholders or until the election and qualification of his 
respective successor.   

Pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders Agreement (the "Stockholders Agreement") between the Company 
and MP CA Homes, LLC ("MatlinPatterson"), MatlinPatterson is entitled to designate up to one less than a 
majority of the total number of directors as nominees for board membership.  The Company is (subject to certain 
exceptions discussed on page 9 of this proxy statement) required to nominate each director designated by 
MatlinPatterson, if the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee determines that such nominees possess 
the characteristics required by the Company’s governance standards, and to have the Board of Directors recommend 
that stockholders vote for the election of each MatlinPatterson designated director.  MatlinPatterson has designated 
two persons, David J. Matlin and Peter Schoels, as director nominees. 

MatlinPatterson is also required to use its reasonable best efforts to elect to the Board of Directors the 
independent directors nominated by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.  However, pursuant to 
the Stockholders Agreement, MatlinPatterson is required to vote for or withhold authority for such nominees in the 
same proportion as all of the Company’s stockholders (other than MatlinPatterson and its affiliates) vote. 

The qualifications of each director nominee are described below under the heading "Nominees for Election." 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR THE 
ELECTION OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES NAMED IN THIS PROXY STATEMENT FOR DIRECTOR. 

Assuming the presence of a quorum, the seven directors that receive the most "For" votes will be elected at the 
Annual Meeting.  Broker non-votes will have no effect on the election of directors because such election is by a 
plurality vote.  Unless instructed otherwise in the proxy, the persons named on the enclosed proxy card will vote all 
proxies received by them for the election of the seven nominees identified below.  The Board of Directors does not 
contemplate that any of its proposed nominees will become unavailable for any reason, but if such unavailability 
should occur before the Annual Meeting, proxies will be voted for another nominee selected by the Board of 
Directors.  

Nominees for Election 

The Board of Directors has nominated Bruce A. Choate, Ronald R. Foell, Douglas C. Jacobs, David J. Matlin, 
John R. Peshkin, Peter Schoels and Scott D. Stowell for election as directors at the Annual Meeting.  Following is 
biographical information about each of the director nominees and reasons why the Nominating and Governance 
Committee and the Board determined that each of the director nominees should serve on the Board. 
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Bruce A. Choate  
Age; 67 
Year in which First Elected a Director: 2007 
Committees Served: Chairman of the Compensation Committee and member of the Audit Committee 
Principal Occupation and Other Public Company Directorships for Five Prior Years and Other Information: 
Since December 2002, Mr. Choate has served as Chief Executive Officer, President and Director of Watson Land 
Company, a privately-held real estate investment trust ("REIT") located in Carson, California.  Prior to December 
2002, Mr. Choate served since 1991 as Watson Land Company’s Chief Financial Officer.  Mr. Choate also serves on 
the Board of Directors of AvalonBay Communities, Inc., a publicly traded apartment REIT, and is a member of 
AvalonBay’s investment and finance committee and its nominating and corporate governance committee.  Mr. 
Choate has announced he is retiring from the AvalonBay Board of Directors following AvalonBay’s May 2015 
annual meeting.  Mr. Choate’s extensive background in the real estate industry, including his extensive real estate 
related accounting and financial expertise, led to our Board’s conclusion to nominate Mr. Choate for re-election as a 
member of our Board of Directors. 
 
Ronald R. Foell  
Age; 86 
Year in which First Elected a Director: 1967 
Committees Served: Chairman of the Board of Directors, and member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance 
and Executive Committees 
Principal Occupation and Other Public Company Directorships for Five Prior Years and Other Information: 
Chairman of the Board since December 2008.  Mr. Foell served as President of the Company from 1969 until 
October 1996.  Since October 1996 Mr. Foell has been a private investor.  Mr. Foell’s half century of homebuilding 
experience and his long history with the Company led to our Board’s conclusion to nominate Mr. Foell for re-
election as a member of our Board of Directors. 
 
Douglas C. Jacobs  
Age; 74 
Year in which First Elected a Director: 1998 
Committees Served: Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Compensation, Nominating and 
Corporate Governance and Executive Committees 
Principal Occupation and Other Public Company Directorships for Five Prior Years and Other Information: 
Executive Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Brooklyn NY Holdings LLC, a privately held 
investment advisory company established to manage the assets of a family and a family trust since January 1, 2006.  
Prior to that, Executive Vice President — Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of the Cleveland Browns 
from March 2001 to December 2005.  Prior to that Mr. Jacobs, among other things, served as a Partner of the 
accounting firm of Arthur Andersen LLP.  Mr. Jacobs is also a Director of Stoneridge, Inc., a designer and 
manufacturer of electronic systems for motor vehicles, and a member of its compensation committee and Chairman 
of its audit committee.  Mr. Jacobs’ extensive background in accounting and finance, which qualifies him as our 
"audit committee financial expert" within the meaning of applicable SEC regulations, led to our Board’s conclusion 
to nominate Mr. Jacobs for re-election as a member of our Board of Directors. 
 
David J. Matlin  
Age; 53 
Year in which First Elected a Director: 2008 
Principal Occupation and Other Public Company Directorships for Five Prior Years and Other Information: 
Chief Executive Officer of MatlinPatterson Global Advisers LLC, a private equity firm since 2002.  Prior to July 
2002, Mr. Matlin was a Managing Director at Credit Suisse First Boston (CSFB), and head of their Distressed 
Securities Group since its formation in 1994.  Prior to joining CSFB, Mr. Matlin was Managing Director of 
distressed securities and a founding partner of Merrion Group, L.P., a successor to Scully Brothers & Foss L.P. 
(1988-1994).  Mr. Matlin also serves as a member of the Board of Directors of Flagstar Bank, N.A. and is a member 
of their compensation committee.  Mr. Matlin also serves as an Advisory Board member of Wharton Private Equity 
Partners (WPEP).  Mr. Matlin serves as a member of our Board pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders Agreement 
between the Company and its largest stockholder, MatlinPatterson.  In addition, the Board believes that Mr. Matlin’s 
extensive financial expertise makes it appropriate to nominate him for re-election as a member of our Board of 
Directors. 
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John R. Peshkin  
Age; 54 
Year in which First Elected a Director: 2012 
Committees Served: Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and member of the Audit 
and Compensation Committees 
Principal Occupation and Other Public Company Directorships for Five Prior Years and Other Information: 
Managing principal and founder of Vanguard Land, LLC, a private real estate investment group focused on the 
acquisition and development of high-quality residential properties since September 2008.  Prior to founding 
Vanguard Land, Mr. Peshkin was Chief Executive Officer of Starwood Land Ventures, LLC from May 2007 to 
August 2008. Mr. Peshkin began his career at Taylor Woodrow, with progressive roles over nearly 25 years, 
including six years as Chief Executive Officer of North American operations, from 2000 to 2006.  Mr. Peshkin was 
also a member of the Board of Directors of WCI Communities, Inc. from September 2009 to February 2012.  Mr. 
Peshkin’s extensive background in land development and homebuilding, including his deep familiarity with the 
Florida market, led to our Board’s conclusion to nominate Mr. Peshkin for re-election as a member of our Board of 
Directors.  
 
Peter Schoels  
Age; 41 
Year in which First Elected a Director: 2009 
Principal Occupation and Other Public Company Directorships for Five Prior Years and Other Information: 
Managing Partner of MatlinPatterson Global Advisers LLC, a private equity firm, since July 2002.  Prior to July 
2002, Mr. Schoels was a member of Credit Suisse First Boston’s Distressed Group which he joined in 2001.  He has 
made investments in North America, Latin America, Europe and the CIS.  Before joining CSFB, Mr. Schoels was 
Director of Finance and Strategy for Tradeledger and KnowledgePlatform, both subsidiaries of Itim Group Plc 
(2000-2001).  Previously, he was Manager of Mergers and Acquisitions for Ispat International NV (now Mittal 
Steel), specializing in buying distressed steel assets in emerging markets (1998-2000).  Mr. Schoels also serves as a 
member of the Board of Directors of Flagstar Bank, N.A. and is a member of their compensation committee.  Mr. 
Schoels was identified by, and serves as a member of our Board pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders 
Agreement between the Company and its largest stockholder, MatlinPatterson.  In addition, the Board believes that 
Mr. Schoels’ extensive financial expertise makes it appropriate to nominate him for re-election as a member of our 
Board of Directors. 
 
Scott D. Stowell  
Age; 57 
Year in which First Elected a Director: 2012 
Committees Served: Chairman of the Executive Committee 
Principal Occupation and Other Public Company Directorships for Five Prior Years and Other Information: 
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since January 2012 and President since March 2011.  Mr. Stowell served as 
Chief Operating Officer from May 2007 to March 2011, President of our Southern California Region from 
September 2002 to May 2007 and President of our Orange County division from April 1996 to September 2002.  
Mr. Stowell joined the Company in 1986 as a project manager.  Mr. Stowell is also a Director of Pacific Mutual 
Holding Company, the ultimate parent company of Pacific Life Insurance Company.  Our Board nominated Mr. 
Stowell because he is our Chief Executive Officer and the Board believes it is appropriate for the Company’s CEO 
to serve as a member of our Board of Directors. 
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INFORMATION CONCERNING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Board Leadership Structure 

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that the Company’s Chairman of the Board and Chief 
Executive Officer will be selected in the manner that the Board of Directors deems is in the best interest of the 
Company at a given point in time.  The Board does not have a policy as to whether the roles of Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer should be separate or combined and, if the roles are to be separate, whether the Chairman should 
be selected from the non-employee directors or be an employee.  In December 2008, the Board decided to separate 
the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive.  At that time, Ronald R. Foell, an independent member of the Board of 
Directors who has served as a director of the Company since 1967, was appointed to serve as Chairman of the 
Board.  Mr. Foell has been re-appointed to serve as our Chairman for 2015. 

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that our Chairman will also serve as the Company’s Lead 
Independent Director if the Chairman is independent.  In cases where the Chairman is not independent, the 
Chairman of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will serve as our Lead Independent Director.  
Since Mr. Foell is an independent member of the Board he also serves as our Lead Independent Director.  As 
Chairman of the Board and Lead Independent Director, Mr. Foell’s responsibilities include: 

 establishing the agenda for each meeting of the Board in consultation with the Chief Executive 
Officer and coordinating and developing the agenda for each executive session of the independent 
directors; 

 convening and chairing each meeting of the Board and the regular executive sessions of the 
independent directors; 

 coordinating feedback to the Chief Executive Officer on behalf of the independent directors 
regarding business issues and management; 

 reviewing, and approving if appropriate, requests for approvals or waivers under the Company’s 
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics with regard to proposed chief executive officer and director 
conduct; and 

 acting as the designated spokesperson for the Board when it is appropriate for the Board to comment 
publicly on a matter.  

In addition to Mr. Foell, the chairman of each of the standing committees of our Board provides leadership to 
the Board within the area for which his committee is responsible. The following is a description of each of the 
standing committees of our Board of Directors. 

Committees of the Board of Directors 

During 2014, our Board of Directors had standing Audit, Compensation, Nominating and Corporate 
Governance, and Executive Committees. The current membership of each committee is as follows: 

 
 
Name Audit Compensation

Nominating and 
Corporate 

Governance 

 

Executive
Bruce A. Choate     

Ronald Foell      

Douglas C. Jacobs      

John R. Peshkin      

Scott D. Stowell      
  

 Chairman    Member    Chairman of the Board 
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Audit Committee:  The Audit Committee, which held five meetings during 2014, represents the Board in 
discharging its responsibilities relating to the accounting, reporting, and financial practices of the Company and its 
subsidiaries and is also responsible for providing oversight to the Company’s risk management function.  Under the 
Audit Committee’s charter, the committee is required to meet at least four times per year or more frequently as 
circumstances dictate. The Audit Committee has general responsibility for:  

 overseeing the integrity of the Company’s accounting, auditing and financial reporting processes, the 
adequacy of the Company’s internal controls and the fullness and accuracy of the Company’s financial 
statements;  

 reviewing with management and the Company’s independent auditor the Company’s annual financial 
statements and Annual Report on Form 10-K and quarterly financial statements and Quarterly Reports 
on Form 10-Q prior to filing with the SEC;  

 appointing the Company’s independent auditor, reviewing its independence, effectiveness and 
significant relationships with the Company (if any), and approving the hiring by the Company of 
current and former employees of the independent auditor (if any);  

 pre-approving all audit engagement fees and terms and all non-audit engagements with the Company’s 
independent auditor;  

 approving major changes to the Company’s internal auditing and accounting principles and practices;  
 overseeing the Company’s guidelines and policies with respect to risk assessment and risk 

management;  

 establishing, reviewing and updating a code of ethical conduct and a whistleblower complaint 
procedure;  

 reviewing legal compliance matters and the adequacy of the Company’s disclosure controls and 
procedures;  

 discussing the general types of information to be disclosed and presentation of the Company’s earnings 
press releases and related presentations;  

 reviewing annually the performance of the Committee and the contents of the Audit Committee 
charter; and  

 performing any other actions that the Board of Directors deems appropriate.  

The Audit Committee has been established in accordance with applicable SEC rules and regulations, and all 
the members of the Audit Committee are independent directors as independence for audit committee members is 
defined under the NYSE listing standards.  In addition, the Board of Directors has determined that Douglas C. 
Jacobs, an independent director, qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert" within the meaning of applicable 
SEC rules and regulations.  Mr. Jacobs’ extensive background in accounting and finance, as described more 
particularly under the heading "Proposal No. 1 Election of Directors–Nominees for Election", qualifies him as our 
audit committee financial expert. 

Compensation Committee:  The Compensation Committee, which held nine meetings during 2014, 
represents the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to the oversight of compensation paid to Company 
employees, directors and executives.  All of the members of the Compensation Committee are independent directors 
as defined under the NYSE listing standards, Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code and SEC Rule 16b-3. 

Under the Compensation Committee’s charter, the committee is required to meet at least four times per year or 
more frequently as circumstances dictate. The Compensation Committee has general responsibility for:  

 establishing the Company’s compensation philosophy, objectives and policies;  
 reviewing, establishing and approving compensation programs and levels of compensation for the 

Company’s directors and executive officers, including equity-based compensation awards;  
 administration of stock incentive plans (including the selection of employees to receive awards and the 

determination of the amount and the terms and conditions of such awards);  
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 annually reviewing and appraising the performance of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and 
providing developmental feedback to the Chief Executive Officer and, when appropriate, to other 
executive officers of the Company;  

 making recommendations to the Board on management succession relating to the Chief Executive 
Officer and other executive officer positions; and   

 establishing, and reviewing compliance with, director and executive officer stock ownership 
guidelines.  

In determining executive compensation, the Compensation Committee may take into consideration the 
research and recommendations provided by compensation consultants and other advisors engaged directly by the 
committee, as well as recommendations made by the Company’s Chief Executive Officer. This process is described 
in greater detail in the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section of this proxy statement. The Compensation 
Committee generally does not delegate authority granted the committee by its charter. 

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee:  The Nominating and Corporate Governance 
Committee held one meeting during 2014.  All of the members of the committee are independent directors as 
defined under the NYSE listing standards. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s charter requires 
that the committee meet at least once per year or more frequently as circumstances dictate, and that it has general 
responsibility for:  

 recommending the slate of directors to be nominated by the Board for election by the stockholders at 
the annual meeting of stockholders and reviewing and recommending candidates to fill vacancies on 
the Board;  

 recommending to the Board the composition of board committees;  
 overseeing and reviewing the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines;  
 monitoring a process to assess the effectiveness of the Board; and 
 considering recommendations for directors submitted by stockholders as well as considering properly 

submitted stockholder proposals, including proposals that nominate candidates for membership on the 
Board. 

Executive Committee:  The Executive Committee, which did not hold any meetings during 2014, represents 
the Board of Directors in discharging all of its responsibilities between board meetings, and may generally exercise 
all of the powers of the Board of Directors, except those powers expressly reserved by applicable law to the Board 
of Directors or that must be made by independent directors, in the management and direction of the business and 
conduct of the affairs of the Company, subject to any specific directions or limitations dictated by the Board of 
Directors.  

Board of Directors Meetings and Attendance 

During 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors held four meetings in addition to the committee meetings 
discussed above. Each of the directors attended at least 75% of the total number of meetings of the Board of 
Directors and committees on which he then served.  In addition, the Company’s non-management directors held 
formal quarterly meetings without the presence of management (executive sessions), as well as a number of 
additional informal meetings without the presence of management, from time to time, as determined necessary by 
the Lead Independent Director. We do not have a policy requiring our Directors to attend our annual meeting.  The 
2014 annual meeting of stockholders was attended by Ronald R. Foell and Scott D. Stowell. 

Communications with the Board of Directors 

Stockholders and other interested parties may communicate with the Board of Directors, including the Lead 
Independent Director, by sending written communications to the attention of the Corporate Secretary at the 
Company’s principal executive offices. All such communications received by the Company are compiled by the 
Corporate Secretary and forwarded to the Lead Independent Director, respective committee chairman, or other 
directors as appropriate.  
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Corporate Governance Guidelines and Director Independence 

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide a framework for our corporate governance structure and 
culture and cover topics including, director independence, selection and composition of the Board of Directors and 
its committees, director compensation and performance of the Board of Directors. The Nominating and Corporate 
Governance Committee is responsible for, among other matters, overseeing and reviewing the guidelines and 
reporting and recommending to the Board of Directors any changes thereto.  

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that a majority of the members of the Board of Directors must 
meet the criteria for independence as required by the NYSE listing standards. As set forth in the Corporate 
Governance Guidelines, a director will be independent only if the Board of Directors determines, after consideration 
of all relevant facts and circumstances, that such director is a person who is free from any relationship that would 
interfere with the exercise of independent judgment as a member of the Board of Directors. In making that 
determination, the Board of Directors has adopted the categorical standards relating to director independence set 
forth in the NYSE listing standards. The Board of Directors has determined that each of its current members, except 
for Scott D. Stowell, meet the aforementioned independence standards.  Mr. Stowell does not meet the 
aforementioned independence standards because he serves as our Chief Executive Officer. 

Director Identification, Qualification and Nominating Procedures 

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee utilizes a variety of methods for identifying director 
nominees, including considering potential director candidates who come to the committee’s attention through 
current officers, directors, professional search firms, stockholders or other persons. The Committee seeks to include  
diverse candidates in the pool from which new Board nominees are chosen, and will expand search parameters to 
non-traditional environments (including government, academia and non-profit organizations) for new candidates.  In 
addition, pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders Agreement (described in more detail below under the heading 
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions; Transactions with Related Persons") between the Company and 
MatlinPatterson, the Company’s largest stockholder, MatlinPatterson is entitled to designate up to one less than a 
majority of the total number of directors as nominees for Board of Directors membership.  The Nominating and 
Corporate Governance Committee is required to nominate each such person designated by MatlinPatterson if the 
committee determines that such nominees possess the characteristics required by the Company’s governance 
standards, provided, that, the committee is not obligated to nominate any MatlinPatterson nominee if such nominee 
is an officer or director of: 

 any company that competes to any significant extent with the business of the Company or its 
subsidiaries in the geographic areas in which they operate;  

 another company that has a class of equity securities registered with the SEC and that is engaged in 
substantial homebuilding or land development activities within the United States; or  

 a company that does not have a class of equity securities registered with the SEC and that has annual 
revenues (in its most recently completed fiscal year) from homebuilding and land development 
activities within the United States of more than $200 million. 

Once a potential nominee has been identified, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee 
evaluates whether the nominee has the appropriate skills and characteristics required to become a director in light of 
the then current make-up of the Board of Directors. This assessment includes an evaluation of the nominee’s 
judgment and skills (depth of understanding of the Company’s industry, financial sophistication, leadership, 
objectivity,  and other factors deemed appropriate by the committee) and the diversity of the nominee’s background 
and experience (which includes gender, race, ethnicity, sexual orientation, gender identity, culture and geography), 
all in the context of the perceived needs of the Board of Directors at that point in time.  

In addition to the foregoing, the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that each member of 
the Board of Directors should have the following minimum characteristics:  

 the highest character and integrity;  
 an ability and desire to make independent and thoughtful analytical inquiries;  
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 meaningful experience at a strategy/policy setting level;  
 outstanding ability to work well with others;  
 sufficient time available to carry out the significant responsibilities of a member of the Board of 

Directors; and  
 freedom from any conflict of interest (other than Board members serving pursuant to an agreement 

between the Company and any stockholder or the employment by the Company in the case of an inside 
director) that would interfere with his or her independent judgment and proper performance of 
responsibilities as a member of the Board of Directors. 

If a stockholder believes that he or she has identified an appropriate candidate willing to serve on the 
Company’s Board of Directors, that stockholder may submit the recommendation for consideration to the 
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to the attention of the Corporate Secretary at the Company’s 
principal executive offices.  The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will review properly submitted 
stockholder recommendations in the same manner as it evaluates all other nominees.  

In addition, the Company’s bylaws provide that nominations for the election of directors may be made by any 
stockholder entitled to vote in the election of directors; provided, however, that a stockholder may nominate a 
person for election as a director at an annual meeting of the stockholders only if written notice of such stockholder’s 
intent to make such nomination has been given to the Company’s Corporate Secretary at the Company’s principal 
executive offices not later than 90 days prior to the anniversary date of the preceding year’s annual meeting, or, if 
the date of the annual meeting is more than 30 days before or 70 days after such anniversary date, the later of the 
90th day prior to such meeting or the seventh day following the first public announcement of the date of such 
meeting or, in the case of a special meeting, not later than the close of business on the later of the 60th day prior to 
such special meeting or the seventh day following first public announcement of the date of such special meeting. 
Each notice must set forth, among other things required by the Company’s bylaws: (i) the name and address of the 
stockholder who intends to make the nomination and of the person or persons to be nominated; (ii) a representation 
that the stockholder is a holder of record of stock of the Company entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to 
appear in person or by proxy at the meeting and nominate the person or persons specified in the notice; (iii) a 
description of all arrangements or understandings between the stockholder and each nominee and any other person 
or persons (naming such person(s)) pursuant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the 
stockholder; (iv) such other information regarding each nominee proposed by such stockholder as would be required 
to be included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the SEC; and (v) the consent of each nominee 
to serve as a director of the Company if so elected. 

Risk Oversight 

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s guidelines and policies with respect to risk 
assessment and risk management.  The Audit Committee includes a discussion with management of the potential 
risks and exposures the Company faces and the steps management is taking to identify and manage those risks on 
the agenda for at least two of its regularly scheduled meetings each year, and the committee and/or the full Board 
may also discuss risk issues with management at other times as they arise.  In addition, the full Board of Directors 
takes responsibility for overseeing some larger areas of operational risk, such as significant land purchases and 
financings. 

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of the Company’s 
employees, including its senior financial and executive officers, as well as the Company’s directors. The Company 
will disclose any material waivers of, or amendments to, any provision of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 
that applies to the Company’s directors and senior financial and executive officers on its website, 
www.standardpacifichomes.com or in a current report on Form 8-K, as required.   

In addition, the Company has adopted a whistleblower procedure pursuant to which employees and others 
have access to our Board of Directors and senior management to raise any concerns about unethical business 
practices and other Company related concerns confidentially.  



 

11 

Access to Corporate Governance Documentation and Other Information Available on Our Website 

The Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, and the charters for 
each of the Audit, Compensation, Nominating and Corporate Governance, and Executive Committees are accessible 
via the Company’s website at www.standardpacifichomes.com.  

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions; Transactions with Related Persons 

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and our Employment of Relatives Policy govern transactions 
between the Company and our directors, executive officers, and their immediate family members. The Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics provides that no director, executive officer, or any of their immediate family members 
may, directly or indirectly, sell, buy, lease, or otherwise provide or receive any goods, property or services from the 
Company without obtaining the pre-approval required by the code. Our Employment of Relatives Policy provides 
that the approval of our Lead Independent Director must be obtained prior to the Company or any subsidiary hiring, 
transferring or promoting a relative of a director or executive officer. These policies do not set forth any categorical 
standards that must be followed when determining whether to grant or deny approval. Rather, we rely on the good 
judgment and common sense of the required approver, the Lead Independent Director in the case of the other 
directors and the chief executive officer, and the chief executive officer in the case of the Company’s other officers, 
to determine whether the proposed transaction is consistent with the principles underlying our policies.  

While the Company does not have a general policy regarding transactions between the Company and 
beneficial owners of five percent or more of the Shares, the terms of the Stockholders Agreement between the 
Company and MatlinPatterson (owner of 49% of the voting power of the Shares as of the Record Date) provides a 
framework pursuant to which the Company’s transactions with MatlinPatterson will be analyzed.  The Stockholders 
Agreement provides that transactions with MatlinPatterson or its affiliates (other than certain acquisitions of the 
Company’s capital stock that require the approval of the Company’s stockholders) are required to be pre-approved 
by a majority of the non-management, non-MatlinPatterson, independent members of the Board of Directors.   

To our knowledge, during 2014 there were no transactions between the Company and any of our directors, 
executive officers, five percent or greater beneficial owners of Shares, or any of the immediate family members of 
any of the foregoing persons that would be required to be reported in this proxy statement, except for those listed 
below. 

During 2014, the Company purchased finished homesites in two master planned communities developed by 
Crescent Resources, LLC.  Crescent Resources, LLC is a land management and real estate development Company in 
which an affiliate of MatlinPatterson has a significant indirect ownership interest.  The total purchase price for the 
acquisition of the homesites in 2014 was approximately $6.4 million, with homesites valued at approximately $7.9 
million remaining to be purchased by the Company in these two master planned communities in future periods. The 
purchase price for these transactions was established at arm’s length and was approved by the independent members 
of our Board of Directors who are not affiliated with MatlinPatterson.  MatlinPatterson was not involved in the 
negotiation of these transactions and we do not believe they derived any direct or indirect benefits from these 
transactions other than the indirect benefits afforded to them as a result of their ownership interests in the Company 
and in Crescent.  
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PROPOSAL NO. 2    RATIFICATION OF AUDITOR 

The Audit Committee has appointed Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public 
accounting firm for 2015.  

Background on Proposal 

Stockholder ratification of the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered 
public accounting firm for 2015 is not required. However, the Board and the Audit Committee are submitting the 
matter to stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice.  

THE BOARD AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE RECOMMEND THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE 
FOR RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP AS THE COMPANY’S 
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2015. 

Effects of Advisory Vote 

Assuming the presence of a quorum at our annual meeting of stockholders, under our bylaws, the affirmative 
vote of a majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the proposal is necessary for its 
approval.  As a result, abstentions will have the effect of votes against the proposal, whereas broker non-votes will 
have no effect on the outcome of the vote.  Unless instructed otherwise in the proxy, the persons named in the 
accompanying form of proxy will vote all proxies for the proposal.  Because the vote on this proposal is advisory in 
nature, it will not be binding on the Board.  However, if stockholders fail to ratify the appointment of Ernst & 
Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for 2015, the Audit Committee will 
consider the appointment of another independent registered public accounting firm. Even if the selection of Ernst & 
Young LLP is ratified, the Audit Committee may terminate the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our 
independent registered public accounting firm without the approval of stockholders whenever the Audit Committee 
deems such termination appropriate.  
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PROPOSAL NO. 3    RATIFICATION OF AMENDED AND RESTATED 
STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS AGREEMENT 

 At the Annual Meeting, Stockholders will be given the opportunity to vote on the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the stockholders of Standard Pacific Corp. hereby ratify the Board’s approval of the 
Company’s Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2011, by and 
between the Company and Computershare Inc., as rights agent, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to 
Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2014. 

Background on Proposal 

Effective December 20, 2011, we entered into an Amended and Restated Rights Agreement (the 
"Amended Rights Agreement") with Mellon Investor Services LLC, as rights agent.  The Amended Rights 
Agreement amended and restated in its entirety the Company’s rights agreement, which had been in effect since 
December 31, 2001 (the "Original Rights Agreement").  The Amended Rights Agreement was presented to and 
approved by the Company’s stockholders at the Company’s 2012 annual meeting of stockholders. Under the 
Amended Rights Agreement, the agreement and the rights issued thereunder were scheduled to expire on 
December 31, 2014.   

Prior to the Board adopting the Amended Rights Agreement, members of our management consulted with 
some of our stockholders, including MatlinPatterson, our largest stockholder, regarding the proposal, and such 
stockholders were supportive of the proposed amendment. 

Effective as of October 30, 2014, the Company and Computershare Inc. (as successor in interest to Mellon 
Investor Services LLC), as rights agent, entered into Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Rights Agreement 
(the "Amendment"), which amended the Amended Rights Agreement to: (1) extend the expiration date of the rights 
and the Amended Rights Agreement to December 31, 2017, (2) revise the definition of beneficial ownership to 
capture ownership through derivative contracts, and (3) make certain other clarifying and technical amendments.   

Stockholder rights plans are intended to provide directors of a target company time to effectively respond 
to takeover proposals through dilution of a potential acquirer’s interest in the target company if it embarks upon a 
hostile transaction.  Stockholder rights plans are therefore intended to encourage potential acquirers to negotiate 
with the board of directors of the target company. If the board of directors of the target company concludes that a 
fair price and terms are being offered to the target’s stockholders, the board may amend or terminate the rights plan 
or redeem the rights so that the acquisition does not trigger the dilutive effects of the plan.  A stockholder rights plan 
is not intended to prevent a takeover of the company. 

Specifically, the Board of Directors adopted the Amended Rights Agreement: 

 to protect our stockholders from coercive, unfair or inadequate tender offers or other abusive 
takeover tactics, such as "two tier" takeovers, "creeping" takeovers and "street sweeps;"  

 to reduce the chances of a potential acquirer rapidly accumulating a substantial stock position in 
the Company to preempt the Board of Directors’ consideration of takeover alternatives and to 
avoid payment of a fair control premium to all our stockholders; 

 to preserve the Company’s bargaining power and flexibility when deciding how to respond to and 
negotiate with a potential acquirer; and  

 to allow the Board of Directors to negotiate with a potential acquirer on the timetable most 
advantageous to the Company and our stockholders. 

The Board of Director’s decision to amend the Amended Rights Agreement was not made in response to, 
or in anticipation of, any acquisition proposal and is not intended to prevent a non-coercive takeover bid from being 
made for the Company or to keep directors or management in office. 
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While the Amendment does not require stockholder approval and was effective on October 30, 2014, the 
Board of Directors has elected to seek stockholder approval of the Amended Rights Agreement as a matter of good 
corporate governance.  If stockholder approval of the Amended Rights Agreement is not obtained, the Board 
of Directors will promptly terminate the Amended Rights Agreement. 

Summary of the Amended Rights Agreement 

The following is a summary of the material terms of the Amended Rights Agreement.  It is intended to 
provide a general description only and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of (1) the Amended 
Rights Agreement, which was attached as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on December 23, 2011, and (2) the Amendment, which was attached 
as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 31, 2014, each of 
which is incorporated by reference herein.   

1. Common Share Certificates Representing Rights 

Pursuant to the Original Rights Agreement, the Board of Directors authorized and declared a dividend of 
one Right for each share of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.01 per share (each, a "Common Share"), 
payable to the holders of record of Common Shares as of the close of business on December 31, 2001 (the "Rights 
Record Date").  In addition, Rights have been and will continue to be issued with all Common Shares issued after 
the Rights Record Date until the earlier of the date of the first event described in Section 2(b) or (c) below, the 
Redemption Date and the Expiration Date (each as defined below), and will be issued with all Common Shares 
issued upon exercise of conversion rights, exchange rights, rights (other than Rights), warrants or options that were 
issued or granted prior to the date of the first event described in Section 2(b) or (c) below.  

Until the Distribution Date (as defined in Section 2 below), (a) the Rights shall not be exercisable, (b) the 
Rights shall be attached to and trade only together with the Common Shares, and (c) the stock certificates 
representing Common Shares or ownership statements issued with respect to uncertificated Common Shares shall 
also represent the Rights attached to such Common Shares.  Unless the Rights are earlier redeemed or exchanged, 
Common Share certificates or ownership statements issued after the effective date of the Amended Rights 
Agreement and prior to the Distribution Date shall contain a notation incorporating the Amended Rights Agreement 
by reference.  Until the Distribution Date, the surrender for transfer of any certificates for Common Shares or the 
ownership statements with respect to uncertificated Common Shares will also constitute the transfer of the Rights.  

2. Distribution Date 

The "Distribution Date" is the earliest of: 

(a)  the tenth business day (or such later day as shall be designated by the Board of Directors) 
following the date of the commencement of, or the announcement of an intention by any person, other than an 
Exempt Person (as defined below) to make, a tender offer or exchange offer, the consummation of which would 
cause any person to become a 15% Stockholder (as defined below);  

(b)  the tenth business day following the date of the first public announcement that any person 
(other than an Exempt Person) has become the beneficial owner of 15% or more of the Company's then outstanding 
voting shares (such person is a "15% Stockholder" and the date of such public announcement is the "15% 
Ownership Date"); or 

(c)  the first date, on or after the 15% Ownership Date, (i) upon which the Company is 
acquired in a merger or other business combination in which the Company is not the surviving corporation, (ii) upon 
which the Company is the surviving corporation in a merger or business combination in which all or part of the 
outstanding Common Shares are changed into or exchanged for stock or cash or other assets of another person, or 
(iii) upon which 50% or more of the Company's consolidated assets or earning power are sold (other than in 
transactions in the ordinary course of business).   

In calculating the percentage of outstanding voting shares that are beneficially owned by any person, such 
person shall be deemed to beneficially own any voting shares issuable upon the exercise, exchange or conversion of 
any options, warrants or other securities (other than the Rights) beneficially owned by such person; provided, 
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however, that such voting shares issuable upon such exercise shall not be deemed outstanding for the purpose of 
calculating the percentage of voting shares that are beneficially owned by any other person. 

Under the Amended Rights Agreement, an "Exempt Person" means (i) the Company or any wholly-owned 
subsidiary of the Company, (ii) any employee benefit plan of the Company or its subsidiaries and any person 
holding voting shares for or pursuant to the terms of any such employee benefit plan, and (iii) MatlinPatterson and 
its affiliates, provided that MatlinPatterson shall immediately cease to be an Exempt Person from and after the date 
on which a majority of the members of the Board of Directors who are not designated by MatlinPatterson, 
determine, in good faith, that (A)(1) MatlinPatterson is in material breach of the Stockholders Agreement, as 
amended or supplemented from time-to-time, or (2) such Stockholders Agreement is no longer in full force and 
effect, and (B) MatlinPatterson shall be deemed no longer to be an Exempt Person under the Amended Rights 
Agreement. 

3. Issuance of Right Certificates 

As soon as practicable following the Distribution Date, separate certificates representing only Rights shall 
be mailed to the holders of record of Common Shares at the close of business on the Distribution Date, and such 
separate Right certificates alone shall represent the Rights from and after the Distribution Date. From and after the 
occurrence of any event described in Section 2(b) or (c), the Rights beneficially held by the following persons shall 
become null and void (i) any 15% Stockholder or its affiliates or associates, (ii) any transferee of such 15% 
Stockholder or its affiliates or associates, after such 15% Stockholder becomes such, or (iii) certain transferees of 
such 15% Stockholder who receive Rights concurrent with the 15% Stockholder becoming such, or pursuant to an 
arrangement that the Board of Directors determines is part of a plan, arrangement or understanding that has a 
primary purpose or effect to avoid such provisions of the Amended Rights Agreement. 

4. Expiration of Rights 

The Rights shall expire on December 31, 2017 (the "Expiration Date"), unless earlier redeemed or 
exchanged, unless prior to the Expiration Date the Distribution Date has occurred and the Rights have separated 
from the Common Shares, in which case the Rights will remain outstanding for three years from the date they 
separate. 

5. Exercise of Rights 

Unless the Rights have expired or been redeemed or exchanged, on or after the close of business on the 
Distribution Date they may be exercised, at the option of the holders, pursuant to paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) below.  
No Right may be exercised more than once or pursuant to more than one of such paragraphs.   

(a) Right to Purchase Preferred Shares.  From and after the close of business on a 
Distribution Date pursuant to Section 2(a) above, each Right shall be exercisable to purchase one one-hundredth 
(1100) of a share of the Company’s Series A Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per 
share, of the Company (the "Preferred Shares"), at an initial exercise price of $20.00, as the same may be adjusted 
pursuant to the terms of the Amended Rights Agreement (the "Exercise Price").  Prior to the Distribution Date, if 
the Board of Directors determines that such action adequately protects the interests of the holders of the Rights, the 
Company may substitute for all or any portion of the Preferred Shares that would otherwise be issuable upon 
exercise of the Rights, cash, other securities of the Company or other property having the same aggregate value as 
such Preferred Shares.  The Preferred Shares are nonredeemable and, unless otherwise provided in connection with 
the creation of a subsequent series of preferred stock, are subordinate to any other series of the Company's preferred 
stock whether issued before or after the issuance of the Preferred Shares.  A holder of a Preferred Share is entitled to 
receive when, as and if declared, quarterly dividends equal to the greater of (i) cash and non-cash dividends in an 
amount equal to 100 times the aggregate dividends declared on each Common Share (other than dividends payable 
in Common Shares) and (ii) $1.00 per Preferred Share ($.01 per one one-hundredth (1100) of a Preferred Share).  In 
the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, to the extent assets are available, the holders of 
Preferred Shares shall be entitled to receive, prior to any stock ranking junior to the Preferred Shares, a payment in 
an amount equal to $100 per Preferred Share ($1.00 per one one-hundredth (1100) of a Preferred Share), plus all 
accrued and unpaid dividends and distributions on the Preferred Shares (the "Series A Liquidation Preference"), 
and once all Common Shares have received one-hundredth of the Series A Liquidation Preference, holders of the 
Preferred Shares and the Common Shares shall each receive their ratable and proportionate share of the remaining 
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assets of the Company.  Each Preferred Share has one hundred (100) votes per share (one vote per one one-
hundredth (1100) of a Preferred Share), and except as provided by law or in the certificate of designations for the 
Preferred Shares, shall vote together with the Common Shares as one class.  If the dividends payable on the 
Preferred Shares are in arrears in an amount equal to six quarterly dividend payments, the holders of the Preferred 
Shares shall have the right to elect two directors. In the event of any merger, consolidation or other transaction in 
which Common Shares are exchanged, the holder of a Preferred Share shall be entitled to receive 100 times the 
amount received per Common Share.  The rights of the Preferred Shares as to dividends, voting and liquidation 
preferences are protected by antidilution provisions.  It is anticipated that the value of one one-hundredth (1100) of a 
Preferred Share should approximate the value of one Common Share. 

(b) Right to Purchase Common Shares of the Company.  From and after the close of business 
on the tenth business day following the 15% Ownership Date, each Right (other than a Right that has become void) 
shall be exercisable to purchase, at the Exercise Price, in lieu of Preferred Shares, Common Shares with a market 
value equal to two times the Exercise Price.  If the Company does not have sufficient Common Shares available for 
all Rights to be exercised, the Company shall substitute for the applicable portion of the Common Shares that would 
otherwise be issuable upon the exercise of the Rights, cash, assets or other securities (such as one-hundredths of a 
Preferred Share) having the same aggregate value  as such Common Shares. 

(c) Right to Purchase Common Stock of a Successor Corporation.  If, on or after the 15% 
Ownership Date, (i) the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination in which the Company is 
not the surviving corporation, (ii) the Company is the surviving corporation in a merger or other business 
combination in which all or part of the outstanding Common Shares are changed into or exchanged for stock or cash 
or other assets of another person, or (iii) 50% or more of the Company's consolidated assets or earning power are 
sold (other than in transactions in the ordinary course of business), then each Right (other than a Right that has 
become void) shall thereafter be exercisable to purchase, at the Exercise Price, shares of common stock of the 
surviving corporation, other persons issuing stock or assets, or the purchaser, respectively, or in certain cases, the 
parent of any such person (the "Surviving Person"), with an aggregate market value equal to two times the Exercise 
Price. 

6. Adjustments to Prevent Dilution 

The Exercise Price, the Redemption Price (as defined below), the number of outstanding Rights and the 
number of Preferred Shares or Common Shares issuable upon exercise of the Rights are subject to adjustment from 
time to time in order to prevent dilution.   

7. Cash Payable Instead of Issuing Fractional Securities 

The Company shall not be obligated to issue any fractional securities upon exercise of a Right (other than 
fractions of Preferred Shares that are integral multiples of one one-hundredth of a Preferred Share and that may, at 
the election of the Company, be evidenced by depositary receipts) and in lieu thereof, a payment in cash may be 
made based on the market price of such securities on the last trading date prior to the date of exercise. 

8. Redemption 

At any time prior to the earliest of (a) the tenth business day following the 15% Ownership Date, (b) the 
first event of the type giving rise to exercise rights under Section 5(c) above, and (c) the expiration of the Rights, the 
Board of Directors may, at its option, direct the Company to redeem the then outstanding Rights in whole, but not in 
part, at a price of $.001 per Right, as the same may be adjusted pursuant to the terms of the Rights Agreement (the 
"Redemption Price"), and the Company shall so redeem the Rights.  Immediately upon such action by the Board of 
Directors (the date of such action being the "Redemption Date"), the only right of the holders of Rights thereafter 
shall be to receive the Redemption Price. 

9. Exchange 

At any time after the tenth business day following the 15% Ownership Date, the Board of Directors may, at 
its option, authorize and direct the exchange of all or part of the then outstanding Rights (other than Rights that have 
become void) for Common Shares, at an exchange ratio of one Common Share per Right (the "Exchange Ratio"), 
and the Company shall so exchange the Rights.  Immediately upon such action by the Board of Directors, the right 
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to exercise Rights shall terminate and the only right of the holders of Rights thereafter shall be to receive the 
Exchange Ratio. If the Company does not have sufficient Common Shares available for all designated Rights to be 
so exchanged, the Company shall substitute for the applicable portion of the Common Shares that would otherwise 
be issuable upon the exchange of the Rights, cash, assets or other securities (such as one-hundredths of a Preferred 
Share), having the same aggregate value as such Common Shares. 

10. No Stockholder Rights Prior to Exercise 

Until a Right is duly exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will have no rights as a stockholder of the 
Company (other than rights resulting from such holder's ownership of Common Shares, if any), including, without 
limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividends. 

11. Amendments of the Amended Rights Agreement 

The Board of Directors may, from time to time, without the approval of our stockholders or of any holder 
of Rights, supplement or amend any provision of the Amended Rights Agreement in any manner, whether or not 
such supplement or amendment is adverse to any holder of Rights, and the Company and the Rights Agent shall so 
supplement or amend such provision; provided, however, that from and after the earliest of (a) the tenth business 
day following the 15% Ownership Date, (b) the first event of the type giving rise to exercise rights under 
Section 5(c) above, (c) the Redemption Date, and (d) the Expiration Date, the Rights Agreement cannot be 
supplemented or amended in any manner that would materially and adversely affect any holder of outstanding 
Rights other than a 15% Stockholder or a Surviving Person. 
 
The Board of Directors believes that the Amended Rights Agreement is in our Stockholders' best interests 
 
Effect of Vote 

Stockholder approval of the Amended Rights Agreement is not required. The Board of Directors has 
submitted the Amended Rights Agreement to stockholders for approval as a matter of good corporate governance, in 
an effort to determine the viewpoint of stockholders on the advisability of the Amended Rights Agreement.  If the 
Amended Rights Agreement is not approved by our stockholders, the Board of Directors will promptly terminate the 
Amended Rights Agreement.   

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR 
APPROVAL OF THE RESOLUTION SET FORTH ABOVE RATIFYING THE BOARD’S APPROVAL OF 
THE COMPANY’S AMENDED RIGHTS AGREEMENT. 

 
Assuming the presence of a quorum at the Annual Meeting, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Shares 

present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the proposal is necessary for its approval.  As a result, 
abstentions will be treated as votes against the proposal, whereas broker non-votes will have no effect on the 
outcome of the vote.  Unless instructed otherwise in the proxy, the persons named in the accompanying form of 
proxy will vote all proxies for the proposal 
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PROPOSAL NO. 4    RATIFICATION OF THE AMENDED FORUM SELECTION 
PROVISION IN THE COMPANY’S AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS 

On October 27, 2014, the Board approved an amendment to the provision contained in our bylaws that 
designates Delaware courts as the exclusive forum for the adjudication of stockholder disputes (the "Prior Forum 
Selection Provision"). The Prior Forum Selection Provision had been in our bylaws, without amendment, since 
1991. As described further below, the Board determined that it was in the best interests of the company and its 
stockholders to amend the Prior Forum Selection Provision to tailor the provision and update it in response to recent 
developments in Delaware case law. 

While the amended bylaws were effective upon approval by the Board on October 27, 2014, the Board has 
determined to seek stockholder ratification of our updated bylaw provision designating Delaware courts as the 
exclusive forum for the adjudication of certain stockholder disputes (the "Updated Forum Selection Provision").   

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE FOR 
APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION: 

RESOLVED, that Article VIII of the company’s bylaws, in the form set forth below, is hereby ratified and 
approved:  

ARTICLE VIII: Forum for Adjudication of Disputes 

SECTION 8.1  Forum.  Unless the Corporation consents in writing to the 
selection of an alternative forum, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the sole and 
exclusive forum for any stockholder (including any beneficial owner, within the meaning 
of Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) to bring (i) any derivative action or proceeding 
brought on behalf of the Corporation, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a 
fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer, or employee of the Corporation to the 
Corporation or the Corporation's stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising 
pursuant to any provision of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware or the 
Certificate of Incorporation or these Bylaws or (iv) any action asserting a claim governed 
by the internal affairs doctrine shall be a state court located within the State of Delaware 
(or, if no state court located within the State of Delaware has jurisdiction, the federal 
district court for the District of Delaware); in all cases subject to the court's having 
personal jurisdiction over the indispensable parties named as defendants. 

SECTION 8.2  Personal Jurisdiction.  If any action the subject matter of which 
is within the scope of Section 8.1 of these Bylaws is filed in a court other than a state 
court located within the State of Delaware (or, if no state court located within the State of 
Delaware has jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware) (a 
"Foreign Action") in the name of any stockholder (including any beneficial owner, within 
the meaning of Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act), such stockholder shall be deemed to 
have consented to (i) the personal jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located 
within the State of Delaware in connection with any action brought in any such court to 
enforce Section 8.1 of these Bylaws and (ii) having service of process made upon such 
stockholder in any such action by service upon such stockholder's counsel in the Foreign 
Action as agent for such stockholder. 

SECTION 8.3  Enforceability.  Any person purchasing or otherwise acquiring 
any interest in shares of stock of the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of and 
consented to the provisions of this Article VIII.  If any provision of this Article VIII shall 
be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable as applied to any person or circumstance 
for any reason whatsoever, then, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the validity, 
legality and enforceability of such provision in any other circumstance and of the 
remaining provisions of this Article VIII (including, without limitation, each portion of 
any sentence of this Article VIII containing any such provision held to be invalid, illegal 
or unenforceable that is not itself held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable) and the 
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application of such provision to other persons or entities and circumstances shall not in 
any way be affected or impaired thereby. 

Background on Proposal 

The Prior Forum Selection Provision had been in our bylaws, without amendment, since 1991. However, 
the Prior Forum Selection Provision did not provide the Board flexibility to waive the selection of Delaware courts 
as the exclusive forum for the specified disputes, including in any situation where the Board determined that the 
provision might operate in an inequitable or inappropriate manner, which flexibility has been added in the Updated 
Forum Selection Provision. In addition, the Prior Forum Selection Provision covered any and all actions brought by 
a stockholder against the company or any officer, director, employee, agent or advisor of the company, and the 
Board determined that it was advisable to tailor the scope of the provision to apply more narrowly to actions relating 
to the company’s internal affairs, including the rights of our stockholders.  Furthermore, there have been recent 
cases in Delaware that have interpreted forum selection bylaws, and the Board determined that it was advisable to 
update the provision in response to the developing Delaware law in this area, including providing for certain 
stockholder plaintiffs to be deemed to consent to personal jurisdiction in Delaware courts in connection with any 
action brought in any such courts to better enforce the Updated Forum Selection Provision.   

Prior to the Board adopting the Updated Forum Selection Provision, members of our management 
consulted with some of our stockholders, including MatlinPatterson, our largest stockholder, regarding the proposal, 
and such stockholders were supportive of the proposed amendment.  

The Board believes that because the company is a Delaware corporation, certain disputes relating to the 
company’s internal affairs are best adjudicated in Delaware courts.  Specifically, the Board believes that should the 
company or its officers, directors or employees be subject to litigation of the type specified in the Updated Forum 
Selection Provision, subject to any exceptions that can be addressed on a case-by-case basis, selecting Delaware 
courts as the exclusive forum for such actions will be in the best interests of the company and its stockholders.  The 
Board came to this determination based upon, among other considerations: 

 the selection of Delaware courts may help the company to avoid the high cost and inefficiency 
resulting from duplicative lawsuits in multiple jurisdictions, a cost that ultimately is borne by our 
stockholders;  

 a single forum may avoid potentially inconsistent outcomes in multiple jurisdictions, despite each 
forum purporting to follow Delaware law;    

 because the company is incorporated in Delaware, Delaware courts are well suited to address disputes 
regarding the internal affairs of the company;  

 all parties may benefit from the significant expertise and extensive precedent developed by the 
Delaware courts in these matters; and 

 the streamlined procedures and processes developed by the Delaware Court of Chancery may facilitate 
relatively efficient decisions for litigating parties, limiting the time, cost, and uncertainty of litigation 
for all parties.  

Additionally, as noted above, the Updated Forum Selection Provision focuses on claims relating to the 
company’s internal affairs and, unlike the Prior Forum Selection Provision, does not extend to all claims brought by 
a stockholder against the company, or its officers, directors, employees, agents or advisors.  In this respect, the 
Board believes that the Updated Forum Selection Provision reflects an approach that is more narrowly tailored to the 
considerations listed above and that more appropriately balances the interests of the company and its stockholders.  

Although we have not experienced the inefficiencies involved in duplicative litigation across multiple 
jurisdictions, the Board believes that it is prudent to retain the selection of Delaware courts as the exclusive forum 
for the specified stockholder actions in an effort to prevent such harm to the company and our stockholders should 
such litigation arise in the future.   

The Board is aware and considered that some stockholder plaintiffs might prefer to litigate the specified 
disputes in a forum outside of Delaware because, among other reasons, they perceive another court as more 
convenient or more favorable to their claims; however, the Board believes that the substantial benefits to the 
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company and our stockholders as a whole from continuing to designate Delaware as the exclusive forum for such 
disputes outweigh these concerns.  Furthermore, as with the Prior Forum Selection Provision, the Updated Forum 
Selection Provision only regulates the forum where stockholders may file claims relating to the specified actions, 
and the Board does not believe it should impact whether such actions may be filed or the kind of remedy a 
stockholder may obtain if such claims are ultimately successful.  That is, the Updated Forum Selection Provision is 
not intended to deprive stockholders of the ability to pursue legitimate claims; rather, it attempts to prevent the 
company from being forced to spend corporate assets defending against duplicative suits in multiple jurisdictions, 
and to direct such claims into the courts that the Board believes are the most experienced in handling these types of 
claims with respect to Delaware corporations.  In addition, unlike the Prior Forum Selection Provision, the Updated 
Forum Selection Provision includes a new feature under which the Board has retained discretion to consent to the 
selection of an alternative forum if it should ever be appropriate to do so, such as in any situation in which the Board 
determines that the provision might operate in an inequitable manner. 

Although the Board believes the objectives of the Updated Forum Selection Provision are in the best 
interests of the company and its stockholders, stockholders should note that there are certain disadvantages that may 
ensue from an exclusive forum provision, such as the Prior Forum Selection Provision and the Updated Forum 
Selection Provision, including limiting the ability of our stockholders to file lawsuits relating to the internal affairs 
of the company in a forum of their choosing, which could increase the costs to a plaintiff stockholder of bringing 
such a lawsuit and could have the effect of deterring such lawsuits.  Moreover, the Board is aware that the 
enforceability of similar exclusive forum provisions in the governing documents of other Delaware corporations has 
been challenged in legal proceedings, and it is possible that judicial decisions or other rulings or changes in law 
could declare or otherwise render exclusive forum clauses like the Updated Forum Selection Provision to be 
inapplicable or unenforceable. 

Effect of Advisory Vote 

Stockholder approval of the Updated Forum Selection Provision is not required, however, the Board has 
submitted the Updated Forum Selection Provision to stockholders for approval as a matter of good corporate 
governance, in an effort to determine the viewpoint of stockholders on the advisability of the updated terms and 
conditions of the Updated Forum Selection Provision.  Because the vote on this proposal is advisory in nature, it will 
not be binding on the Board.  However, if the Updated Forum Selection Provision is not approved by our 
stockholders, the Board intends to reevaluate the terms and conditions and advisability of a forum selection 
provision, including whether to maintain the Updated Forum Selection Provision, revert to the Prior Forum 
Selection Provision or eliminate a forum selection provision altogether. 

Assuming the presence of a quorum at our annual meeting of stockholders, the affirmative vote of a 
majority of the shares present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote on the proposal is necessary for its approval.  
As a result, abstentions will be treated as votes against the proposal, whereas broker non-votes will have no effect on 
the outcome of the vote.  Unless instructed otherwise in the proxy, the persons named in the accompanying form of 
proxy will vote all proxies for the proposal.   
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION  

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2014 with respect to the shares of Common 
Stock that may be issued under our equity compensation plans. 

  

Plan Category  

Number of 
securities to be 

issued upon 
exercise of 

outstanding 
options, 

warrants and 
rights 

(a)  

Weighted-average 
exercise price of 

outstanding 
options, warrants 

and rights 
(b)  

Number of 
securities remaining 
available for future 

issuance under 
equity 

compensation plans 
(excluding 

securities listed in 
column (a)) 

(c)

Equity compensation plans approved by 
stockholders(1)(2) 26,182,880 $ 5.84 51,230,067 
     

 
(1) Consists of the 2005, 2008 and 2014 Equity Incentive Plans.  Amounts provided include the impact of 770,715 shares of unvested restricted 

stock and 3,320,624 shares of Company common stock that will be issued if "maximum" performance is achieved in connection with 
performance share awards outstanding as of December 31, 2014.  See additional discussion within the Compensation Discussion and 
Analysis section of this proxy statement.  

(2) Each plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors.  The 2014 Plan, which is the only plan pursuant to 
which future awards may be made, provides the committee discretion to award options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, incentive 
bonuses and incentive stock to employees, directors, and executive officers of the Company and its subsidiaries.  The committee is also 
authorized to amend, alter or discontinue each plan, except to the extent that it would impair the rights of a participant.   

 
 
DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 

Annually, the Compensation Committee reviews the Company’s non-management director compensation 
program with the goal of maintaining a program that comports with market norms and that aligns the interests of 
non-management directors with those of stockholders. This review includes an examination of publicly available 
information regarding compensation paid to non-management directors at the other publicly traded homebuilders in 
a peer group examined by the Compensation Committee (Toll Brothers, Inc., Hovnanian Enterprises, Inc., Beazer 
Homes USA, Inc., M.D.C. Holdings, Inc., The Ryland Group, Meritage Homes Corporation, Taylor Morrison Home 
Corp. and KB Home), a review of general industry director compensation information and, from time to time, a 
discussion with an outside compensation consultant. 

In 2014, each non-management director was eligible to receive total annual compensation valued at $220,000, 
consisting of an annual cash retainer of $100,000 and quarterly grants of common stock valued at $30,000. The 
Compensation Committee has decided to continue the structure of the program for 2015. The Compensation 
Committee believes the total amount of compensation is consistent with market norms and that the mix between 
cash and stock strikes the appropriate balance between providing non-management directors with a significant 
portion of their compensation in stock to better align their interests with our other stockholders, while providing 
them sufficient cash to fund income taxes associated with their receipt of the stock. 

The annual cash retainer is paid in four equal installments on February 15, May 15, August 15 and 
November 15. The stock grant is paid in quarterly installments in shares of Common Stock that are priced at the 
closing price of Common Stock on each of March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31. The stock is fully 
vested on the date of grant. As a reflection of a greater workload, our Lead Independent Director and our Audit and 
Compensation Committee Chairman each receive an additional $20,000 annual cash retainer, payable quarterly in 
the same manner and at the same time as the general cash retainer paid to all non-management directors. Upon 
election or appointment to the Board of Directors, each new non-management director receives a grant of 5,000 
shares of restricted stock which vests in full one year after the date of grant.  
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2014 Non-Employee Director Compensation 

Name   

Fees Earned 
or Paid in 
Cash($)   

Stock 
Awards(s) 

($)(2)    Total($)
Bruce A. Choate   $ 120,000   $ 120,000    $ 240,000
Ronald R. Foell   $ 120,000   $ 120,000    $ 240,000
Douglas C. Jacobs   $ 120,000   $ 120,000    $ 240,000
David J. Matlin(1)   $ —   $ —    $ —
John R. Peshkin   $ 100,000   $ 120,000    $ 220,000
Peter Schoels(1)   $ —   $ —    $ —

(1) Mr. Matlin and Mr. Schoels have elected to decline all compensation that they would otherwise be entitled to receive as members of the 
Board. 

(2) For 2014, each non-employee director was entitled to receive an aggregate of $120,000 of our Common Stock, issued in four quarterly 
installments of $30,000.  The actual number of shares issued to each non-employee director is determined by dividing $30,000 by the 
closing price of our Common Stock as of the last day of each quarter.  For 2014, Messrs. Choate, Foell, Jacobs and Peshkin each received 
an aggregate of 15,218 shares of Company Common Stock. 

Non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Guidelines  

The Company has adopted Non-Employee Director Stock Ownership Guidelines for the purpose of further 
aligning the interests and actions of our directors with the interests of our other stockholders.  Each non-employee 
member of the Company’s Board of Directors (other than directors who are employees of any of our 10% or greater 
stockholders or their affiliates who are not subject to these guidelines) is required to hold a number of shares equal 
to three times the annual cash retainer paid to the director and is required to reach full compliance with these 
guidelines within five years of the date the director becomes subject to them.  As of December 31, 2014, each of our 
directors was in compliance with the guidelines.  

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION 

Bruce A. Choate (Chairman), Douglas C. Jacobs and John R. Peshkin all served as members of the 
Compensation Committee during 2014. There are no Compensation Committee interlocks between the Company 
and other entities involving the Company’s executive officers and directors. 

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT 

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed and discussed with management the 
contents of the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section below.  Based on this review and discussion, the 
Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in 
this proxy statement.  

Compensation Committee 
Bruce A. Choate (Chairman) 

Douglas C. Jacobs 
John R. Peshkin  

 
The foregoing Report of the Compensation Committee does not constitute soliciting material and should not 

be deemed filed or incorporated by reference into any Company filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended 
(the "Securities Act"), or the Exchange Act, except to the extent the Company specifically incorporates this report. 

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Stockholder "Say-On-Pay" Voting 

On May 7, 2014, we held our annual meeting of stockholders.  At that meeting, stockholders were provided 
the opportunity to cast non-binding advisory votes on the compensation of our named executive officers and the 
frequency with which stockholders should be provided the opportunity to vote on the compensation of our named 
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executive officers in the future.  Following the recommendation of our Board of Directors, over 98% of votes cast 
by stockholders at the meeting were voted to approve the compensation of our named executive officers and nearly 
63% of votes cast were voted in favor of a three year frequency for future "say-on-pay" advisory votes.  Consistent 
with these results, our Compensation Committee applied a similar compensation philosophy when setting 2015 
executive compensation and decided on a three year frequency for future "say-on-pay" votes.  The next "say-on-
pay" vote will be held at the 2017 annual meeting of stockholders. 

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives 

The objective of our executive compensation program is to attract, motivate, retain and reward key executives, 
support our business strategy through a "pay for performance" philosophy tied to individual and overall company 
results, and align the long-term interests of our executives with those of our other stockholders.   

Core Principles.  Consistent with these objectives, the Committee has developed a compensation program for 
executive officers, including the Company’s named executive officers, predicated on the following core principles:  

 The overall level of total compensation for executives should be reasonable and competitive with the 
compensation paid to similarly situated peer executives, subject to variation for factors such as the 
individual’s ability, experience, performance, duties, responsibilities, prior contributions and future 
potential contributions to the Company.  

 Annual incentive opportunities should represent a significant portion of total possible compensation for 
executives and should provide for variations in performance. 

 A significant portion of total possible compensation should be paid in the form of long term equity 
incentives (stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and/or performance shares) thereby 
enhancing the executive’s financial interest in the creation of long-term stockholder value and aligning 
the interests of our executives with those of our stockholders.  

Our Best Practices 

Our compensation program incorporates the following best practices: 

WE DO  WE DO NOT 

The majority of our compensation is performance-
based and can be earned only upon the 
achievement of corporate and individual 
performance targets designed to enhance 
stockholder value. 

 We do not provide perquisites for our executives that 
are not generally available to all of our employees. 

 

Incentive compensation earned by our executives 
is subject to claw-back provisions in certain 
instances where compensation is based in whole 
or in part on reported financial results that are 
subsequently modified as a result of a restatement 
and the executive has engaged in misconduct.   

 We do not provide tax-gross ups on perquisites to our 
executives. 

 

Following a change-in-control, post termination 
benefits are not payable unless an executive’s 
employment is terminated ("double trigger").   

 We do not have any deferred compensation 
arrangements. 

We have stock ownership guidelines that set forth 
required ownership levels for our executives. 

 We do not permit our executives to hedge the 
economic risk of owning Company stock. 

Our Compensation Committee is comprised 
entirely of independent directors. 

 We do not permit our executives to pledge Company 
stock. 

Our Compensation Committee is advised by an 
independent compensation consultant.  This 
consultant is retained directly by the Committee. 

 We do not maintain separate or supplemental 
retirement plans for executives. 
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The majority of our executive compensation is performance-based and is dependent on and determined by the 

success of the Company’s financial, operational, strategic and stock performance.  The charts below show the 2014 
percentage of performance-based compensation for our CEO and other Named Executive Officers ("NEOs"): 

 
 

2014 TOTAL COMPENSATION 
 (FROM SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE – PAGE 36) 
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Our Company Performance in 2014 

Since the adoption of the Company’s current executive compensation program in March of 2012, the 
Company has achieved exceptional operating and financial performance.   

 

                     

 

                     

Highlights of the Company’s performance during 2014 and comparisons to 2013 include: 

 Earnings per diluted share of $0.54, up 15% 

 Pretax income of $350 million, up 36%  

 Net new orders up 1% (Dollar value of net new orders up 13%)  

 Backlog of homes up 1% (Dollar value of backlog up 14%)  

 Industry leading (public homebuilders) gross margin from home sales of 26.1%, up 150 basis points  

 Industry leading (public homebuilders) operating margin from home sales of 14.4% 

 Home sale revenues up 25%  

 Average selling price of homes delivered up 16% 

 New home deliveries up 8% 

 Average number of active selling communities up 10% 
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Procedure for Setting Executive Compensation  

Role of the Compensation Committee.  The Committee is responsible for all aspects of executive 
compensation, including, among other things:  

 establishing the Company’s compensation philosophy, objectives and policies;  

 reviewing and approving all elements and levels of the compensation and benefits of the Company’s 
executive officers;  

 annually appraising the performance of the Chief Executive Officer and providing developmental 
feedback to the Chief Executive Officer and, when appropriate, to the other executive officers of the 
Company; and  

 administering the Company’s compensation plans, including its equity incentive plans.  
 

Each member of the Committee is an independent director.  

The Committee generally meets in conjunction with our quarterly Board meetings and from time to time at 
additional special meetings on an as-needed basis. The Committee held seven meetings during late 2013 and early 
2014 at which proposed 2014 executive officer compensation was discussed and held five meetings during late 2014 
and early 2015 at which proposed 2015 executive officer compensation was discussed. The Committee also 
informally communicates between meetings as necessary to conduct the Committee’s business. While the 
Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Legal Officer and Senior Vice President of Human Resources generally 
attend Committee meetings, the Committee also meets in executive session without management from time to time 
as it deems appropriate. Compensation matters are also discussed at executive sessions of the full Board, where both 
Committee members and other independent members of the Board of Directors are present without management. 

The Committee makes compensation decisions for all of the Company’s executive officers and certain other 
highly compensated employees. The Committee evaluates performance, compensation levels and compensation 
program structure throughout the year, but generally begins the process of structuring the upcoming year’s 
compensation program at a regularly scheduled meeting in October.  Following a series of special Committee 
meetings that take place beginning in December, the Committee finalizes compensation programs for the current 
year in March, formally adopting base salaries and annual cash incentive compensation programs, and approving 
grants of long-term equity incentives, such as stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and 
performance share awards.  This timing allows the Committee to consider prior performance and to satisfy the 
requirements of Section 162(m) necessary to achieve tax deductibility of certain performance based compensation 
payments, while maximizing the incentive effect of any compensation tied to annual performance.  

Role of Management.  The Company’s Chief Executive Officer annually reviews each executive officer’s 
performance with the Committee and makes recommendations to the Committee with respect to the appropriate base 
salary and incentive compensation program for each executive officer. The Committee takes these proposals into 
consideration, among other matters, when making compensation decisions.  

Use of Compensation Consultant.  The Committee has retained independent compensation consultant Steven 
Hall & Partners ("SH&P") to provide guidance on best practices and key developments in compensation, assistance 
with program design, benchmarking data, and to otherwise assist the Committee with its duties. In the second half of 
2011, as a reflection of the Committee’s belief that the Company’s executive compensation program should be 
revised to reflect the Company’s operational transition to a focus on growth, the Committee, SH&P, and members of 
the Company’s senior management team worked together to conduct a comprehensive review of the Company’s 
management compensation practices.  As a result of this process, the Committee adopted a new executive 
compensation program framework that was used beginning in 2012.  The Committee, again in consultation with 
SH&P and Company management, reviewed the results of the program for 2012, 2013 and 2014, concluding that 
use of the same general compensation program framework was appropriate for 2015.   

Competitive Marketplace Assessment.  The Committee looks to a pay comparator peer group as a source of 
marketplace data regarding executive compensation levels.  The Company’s pay comparator peer group includes 
companies in the homebuilding industry with similar size, scope and complexity, within a range of 0.5 to 2 times the 
Company’s revenues.  For purposes of setting 2014 and 2015 compensation, the pay comparator group included 
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Beazer Homes USA, Inc., Hovnanian Enterprises, Inc., KB Homes, M.D.C. Holdings, Inc., Meritage Homes 
Corporation, The Ryland Group, Inc., Toll Brothers, Inc. and Taylor Morrison Home Corp. In addition to the 
information obtained on pay comparators, the Committee also typically reviews broader based compensation survey 
data.  While the pay comparator and broader survey information provide useful data points, the Committee does not 
tie compensation levels to fixed benchmarks. Instead, market analyses are one factor among many that the 
Committee reviews when determining compensation levels. Other important considerations include individual 
performance and experience, scope of responsibilities and the need to recruit and retain individuals to fill key 
positions. 

For purposes of evaluating compensation practices, the Committee supplements the pay comparator group 
with four additional comparators (D.R. Horton, Inc., Lennar Corp., NVR, Inc. and Pulte Group, Inc.) which are too 
large to be considered appropriate pay comparator peers, but nonetheless serve as good sources of competitive 
intelligence regarding pay design and practices.  

Compensation Elements 

Our compensation program is comprised of the following pay elements: 

 Base Salary. The Committee believes base salaries should be adequate to attract and retain 
management, and to provide a reasonable fixed base level of compensation. Base salaries for the 
named executive officers are established based on the scope of their responsibilities, experience, 
performance and contributions to the Company, taking into account compensation paid to similarly 
situated peer executives and other compensation data determined to be relevant by the Committee. 

 Annual Cash Incentive Compensation.  The Committee believes that, in addition to base salary, an 
annual cash incentive compensation program should be designed to motivate and reward executives for 
corporate and, for certain of the executives, individual accomplishments during the year.  Incentive 
compensation levels are established based on the scope of the executive’s responsibilities and 
experience, taking into account compensation paid to similarly situated peer executives and other 
compensation data determined to be relevant by the Committee. 

 Equity Compensation.  The Committee believes that equity awards (such as stock options, restricted 
stock, stock appreciation rights and performance share awards) should be used as retention tools that 
reward executives for longer-term Company performance. In addition to equity awards associated with 
the hiring or promotion of an executive, the Committee typically authorizes an annual equity award to 
each executive in an amount based on the scope of the executive’s responsibilities and experience, 
taking into account equity awards made to similarly situated peer executives and other data determined 
to be relevant by the Committee. The Committee believes these awards further align the executives’ 
interests with those of the Company’s other stockholders. In addition, because these equity awards 
generally vest over an extended timeframe, these awards encourage the executive to remain with the 
Company for a long and productive career, allowing the Company to maximize the value of the 
executive’s contributions and experience.  

 Perquisites and Other Benefits. The Committee does not believe that executives should receive special 
perquisites or other benefits that are not available to other employees.  Consistent with this philosophy, 
the executive officers participate in the Company’s employee benefit plans on the same terms as other 
employees. These plans include medical, dental, vision and life insurance, disability coverage and the 
401(k) Plan. 

  



 

28 

Overview of 2014 and 2015 Named Executive Officer Compensation 

In early 2014 and again in March 2015, following review of the Company’s long term strategy and 
competitive compensation data, including data provided by the Committee’s independent compensation consultant, 
SH&P, and other discussions between members of the Committee, Company senior management, and other Board 
members, the Committee adopted the 2014 and 2015 compensation programs described below for each of the 
Company’s named executive officers.  Our named executive officers are: 
 

 Scott D. Stowell    Chief Executive Officer 
 Jeff J. McCall   Chief Financial Officer 
 Wendy L. Marlett   Chief Marketing Officer 
 John P. Babel   Chief Legal Officer 

The 2014 and 2015 compensation programs are designed to provide each of these officers with a total 
compensation package appropriate with respect to his or her scope of responsibilities and competitive (in both total 
dollar value and in compensation mix) with his or her similarly situated peers.  The 2014 and 2015 program designs 
are generally consistent with each other and the compensation programs approved by the Committee in 2012 and 
2013, reflecting the Committee’s belief that these compensation programs worked well to drive the executive 
behaviors that led to the Company’s strong financial performance for each of those years. 

Base Salaries.  For 2014, the base salaries of Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel were 
$930,000 (increased to $1,000,000 on August 1, 2014), $670,000, $560,000, and $490,000, respectively.  Effective 
April 1, 2015, the base salaries of Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel were $1,000,000, $700,000, 
$575,000, and $505,000, respectively.  The base salaries reflect the Committee’s view of each individual executive’s 
scope of responsibility and the base pay of similarly situated executives among the Company’s pay comparators.   

Annual Cash Incentive Compensation.  In March 2014, the Committee established annual cash incentive 
targets, expressed as a percentage of base salary, for each of our named executive officers, 125% of base salary for 
Mr. Stowell, 100% of base salary for Mr. McCall and 50% of base salary for Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel.  In August 
2014, in light of Mr. Stowell’s performance and a review of his compensation level relative to his peers, the 
Committee also provided Mr. Stowell with the opportunity to earn additional cash annual incentive compensation 
for 2014 targeted at $450,000 (discussed in more detail below).  For 2015, the Committee once again established 
annual cash incentive targets, expressed as a percentage of base salary, for each of our named executive officers, 
150% of base salary for Mr. Stowell, 100% of base salary for Mr. McCall and 50% of base salary for Ms. Marlett 
and Mr. Babel.  The Committee believes that these annual incentive opportunities are consistent with those provided 
to other similarly situated executives among the Company’s pay comparators. 

Annual incentive awards are earned based on corporate and individual performance.  For 2013 and 2014, the 
primary corporate performance metric was pre-tax income.  The Committee chose the same corporate performance 
metric for 2015.  The Committee selected pre-tax income as the most significant performance metric because the 
Company’s executive officers are responsible for the operational oversight of our entire Company and the 
Committee believes that achievement of pre-tax income targets based on the Company’s annual business plan is a 
strong indicator of individual performance.  For our Chief Marketing and Chief Legal Officers, achievement of 
targeted levels of annual incentive compensation also depend upon the achievement of departmental performance 
objectives related to their respective areas of supervision.   

Payouts under the program are subject to a minimum performance threshold and are subject to a cap, defined 
as a percentage of base salary.  Maximum payouts will only be earned for superior Company performance.  For 
2014, the Company earned $350 million in pre-tax income. This amount was $25 million over the $325 million pre-
tax income target contained in the Company’s business plan and $75 million over the $275 million minimum 
performance threshold.  This minimum performance threshold, the achievement of which would result in a payout 
equal to 50% of the executive’s targeted amount of annual incentive compensation, represented an amount $17 
million higher than the nearly $258 million in pre-tax income earned by the Company in 2013. 

Long Term Equity Compensation.  In addition to cash compensation, the Committee provides annual equity 
awards to the Company’s executive officers, such as stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and 
performance share awards.  These awards encourage executive ownership of Company common stock, further 
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aligning the interest of executives with those of the Company’s other stockholders, and provide the executive with 
an incentive (because the equity compensation generally vests over an extended timeframe) to remain with the 
Company for a long and productive career.     

For 2014 and 2015, the committee decided to provide a long-term equity grant to each of the Company’s 
named executive officers, the dollar value of each grant expressed as a percentage of the executive’s base salary, 
350%, 200%, 100% and 100%, respectively, for Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel.  The awards 
consist of 33 1/3% restricted common stock, 33 1/3% capped common stock appreciation rights and 33 1/3% 
performance share awards (see tables below).  The dollar value of the grant for each executive reflects the 
Committee’s view of each individual’s scope of responsibility and the total compensation package of similarly 
situated executives among the Company’s pay comparators.   

EPS Based TSR Based

Scott D. Stowell 350% $1,085,000 $1,085,000 $542,500 $542,500

Jeff J. McCall 200% $446,667 $446,667 $223,334 $223,333

Wendy L. Marlett 100% $186,667 $186,667 $93,334 $93,333

John P. Babel 100% $163,334 $163,333 $81,667 $81,667

EPS Based TSR Based

Scott D. Stowell 350% $1,166,667 $1,166,667 $583,334 $583,333

Jeff J. McCall 200% $466,667 $466,667 $233,334 $233,333

Wendy L. Marlett 100% $191,667 $191,667 $95,834 $95,833

John P. Babel 100% $168,334 $168,333 $84,167 $84,167

2014 Equity Awards

Dollar Value of Equity Award

2015 Equity Awards

Dollar Value of Equity Award

% of
Base SalaryName

Capped Stock 
Appreciaion Rights

Restricted
Stock

Performance Share Awards

Name
% of

Base Salary

Capped Stock 
Appreciaion Rights

Restricted
Stock

Performance Share Awards

 

Capped Stock Appreciation Rights and Restricted Stock.  For 2014 and 2015, the capped stock appreciation 
rights and restricted stock vest in three equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the issuance 
date, with one-half of the dollar value of these awards issued on April 1st and October 1st of the respective plan year; 
provided, that, in the case of the restricted stock award, a threshold level of Company pre-tax income must be 
achieved before the award begins to vest ($275 million for 2014).  The 2014 capped stock appreciation rights and 
restricted stock had grant date prices per share of $8.44 and $7.40 on April 1, 2014 and October 1, 2014, 
respectively (equal to the Company’s common stock closing price on the issuance date), with the value per share of 
the stock appreciation rights capped at $4.00 above the grant price.   

Performance Share Awards.  For 2014 and 2015, the Committee split the performance share award program so 
that 50% of the dollar value of each executive’s performance share award vests based on the achievement of an 
earnings per share metric and 50% vests on the Company’s relative total shareholder return as compared to a peer 
group.   

Earnings Per Share Component of Performance Share Award.  The Committee established the various 
levels of performance required to earn the earnings per share component of the performance share award (see table 
below) based on the Company’s projections and the Board’s expectations regarding projected earnings per share 
levels at the time the award was made.  The Committee believes that exceptional Company performance is required 
for the executives to earn the maximum level of performance shares.   



 

30 

% of Targeted 
EPS Achieved

Multiple of 
Target Shares

% of Targeted 
EPS Achieved

Multiple of 
Target Shares

Below 100% 0 Below 91% 0
100% 1 x Target 91% 0.5 x Target
112% 2 x Target 100% 1 x Target
125% 3 x Target 120% 2 x Target
139% 4 x Target 168% 3 x Target

2016 Earnings Per Share
Thresholds

2015-2017 Cumulative Earnings
Per Share Thresholds

2014 Awards 2015 Awards

 

For 2014, the earnings per share component of the award is based on the Company’s actual earnings per share 
for the year ended December 31, 2016.  For 2015, the earnings per share component of the award is based on the 
Company’s cumulative earnings per share for the years 2015-2017.  The "Target" number of shares of Company 
common stock awarded to each named executive officer is determined by dividing the applicable portion of their 
base salary by the fair value per share of the award on the grant date.  In accordance with applicable accounting 
rules, the "fair value" for common stock awards that vest based on company performance (such as earnings per 
share) is the Company’s common stock closing price per share on the grant date.   

Total Shareholder Return Component of Performance Share Award.  The Committee established the various 
levels of performance required to earn the total shareholder return ("TSR") component of the performance share 
award based on the Committee’s view of the difficulty of achieving the relative TSR ranks reflected in the table 
below.  The Committee believes that the ranking required for the executives to earn the maximum payout of this 
award is extremely difficult to achieve and would be an exceptional result for stockholders.    

Company TSR Rank
Multiple of 

Target Shares Company TSR Rank
Multiple of 

Target Shares
#9 - #15 0 #12 - #14 0
#7 or #8 1 x Target #10 or #11 0.5 x Target
#5 or #6 2 x Target #7 - #9 1 x Target
#3 or #4 3 x Target #4 - #6 2 x Target
#1 or #2 4 x Target #1 - #3 3 x Target

2014-2016 
Performance Period

2015-2017 
Performance Period

2014 Awards 2015 Awards

 

For 2014, the TSR component of the award is based on the Company’s TSR over the three-year period from 
2014-2016 compared to its peer group.  For 2015, the TSR component of the award is based on the Company’s TSR 
over the three-year period from 2015-2017 compared to its peer group. TSR performance is determined based on 
changes in stock price plus dividends paid during the applicable performance periods.  The "Target" number of 
shares of Company common stock awarded to each named executive officer is determined by dividing  the 
applicable portion of their base salary by the by the fair value per share of the award on the grant date.  In 
accordance with applicable accounting rules, "fair value" for common stock awards that vest based on market 
conditions (such as TSR) is determined by an independent third party valuation firm using a lattice model. 

 The TSR peer group consists of a larger group than the Company’s pay comparator group, reflecting the 
Committee’s belief that the Company’s relative TSR performance should be measured against the other publicly 
traded homebuilding companies that the Company is likely competing against for investor dollars.  This peer group 
for 2014 included Lennar Corp., PulteGoup, Inc., D.R. Horton, Inc., NVR, Inc., Brookfield Residential Properties, 
Inc., Taylor Morrison Home Corporation, Toll Brothers, Inc., TRI Pointe Homes, Inc., Hovnanian Enterprises, Inc., 
Beazer Homes USA, Inc., M.D.C. Holdings, Inc., The Ryland Group, Meritage Homes Corporation, and KB Home.  
Brookfield Residential Properties, Inc. was eliminated from the peer group for 2015 because it has announced it will 
no longer be a public company. 



 

31 

2014 Named Executive Officer Annual Cash Incentive Compensation Payouts 

Chief Executive Officer.  In addition to his initial base salary of $930,000, Scott D. Stowell was provided the 
opportunity to earn annual cash incentive compensation of between 0 and 250% of his base salary based on the 
Company’s 2014 pre-tax income.  The target annual cash incentive compensation for 2014 for Mr. Stowell was 
125% of his base salary and was to be earned if the Company achieved its pre-tax income target of $325 million 
reflected in the Company’s 2014 business plan, a 26% increase over the Company's actual 2013 pre-tax income.  
The Committee also established a $275 million pre-tax income minimum performance threshold, a nearly 7% 
increase over the Company's actual 2013 pre-tax income, the achievement of which would result in Mr. Stowell 
earning cash incentive compensation equal to 62.5% of his base salary.  The Company’s actual pre-tax income for 
2014 was $350 million, 108% of the $325 million target level of pre-tax earnings necessary for Mr. Stowell to earn 
the targeted level of incentive compensation.  As a result, Mr. Stowell received 2014 annual cash incentive 
compensation of $1,355,976, equal to 146% of his initial base salary under this program. 

 
In August 2014, in light of Mr. Stowell’s performance and a review of his compensation level relative to his 

peers, the Committee increased his base salary from $930,000 to $1,000,000.  The Committee also created a 
supplemental cash incentive program for Mr. Stowell based on the Company’s achievement of a targeted level of 
$215.1 million in pre-tax income for the six month period commencing July 1, 2014.  If this targeted level were 
achieved, Mr. Stowell would earn an additional $450,000 in cash incentive compensation.  Mr. Stowell would not be 
entitled to earn any additional cash incentive compensation unless a threshold level of $182.0 million in pre-tax 
income for this six month period was achieved (85% of the target), at which level he would earn a bonus of 
$225,000 and would be eligible to earn up at a maximum of $900,000 in additional cash incentive compensation if 
the Company earned $314.4 million in pre-tax income (146% of the target).  The Company’s actual pre-tax income 
for the six month period commencing July 1, 2014 was $196.5 million, or 91% of the $215.1 million target level of 
pre-tax earnings necessary for Mr. Stowell to earn the targeted level of additional incentive compensation.  As a 
result, Mr. Stowell received additional 2014 annual cash incentive compensation of $323,591 under this program. 

 
Chief Financial Officer.  In addition to his base salary of $670,000, Jeff J. McCall was provided the 

opportunity to earn annual cash incentive compensation of between 0 and 200% of his base salary based on the 
Company’s 2014 pre-tax income.  The target annual cash incentive for Mr. McCall was 100% of his base salary and 
was to be earned if the Company achieved its pre-tax income target of $325 million reflected in the Company’s 2014 
business plan, a 26% increase over the Company's actual 2013 pre-tax income.  The Committee also established a 
$275 million pre-tax income minimum performance threshold, a nearly 7% increase over the Company's actual 2013 
pre-tax income, the achievement of which would result in Mr. McCall earning cash incentive compensation equal to 
50% of his base salary.  The Company’s actual pre-tax income for 2014 was $350 million, 108% of the $325 million 
target level of pre-tax earnings necessary for Mr. McCall to earn the targeted level of incentive compensation.  As a 
result, Mr. McCall received 2014 annual cash incentive compensation of $781,509, equal to 117% of his base salary. 

Chief Marketing Officer and Chief Legal Officer.  In addition to their base salaries of $560,000 and $490,000, 
Wendy L. Marlett, the Company’s Chief Marketing Officer, and John P. Babel, the Company’s Chief Legal Officer, 
were provided the opportunity to earn annual cash incentive compensation of between 0% and 100% of their base 
salaries, with the targeted amount of annual cash incentive compensation set at 50% of their base salaries.  This 
targeted amount of annual cash incentive compensation was to be earned if: (i) the Company achieved its pre-tax 
income target of $325 million reflected in the Company’s 2014 business plan (60% of the targeted amount would be 
earned), (ii) Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel achieved their individual performance goals (20% of the targeted amount 
would be earned), and (iii) the Chief Executive Officer and the Committee subjectively determined that their 
performance warranted a targeted level of compensation (20% of the targeted amount would be earned) based on a 
variety of Company, department and other individual performance measures.  The Committee also established a 
minimum performance threshold of $275 million for the pre-tax income component of their annual cash incentive 
compensation program (no annual incentive compensation would be paid with respect to the pre-tax income 
component if the Company did not achieve at least $275 million in pre-tax income for 2014) and minimum 
performance thresholds for each of Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel’s individual goals.  Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel would 
have earned cash incentive compensation equal to just 20% of their base salaries if the Company achieved the pre-
tax income threshold of $275 million, they each achieved a minimum level of performance on their individual 
performance goals, and they were not awarded any part of the subjectively determined bonus. 

Ms. Marlett received a payout of $326,601, or 58% of her base salary for 2014, reflecting the Company’s  
performance at 108% of its 2014 business plan with respect to pre-tax income (discussed above), the Chief 
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Executive Officer and Committee’s subjective view that Ms. Marlett was entitled to receive her targeted level of 
compensation for achievement of department and individual performance measures, and Ms. Marlett’s achievement 
of the targeted level of performance on her three individual performance goals, successfully developing an online 
sales strategy, improving the customer sales experience, and enhancing the Company’s customer relationship 
management system.  Mr. Babel received a payout of $285,776, or 58% of his base salary for 2014, reflecting the 
Company’s performance at 108% of its 2014 business plan with respect to pre-tax income (discussed in the first 
paragraph of this section above), the Chief Executive Officer and Committee’s subjective view that Mr. Babel was 
entitled to receive his targeted level of compensation for achievement of department and individual performance 
measures, and Mr. Babel’s achievement of the targeted level of performance on his two individual performance 
goals, successfully developing a new nationwide sales disclosure program and establishing a revised framework for 
the Company’s customer care program. 

2014 Named Executive Officer Equity Awards 

For 2014, the Company provided an equity grant to each of the Company’s named executive officers, the 
dollar value of each grant expressed as a percentage of the executive’s base salary (350%, 200%, 100% and 100%, 
respectively, for Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel).  The 2014 awards consist of 33 1/3% 
restricted common stock, 33 1/3% capped common stock appreciation rights ($4.00 appreciation cap) and 33 1/3% 
performance share awards.  The dollar value of the grant for each executive for 2014 reflects the Committee’s view 
of each individual’s scope of responsibility and the total compensation package of similarly situated executives 
among the Company’s pay comparators.  The mix of equity awards reflects the Committee’s attempt to balance the 
important retentive value of equity awards that vest over time with its desire to align the interests of Company 
executives with those of stockholders.   

 
Capped Stock Appreciation Rights and Restricted Stock.  The 2014 capped stock appreciation rights and 

restricted stock vest in three equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the issuance date; provided, 
that, in order for the restricted stock to begin vesting the Company was required to achieve a threshold level of $275 
million in pre-tax income for 2014. This performance threshold was achieved as the Company earned $350 million 
in pre-tax income for this period.  One-half of the dollar value of these awards was issued on April 1, 2014 ($8.44 
grant price) and one-half on October 1, 2014 ($7.40 grant price).  Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. 
Babel, were issued 541,147, 222,776, 93,100 and 81,462 capped stock appreciation rights on April 1, 2014 and 
550,649, 226,688, 94,736 and 82,893 on October 1, 2014, respectively.  They were also issued 64,277, 26,461, 
11,058 and 9,676 shares of restricted stock on April 1, 2014 and 73,310, 30,180, 12,612 and 11,036 shares on 
October 1, 2014, respectively.  These awards are also discussed on page 29. 

 
In addition, on August 5, 2014, in light of Mr. Stowell’s performance and a review of his compensation level 

relative to his peers, the Company awarded Mr. Stowell supplemental capped stock appreciation rights and restricted 
stock grants.  The capped stock appreciations rights and restricted stock grants each have a grant date fair value of 
$300,000 and vest in three equal installments on each of August 5, 2015, April 1, 2016 and April 1, 2017.  The 
capped stock appreciation rights are subject to a $4.00 appreciation cap.  The restricted stock grant was conditional 
upon the achievement of a pre-tax income based performance threshold of $182 million for the six month period 
commencing July 1, 2014.  This performance threshold was achieved as the Company earned $196.5 million in pre-
tax income for this period. 

 
Performance Share Awards.  On April 1, 2014, Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel, were 

issued performance share awards with the target number of shares for each executive set at 97,450, 40,117, 16,765 
and 14,669, respectively.  The number of shares of stock ultimately issued to each executive with respect to the 2014 
performance share award program cannot yet be determined.  The terms of this award are described in more detail 
beginning on page 29.       

2015 Named Executive Officer Compensation Actions 

Chief Executive Officer.  Scott D. Stowell will continue to receive a base salary of $1,000,000 in 2015.  In 
addition to Mr. Stowell’s base salary, he has been provided the opportunity to earn annual cash incentive 
compensation of between 0% and 300% of his base salary (with a target of 150%) based on the Company’s 2015 
pre-tax income.  The Committee has established a minimum performance threshold for 2015 pre-tax income below 
which Mr. Stowell will earn no annual cash incentive compensation and which, if achieved, would result in Mr. 
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Stowell earning cash incentive compensation equal to just 75% of his base salary.  Alternatively, if the threshold 
level of 2015 pre-tax income is not achieved, Mr. Stowell will be entitled to receive cash incentive compensation of 
up to 75% of his base salary if the Company exceeds a threshold number of home deliveries during 2015.  In 
addition, Mr. Stowell was granted long term equity incentive compensation, consisting of 33 1/3% Restricted Stock, 
33 1/3% Capped Stock Appreciation Right, and 33 1/3% Performance Share Award with a grant date fair value of 
350% of his base salary.  

Chief Financial Officer.  Jeff J. McCall will receive a base salary of $700,000 for 2015 (effective April 1, 
2015).  In addition to his base salary, Mr. McCall has been provided the opportunity to earn annual cash incentive 
compensation of between 0% and 200% of his base salary (with a target of 100%) based on the Company’s 2015 
pre-tax income.  The Committee has established a minimum performance threshold for 2015 pre-tax income below 
which Mr. McCall will earn no annual cash incentive compensation and which, if achieved, would result in Mr. 
McCall earning cash incentive compensation equal to just 50% of his base salary.  In addition, Mr. McCall was 
granted long term equity incentive compensation, consisting of 33 1/3% Restricted Stock, 33 1/3% Capped Stock 
Appreciation Right, and 33 1/3% Performance Share Award with a grant date fair value of 200% of his base salary. 

Chief Marketing Officer.  Wendy L. Marlett will receive a base salary of $575,000 for 2015 (effective April 1, 
2015).  In addition to her base salary, Ms. Marlett has been provided the opportunity to earn annual cash incentive 
compensation of between 0% and 100% of her base salary (with a target of 50%), based 60% on the Company’s 
2015 pre-tax income, 20% on individual performance goals related to the refinement of the Company’s option sales 
program and the enhancement of the Company’s mobile customer platform, and 20% upon the Chief Executive 
Officer and the Committee’s subjective evaluation of her performance.  The Committee has established a minimum 
performance threshold for 2015 pre-tax income and a minimum level of achievement with respect to individual 
performance goals below which Ms. Marlett will earn no annual cash incentive compensation and which, if 
achieved, would result in Ms. Marlett earning cash incentive compensation equal to just 20% of her base salary.  In 
addition, Ms. Marlett was granted long term equity incentive compensation, consisting of 33 1/3% Restricted Stock, 
33 1/3% Capped Stock Appreciation Right, and 33 1/3% Performance Share Award with a grant date fair value of 
100% of her base salary. 

Chief Legal Officer.  John P. Babel will receive a base salary of $505,000 for 2015 (effective April 1, 2015).  
In addition to his base salary, Mr. Babel has been provided the opportunity to earn annual cash incentive 
compensation of between 0% and 100% of his base salary (with a target of 50%), based 60% on the Company’s 
2015 pre-tax income, 20% on individual performance goals related to the refinement of the Company’s program for 
managing homeowner association relationships and completing a review of the Company’s outside counsel 
relationships, and 20% upon the Chief Executive Officer and the Committee’s subjective evaluation of his 
performance.  The Committee has established a minimum performance threshold for 2015 pre-tax income and a 
minimum level of achievement with respect to individual performance goals below which Mr. Babel will earn no 
annual cash incentive compensation and which, if achieved, would result in Mr. Babel earning cash incentive 
compensation equal to just 20% of his base salary.  In addition, Mr. Babel was granted long term equity incentive 
compensation, consisting of 33 1/3% Restricted Stock, 33 1/3% Capped Stock Appreciation Right, and 33 1/3% 
Performance Share Award with a grant date fair value of 100% of his base salary. 

 
Employment Related Agreements 

On March 8, 2012, the Committee authorized the Company to enter into a Severance and Change in Control 
Protection Agreement with each of its named executive officers. Under these agreements, if the executive’s 
employment with the Company is terminated without cause (cause generally consisting of various bad acts described 
more particularly in the agreement) other than in connection with a change in control, the executive is entitled to 
receive a lump sum payment equal to a multiple (CEO 2x, other named executive officers 1.5x) of the sum of his or 
her current base salary plus his or her target annual cash incentive bonus for the year prior to the year of termination, 
and Company paid COBRA for two years in the case of the CEO, and 1.5 years in the case of the other named 
executive officers.  No special treatment of equity awards is provided. 
 

If the executive’s employment with the Company is terminated by the Company without cause or by the 
executive for good reason (generally consisting of adverse changes in responsibilities, compensation, benefits or 
location of work place) in connection with a change in control (i.e., "Double-Trigger" required for payouts), the 
executive is entitled to receive a lump sum payment equal to a multiple (CEO 3x, other named executive officers 2x) 
of the sum of his or her current base salary plus his or her target bonus for the year of termination, Company paid 
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COBRA for three years in the case of the CEO and 2 years in the case of the other named executive officers, and an 
additional pro-rata bonus.  The amount of the pro-rata bonus is determined by multiplying the target bonus for the 
year of termination by the quotient obtained by dividing the number of days in the year up to and including the date 
of termination by 365.  In addition, all unvested equity awards will vest as of the date of termination. 
 

The change-in-control component of these agreements reflect the Committee’s belief that the interests of 
stockholders will be best served if the interests of the Company’s named executive officers are aligned with the 
stockholders, and that providing change in control benefits should eliminate or at least reduce the reluctance of 
executive management to pursue potential change in control transactions that may be in the best interests of 
stockholders.  The Committee believes that the overall cost and design of both the severance and change-in-control 
programs are consistent with market norms.  In order to receive payments under the agreements the executives must 
execute the Company’s standard form release agreement, which includes non-solicitation, non-disparagement and 
confidentiality requirements. 
 
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-in-Control  
 

The following table provides an estimate of the total cash payment and other value that would have been 
received by each named executive officer assuming that the Company had become obligated to pay the executive 
officers either severance or change-in-control benefits on December 31, 2014.  

ESTIMATED VALUE OF TERMINATION AND CHANGE-IN-CONTROL BENEFITS 

 

Change-In-Control Benefit(1) 

Double Trigger 

 (CIC + Termination) 

Severance Benefit(2) 

Termination 

Without Cause 

 (No CIC) 

Name 
 

Cash 
+

Unvested 
Equity Awards (3)

=
Total Cash 

Scott D. Stowell $9,450,000 + $7,224,302 = $16,674,302 $3,800,000 

Jeff J. McCall $3,350,000 + $3,123,836 = $6,473,836 $1,980,000 

Wendy L. Marlett $1,960,000 + $1,057,505 = $3,017,505 $1,245,563 

John P. Babel $1,715,000 + $934,588 = $2,649,588 $1,091,250 

(1) Benefit is equal to a multiple of the sum of base salary and 2014 target bonus, plus an additional pro-rated bonus.  The amount of the pro-
rata bonus is determined by multiplying the target bonus for the year of termination by the quotient obtained by dividing the number of days 
in the year up to and including the date of termination by 365.  For purposes of this example, the pro-rata bonus has been calculated using a 
full year for 2014.  (Multiple = 3x CEO; 2x other named executive officers).  In addition, all unvested equity awards vest. 

(2) Benefit is equal to a multiple of the sum of base salary and 2013 target bonus (Multiple = 2x CEO; 1.5x other named executive officers).  
No acceleration or other special treatment of equity awards is provided when an executive’s employment is terminated by the Company 
without cause.  

(3) In accordance with SEC rules, this amount represents the difference between the Company’s stock price of $7.29 at December 31, 2014 and 
the applicable stock award price, multiplied by all unvested stock awards held by the named executive officer as of December 31, 2014.  
For the purposes of this calculation, in accordance with the performance share award agreements, amounts related to performance share 
awards include the "target" number of shares of Company common stock that will be issued to each named executive officer in the event of 
a change-in-control. 

Tax Deductibility of Named Executive Officer Compensation  

The Committee generally attempts to structure executive compensation in a manner so as to minimize the 
impact of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.  Under Section 162(m), a company may not deduct non-
performance based compensation in excess of $1,000,000 paid to a named executive officer (other than the Chief 
Financial Officer). The Committee believes that it is generally in the Company’s best interests for its executives’ 
compensation to meet the requirements of Section 162(m).  Accordingly, the Committee has taken appropriate 
actions, to the extent it believes feasible, to preserve the deductibility of the annual incentive and long-term awards 
it pays to executives. However, notwithstanding this general policy, the Committee also believes that there may be 
circumstances in which the Company’s interests are best served by maintaining flexibility in the way compensation 
is provided, whether or not compensation is fully deductible under Section 162(m).  For instance, during 2012 and 
2013, the Committee determined, in consultation with SH&P, that it was appropriate to make time based restricted 
stock grants to the Company’s executive officers.  Time based restricted stock grants are not considered 
performance based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m).  As a result, we anticipate that as these restricted 
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stock grants vest, a portion of this compensation will likely not be deductible.  For 2013 and 2014, the non-
deductible portion of compensation attributable to this vesting was approximately $160,000 and $531,171, 
respectively.  Beginning in 2014, the Committee modified our executive restricted stock award program to introduce 
a performance condition to our executive restricted stock awards that is intended to make the restricted stock awards 
deductible performance based compensation for purposes of Section 162(m).  

Other Compensation Related Plans and Policies 

401(k) Retirement and Savings Plan.  All employees, including the named executive officers, may participate 
in the Company’s 401(k) Retirement and Savings Plan (the "401(k) Plan"). Each employee may elect to make 
before-tax contributions up to the current tax limits. The Company matches employee contributions up to $5,000 per 
employee per year. The Company does not maintain separate or supplemental retirement plans for executives or key 
employees. 

Executive Stock Ownership Guidelines.  In March 2012, the Compensation Committee adopted new Executive 
Stock Ownership Guidelines for the purpose of further aligning the interests and actions of the executives with the 
interests of the Company’s stockholders.  Under the guidelines, our named executive officers are required to hold a 
multiple of their base salary in Company common stock (CEO 3x, other named executive officers 2x). Each such 
executive officer is required to reach full compliance with the guidelines within five years of the date he or she first 
becomes subject to the guidelines.  If an executive officer fails to reach compliance with the guidelines within the 
five year phase in period, he or she will be paid 100% of annual incentive compensation in common stock until 
compliance is achieved.  He or she will also be required to hold at least fifty percent of all common stock awarded to 
him or her (excluding shares sold to fund tax liabilities associated with the receipt or vesting of awards) until the 
required ownership threshold is met.  As of December 31, 2014, each of our named executive officers was in 
compliance with the guidelines because they were within the five year phase in period. 

Prohibitions on Hedging and Pledging Company Stock.  In order to avoid creating conflicts between an 
executive’s interests and those of other stockholders, our Insider Trading Policy prohibits all covered persons, 
including executives, from hedging the economic risk of owning Company shares.  In addition, in April 2013, the 
Board implemented a prohibition on the pledging of Company stock by directors and named executive officers.  
This policy was effective April 1, 2014.  These prohibitions do not apply to stock held by MatlinPatterson and its 
affiliates, which may be deemed to be held by MatlinPatterson affiliated Board members David Matlin and Peter 
Schoels under applicable beneficial ownership rules. 
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Summary Compensation Table  

The following table summarizes the compensation of the Company’s named executive officers for 2012, 2013 
and 2014.  

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 
                                         

Name and Principal 
Position    Year    

Salary 
($)   

Stock 
Awards 

($)(2)   

Option 
Awards 
($)(2)    

Non-Equity 
Incentive Plan 
Compensation

($)(1)    

All Other 
Compensation 

($)(3)    
Total 

($)
Scott D. Stowell 
(Chief Executive 
Officer) 

2014 951,667 2,469,979 1,385,000 1,679,567 6,063 6,492,276 

 2013  887,500  1,800,000  900,000  1,800,000  6,067  5,393,567 

 2012  825,000  1,275,000  1,127,330  1,700,000  5,293  4,932,623 

Jeff J. McCall 
(Chief Financial 
Officer) 

 2014 665,000 893,315  446,666  781,509  19,037  2,805,527 

 2013  625,000  736,666  368,334  1,300,000  5,275  3,035,275 

 2012  550,000  412,500  605,720  1,100,000  57,793  2,726,013 

Wendy L. Marlett 
(Chief Marketing 
Officer) 

2014 555,187 373,318  186,667  326,601  5,583  1,447,356 

 2013  536,813  270,376  135,187  432,600  5,587  1,380,563 

 2012  525,000  196,875  159,269  406,875  5,293  1,293,312 

John P. Babel 
(Chief Legal Officer)  

2014 
 

486,250 326,648  163,332  285,776  5,271  1,267,277 

 2013  462,500  237,500  118,750  380,000  5,275  1,204,025 

 2012  425,000  159,373  146,769  340,000  5,293  1,076,435 

(1) Annual bonus and non-equity incentive plan compensation is generally paid in February for the prior year’s performance.  The 2014 
amounts are described in more detail in the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section of this proxy statement under the heading 
"2014 Named Executive Officer Annual Cash Incentive Compensation Payouts". 

(2) The amounts reflected in these columns are the aggregate grant date fair values of equity awards.  The methodology and assumptions used 
to calculate these values are set forth in Note 12 (Stock Incentive and Employee Benefit Plans) to our consolidated financial statements 
contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.  The 2014 amounts in the "Stock Awards" column 
represent the grant date fair value of restricted stock and performance share awards granted to each executive as long-term equity 
compensation.  The restricted stock issued to each executive vests in three equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the 
issuance date if a threshold level of pre-tax income is achieved, and the number of performance shares ultimately issued to each executive in 
2014 will be based on the Company’s actual earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2016, subject to a minimum earnings per 
share threshold and the relative total shareholder return for the three-year period 2014-2016.  The 2014 amounts in the "Option Awards" 
column represent the grant date fair value of capped stock appreciation rights which vest in three equal installments on each of the first three 
anniversaries of the issuance date. These awards are described in more detail in the "Compensation Discussion and Analysis" section under 
the heading "Overview of 2014 and 2015 Named Executive Officer Compensation" in this proxy statement. The grant date fair value of the 
performance share awards included in this column is equal to the dollar amount of the "Target" award.  For further information about the 
grant date fair value assuming the maximum performance level is achieved, see footnote (5) to the Grants of Plan-Based Awards table.   

(3) Includes premiums on life, long-term disability, and travel and accident insurance coverage paid by the Company and the Company’s 
contribution to the executive’s 401(k) Plan account. In addition, amounts in this column include $13,765 of commuting expenses and 
$52,500 of relocation related costs paid to Mr. McCall in 2014 and 2012, respectively.  Except as noted above, none of the amounts 
described in this footnote exceed $10,000. 
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards 

The following table sets forth information concerning awards granted under the Company’s equity and non-
equity incentive plans for 2014 to each of the Company’s named executive officers.  These awards are described in 
more detail under the headings "Overview of 2014 and 2015 Named Executive Officer Compensation" and "2014 
Named Executive Officer Annual Cash Incentive Compensation Payouts" contained in the "Compensation 
Discussion and Analysis" section of this proxy statement. 

 

   

Estimated Future Payouts 
Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan 

Awards 
Estimated Future Payouts Under 

Equity Incentive Plan Awards 

All Other 
Option 

Awards: 
Number of 
Securities 

Underlying  
Options 

(#)(3) 

Exercise 
or Base 
Price of 
Option  
Awards 
($/Sh) 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 

of Stock 
and Option 

Awards 
($)(4) 

 

Name    
Grant 
Date 

 Compensation 
Committee 

Approval Date 

 
Threshold 

($)(1) 

 
Target    
($)(1) 

Maximum  
($)(1) 

Threshold 
(#)(2) 

Target    
(#)(2) 

Maximum 
(#)(2) 

 

Scott D. 
Stowell ......

   
 

 
581,250 1,162,500 2,325,000 — — — —  — —

  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — — — — 541,147 8.44 542,500
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 64,277 64,277 64,277 — — 542,498
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 64,277 64,277 257,108 — — 542,498 (5)
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 33,173 33,173 132,692 — — 542,489 (5)
     225,000 450,000 900,000 — — — — — —
  08/05/14  07/28/14 — — — — — — 304,259 7.54 300,000
  08/05/14  07/28/14 — — — 39,787 39,787 39,787 — — 300,000
  10/01/14  03/14/14 — — — — — — 550,649 7.40 542,500
  10/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 73,310 73,310 73,310 — — 542,494
       
Jeff J. 
McCall ......

   
 

 
 335,000 670,000 1,340,000 — — — — — — 

 04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — — — — 222,776 8.44 223,333
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 26,461 26,461 26,461 — — 223,331
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 26,461 26,461 105,844 — — 223,331 (5)
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 13,656 13,656 54,624 — — 223,321 (5)
  10/01/14  03/14/14 — — — — — — 226,688 7.40 223,333
  10/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 30,180 30,180 30,180 — — 223,332
       
Wendy L. 
Marlett ......

   
 

 
 112,000 280,000 560,000 — — — — — —

  04/01/14  03/14/14 —  — — — — — 93,100  8.44 93,333
  04/01/14  03/14/14 —  — — 11,058 11,058 11,058 —  — 93,330
  04/01/14  03/14/14 —  — — 11,058 11,058 44,232 —  — 93,330 (5)
  04/01/14  03/14/14 —  — — 5,707 5,707 22,828 —  — 93,329 (5)
  10/01/14  03/14/14 —  — — — — — 94,736  7.40 93,334  
  10/01/14  03/14/14 —  — — 12,612 12,612 12,612 —  — 93,329  
        
John P. 
Babel .........

   
 

 
 98,000 245,000 490,000 — — — —  — —

  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — — — — 81,462 8.44 81,666
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 9,676 9,676 9,676 — — 81,665
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 9,676 9,676 38,704 — — 81,665 (5)
  04/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 4,993 4,993 19,972 — — 81,652 (5)
  10/01/14  03/14/14 — — — — — — 82,893 7.40 81,666  
  10/01/14  03/14/14 — — — 11,036 11,036 11,036 — — 81,666  
        

(1) The amounts in these columns reflect the threshold, target and maximum potential payouts to our executives under their 2014 annual cash 
incentive compensation plans.  The amount reflected as the "Threshold" is the amount of cash that would be payable to the executive if the 
Company achieved the $275 million pre-tax minimum performance threshold established by the Committee and Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel 
achieved a minimum level of performance on their individual performance goals and were not awarded a discretionary bonus.  The amount 
reflected as the "Target" is the amount of cash that would be payable to the executive if the Company achieved the $325 million pre-tax 
income target contained in the Company’s 2014 business plan and Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel achieved their targeted level of performance 
on their individual performance goals and received their targeted level of discretionary bonus.  The amount reflected as the "Maximum" is 
the amount of cash that would be payable to the executive if the Company’s 2014 pre-tax income were to exceed $475 million and Ms. 
Marlett and Mr. Babel achieved their targeted level of performance on their individual performance goals and received their targeted level 
of discretionary bonus.  The potential payouts to Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel were also dependent upon their achievement of various 
individual performance goals and upon the Chief Executive Officer and the Committee’s subjective evaluation of their 2014 performance. 
Under these plans, Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel were paid cash incentive bonuses of $1,355,976, $781,509, 
$326,601 and $285,776, respectively.  In August 2014, in light of Mr. Stowell’s performance and a review of his compensation level 
relative to his peers, the Committee created a supplemental cash incentive program for Mr. Stowell. The amount reflected as the 
"Threshold",  "Target" and "Maximum" for Mr. Stowell’s August 1, 2014 cash incentive award is the amount of cash that would be payable 
to him if the Company achieved $182.0 million, $215.1 million and $314.4 million, respectively, in pre-tax income for the six month period 
commencing July 1, 2014. Under this supplemental cash incentive program, Mr. Stowell received $323,591 in addition to his cash incentive 
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bonus discussed above. These cash bonuses have been earned and paid and are reflected in the "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation" 
column of the Summary Compensation Table.  

(2) The amounts reflected in these columns represent long-term equity award compensation related to restricted stock and performance share 
awards that could be earned by our executives based on Company performance.  Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel 
received the following grants of restricted common stock: 64,277, 26,461, 11,058 and 9,676 shares on April 1, 2014 and 73,310, 30,180, 
12,612 and 11,036 shares on October 1, 2014, respectively.  These shares are reflected as the "Threshold", "Target" and "Maximum" 
amounts since the vesting was dependent upon the Company achieving a threshold level of $275 million in pre-tax income that the 
Company achieved for 2014.  Subject to achievement of the threshold level of pretax income, the restricted stock vests in three equal 
installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the issuance date.  Mr. Stowell was also awarded 39,787 shares of restricted common 
stock on August 1, 2014, in light of his performance and a review of his compensation level relative to his peers.  These shares are reflected 
as the "Threshold", "Target" and "Maximum" amounts since the vesting was dependent upon the Company achieving a threshold level of 
$182 million in pre-tax income for the six month period commencing July 1, 2014 that the Company achieved.  Subject to achievement of 
the threshold level of pretax income, these shares of restricted stock vest in three equal installments on each of August 5, 2015, April 1, 
2016 and April 1, 2017.  The grant date fair value of the restricted stock is reflected in the "Stock Awards" column of the Summary 
Compensation Table.  Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel were also granted performance share awards with the target 
number of shares to be issued being set at 64,277, 26,461, 11,058 and 9,676, respectively, with payouts up to four times the target number 
of shares based on the Company’s actual earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2016.  The amounts reflected as the 
"Threshold" and "Target" are the number of shares that will be issued to each executive if targeted 2016 earnings per share is achieved.  No 
shares will be issued to the executives if this targeted level of performance is not achieved.  The amount reflected as the "Maximum" is the 
number of shares that will be issued to each executive if "maximum" 2016 earnings per share is achieved.  Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. 
Marlett and Mr. Babel were also granted performance share awards with the target number of shares to be issued being set at 33,173, 
13,656, 5,707 and 4,993, respectively, with payouts up to four times the target number of shares based on the Company’s relative total 
shareholder return (TSR) performance over a three-year period from 2014-2016 in comparison to the TSR performance of a comparative 
peer group selected by the Compensation Committee, with payouts up to four times the target number of shares based on actual TSR 
performance, subject to minimum TSR thresholds.  The amounts reflected as the "Threshold" and "Target" are the number of shares that 
will be issued to each executive if a targeted TSR ranking among the comparative peer group is achieved.  No shares will be issued to the 
executives if this targeted TSR ranking is not achieved.  The amount reflected as the "Maximum" is the number of shares that will be issued 
to each executive if "maximum" TSR ranking is achieved.  The grant date fair value of the performance share awards are at the target level 
reflected in the "Stock Awards" column of the Summary Compensation Table.  In accordance with applicable accounting rules, the fair 
value for common stock awards that vest based on company performance (such as earnings per share) is the Company’s common stock 
closing price per share on the grant date and the fair value for common stock awards that vest based on market conditions (such as TSR) is 
determined by an independent third party valuation firm using a lattice model.  See footnote (5) below for information about the grant date 
fair value of these awards if the maximum performance level is achieved.   

(3) The amounts reflected in this column represent capped stock appreciation rights granted to Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. 
Babel under their individual incentive compensation programs for 2014, which vest in three equal installments on each of the first three 
anniversaries of the issuance date. The grant date fair value of these stock awards are reflected in the "Option Awards" column of the 
Summary Compensation Table.   

(4) For a description of the methodology and assumptions used to calculate the grant date fair value of our stock awards, please see Note 12 
(Stock Incentive and Employee Benefit Plans) to our consolidated financial statements contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
the year ended December 31, 2014. 

(5) The grant date fair value of the performance share awards is equal to the dollar amount of the "Target" award.  On the grant date for these 
awards, the Company estimated that it was probable that the performance conditions necessary to earn the "Target" award would be 
satisfied.  If the maximum performance level is achieved, the grant date fair value of the 2014 performance share awards for Messrs. 
Stowell and McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel would be $4,339,948, $1,786,608, $746,636 and $653,268, respectively.     
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Outstanding Equity Awards At Fiscal Year End 

The following table provides a summary of equity awards granted to each of the Company’s named executive 
officers that were outstanding as of December 31, 2014.  

 
   Option Awards   Stock Awards 

   

   

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 
Options (#) 

   

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 
Options (#) 

   
Equity 

Incentive 
Plan Awards:

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 
Unearned 
Options 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Option 
Exercise

Price

  

Option 
Expiration

  
Number 

of 
Shares 

or Units 
of Stock 

That 
Have 
Not 

Vested

   

Market 
Value of 
Shares or 
Units of 
Stock 

That Have 
Not Vested 

(17) 

 Equity 
Incentive Plan 

Awards: 
Number of 
Unearned 

Shares, Units 
or Other 

Rights That 
Have Not 

Vested 

 Equity 
Incentive Plan 

Awards: 
Market or 

Payout Value of 
Unearned 

Shares, Units or 
Other Rights 

That Have Not 
Vested (17) 

Name  Exercisable  Unexercisable  (#)  ($) Date (#)  ($)  (#)  ($) 
        
 Scott D. Stowell  19,999    —    —  4.0200  02/07/2015  —    — — —

  1,165,947    —    —  3.1000  08/22/2015  —    — — —
  1,000,000    —    —  0.6700  03/09/2016  —    — — —

288,233  144,117 (1) —  4.2900 04/01/2017 —  — — —
300,000  —  600,000 (2) 4.2900 04/01/2017 —  — — —

—  —  —  — — 33,023 (3) 240,738 — —
—  —  —  — — 792,540 (4) 5,777,617 —  —

348,190  696,378 (5) —  8.3900 04/01/2018 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 71,514 (6) 521,337 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 107,271 (7) 782,006
—  541,147 (8) —  8.4400 04/01/2019 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 64,277 (9) 468,579 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 64,277 (10) 468,579
—  —  —  — — —  — 33,173 (10) 241,831
—  304,259 (11) —  7.5400 08/05/2019 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 39,787 (12) 290,047 —  —
—  550,649 (13) —  7.4000 10/01/2019 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 73,310 (14) 534,430 —  —

                     

Jeff J. McCall  93,252 (15) 46,626 (1) (15) —  4.2900 04/01/2017 —  — —  —
200,000 (15) —  400,000 (2) (15) 4.2900 04/01/2017 —  — —  —

 —    —  —  —  —  10,684 (3) (15) 77,886 —  —
—  —  —  — — 256,412 (4) (15) 1,869,243 —  —

142,500 (15) 284,999 (5) (15) —  8.3900 04/01/2018 —  — —  —
1,300,000 (15) —  —  3.8000 06/01/2018 —  — —  —

—  —  —  — — 29,267 (6) (15) 213,356 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 43,901 (7) (15) 320,038
—  222,776 (8) —  8.4400 04/01/2019 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 26,461 (9) 192,901 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 26,461 (10) 192,901
—  —  —  — — —  — 13,656 (10) 99,552
—  226,688 (13) —  7.4000 10/01/2019 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 30,180 (14) 220,012 —  —

        

Wendy L. Marlett  44,507  22,253 (1) —  4.2900 04/01/2017 —  — —  —
40,000    —   80,000 (2) 4.2900  04/01/2017  —    — —  —

400,000  —  —  3.8100 09/07/2017 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 5,099 (3) 37,172 —  —
—  —  —  — — 122,376 (4) 892,121 —  —

52,301  104,601 (5) —  8.3900 04/01/2018 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 10,742 (6) 78,309 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 16,113 (7) 117,464
—  93,100 (8) —  8.4400 04/01/2019 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 11,058 (9) 80,613 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 11,058 (10) 80,613
—  —  —  — — —  — 5,707 (10) 41,604
—  94,736 (13) —  7.4000 10/01/2019 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 12,612 (14) 91,941 —  —

        

John P. Babel  150,000 (16) —    —  0.6700  03/09/2016  —    — —  —
36,029  18,015 (1) —  4.2900 04/01/2017 —  — —  —
40,000  —  80,000 (2) 4.2900 04/01/2017 —  — —  —

—  —  —  — — 4,128 (3) 30,093 —  —
—  —  —  — — 99,068 (4) 722,206 —  —

45,942  91,883 (5) —  8.3900 04/01/2018 —  — —  —
—  —  —  — — 9,436 (6) 68,788 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 14,154 (7) 103,183
—  81,462 (8) —  8.4400 04/01/2019 —  — —  —
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—  —  —  — — 9,676 (9) 70,538 —  —
—  —  —  — — —  — 9,676 (10) 70,538
—  —  —  — — —  — 4,993 (10) 36,399
—  82,893 (13) —  7.4000 10/01/2019 —  — —  —
—  — —  — — 11,036 (14) 80,452 —  —

       

(1) 4/2/2012 capped stock appreciation rights; the remaining award vests on 4/2/2015. 

(2) 4/2/2012 capped market-based stock appreciation rights; one half of the remaining award vests if the Company’s common stock closing 
price reaches nine ($9) and ten ($10) dollars, respectively, for twenty consecutive trading days over a five year award period ending on the 
award’s expiration date. 

(3) 4/2/2012 restricted stock award; the remaining award vests on 4/2/2015. 

(4) 4/2/2012 performance share award; in accordance with SEC rules, this amount represents the number of shares of Company common stock 
that will be issued to each executive if "maximum" earnings per share is achieved in 2014 under the executive’s performance share award 
agreement. 

(5) 4/1/2013 capped stock appreciation rights; one half of the remaining award vests on 4/1/2015 and 4/1/2016. 

(6) 4/1/2013 restricted stock award; one half of the remaining award vests on 4/1/2015 and 4/1/2016. 

(7) 4/1/2013 performance share award; in accordance with SEC rules, this amount represents the number of shares of Company common stock 
that will be issued to each executive if "target" earnings per share is achieved in 2015 under the executive’s performance share award 
agreement. On the date the performance share awards were granted, the Company estimated that it was probable that "target" earnings per 
share would be achieved in 2015.  As of the date of this proxy statement, the Company estimates that it is probable that the performance 
conditions necessary to earn 1.1818 times the "target" award will be achieved in 2015, which would result in the issuance of 126,772, 
51,882, 19,042 and 16,727 shares of common stock to Mr. Stowell, Mr. McCall, Ms. Marlett and Mr. Babel, respectively.  

(8) 4/1/2014 capped stock appreciation rights; one third of the award vests on 4/1/2015, 4/1/2016 and 4/1/2017. 

(9) 4/1/2014 restricted stock award; one third of the award vests on 4/1/2015, 4/1/2016 and 4/1/2017. 

(10) 4/1/2014 performance share award; in accordance with SEC rules, this amount represents the number of shares of Company common stock 
that will be issued to each executive if "target" 2015 earnings per share and relative total shareholder return ("TSR") performance over a 
three-year period from 2014-2016 is achieved under the executive’s performance share award agreement.  On the date the performance 
share awards were granted, and as of the date of this proxy statement, the Company estimates that it is probable that "target" 2015 earnings 
per share will be achieved in 2015 and "target" relative TSR performance over a three-year period from 2014-2016 in comparison to the 
TSR performance of a comparative peer group selected by the Compensation Committee will be achieved.   

(11) 8/5/2014 capped stock appreciation rights; one third of the award vests on 8/5/2015, 4/1/2016 and 4/1/2017. 

(12) 8/5/2014 restricted stock award; one third of the award vests on 8/5/2015, 4/1/2016 and 4/1/2017. 

(13) 10/1/2014 capped stock appreciation rights; one third of the award vests on 10/1/2015, 10/1/2016 and 10/1/2017. 

(14) 10/1/2014 restricted stock award; one third of the award vests on 10/1/2015, 10/1/2016 and 10/1/2017. 

(15) Mr. McCall’s equity awards are held in a family LLC for which Mr. McCall is the sole manager authorized to act on behalf of the LLC. 

(16) Mr. Babel’s stock options are held in family trusts for which Mr. Babel is a co-trustee. 

(17) Market value based on the closing price of Standard Pacific Corp. common stock on December 31, 2014 ($7.29).   

 

Option Exercises and Stock Vested 

The following table sets forth on an aggregated basis for each of the Company’s named executive officers, the 
number and value of shares of Common Stock acquired upon exercise of stock options, and the number and value of 
shares of Common Stock acquired upon vesting of restricted stock during 2014.   

 
  Option Awards  Stock Awards 

   

  Number of 
Shares Acquired

on Exercise

 

Value Realized 
on Exercise

 Number of 
Shares Acquired 

on Vesting 

 
Value Realized 

on Vesting
Name   (#)  ($)  (#)  ($)

Scott D. Stowell   414,054  2,170,777  68,779  579,504 
Jeff J. McCall   —  —  25,317  213,355 
Wendy L. Marlett   —  —  10,470  88,214 
John P. Babel   50,000 391,500  8,845  74,528 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

To: The Board of Directors 

The Audit Committee oversees the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors. 
The Company’s management has the primary responsibility for the financial statements, for maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, and for assessing the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the audited 
consolidated financial statements in the Annual Report on Form 10-K with Company management, including a 
discussion of the quality, not just the acceptability, of the accounting principles; the reasonableness of significant 
judgments; and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements.  

The Audit Committee reviewed with the independent registered public accounting firm, which is responsible 
for expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited consolidated financial statements with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles, its judgments as to the quality, not just the acceptability, of the Company’s 
accounting principles and such other matters it is required to discuss with the independent registered public 
accounting firm by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended, "Communication with Audit 
Committees," other standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), rules of the 
Securities and Exchange Commission, and other applicable regulations. In addition, the Audit Committee has 
discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the firm’s independence from Company 
management and the Company and received the written disclosures and letter from the firm required by applicable 
requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and considered the compatibility of non-audit 
services with the independent registered public accounting firm’s independence. 

The Audit Committee also reviewed and discussed management’s report on its assessment of the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and the independent registered public accounting firm’s 
report on management’s assessment and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

The Audit Committee discussed with the Company’s internal auditors and independent registered public 
accounting firm the overall scope and plans for their respective audits. The Audit Committee meets with the 
independent registered public accounting firm, with and without management present, to discuss the results of its 
examinations; its evaluations of the Company’s internal control, including internal control over financial reporting; 
and the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting.  

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board 
of Directors that the audited consolidated financial statements and management’s assessment of the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting be included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2014.  

Audit Committee 
Douglas C. Jacobs (Chairman) 

Bruce A. Choate  
John R. Peshkin 

The foregoing Report of the Audit Committee does not constitute soliciting material and should not be deemed 
filed or incorporated by reference into any Company filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to 
the extent the Company specifically incorporates this report. 
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INFORMATION CONCERNING AUDITOR 

Ernst & Young LLP was retained to audit the Company’s consolidated financial statements for 2014 and to 
provide various other services to the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, as part of its annual process, the 
Audit Committee will consider the appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor for fiscal year 2015.  
Representatives of Ernst & Young are expected to be present at the 2015 Annual Meeting and they will be given an 
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be available to respond to any appropriate 
questions from stockholders.  

Audit Fees and All Other Fees  

The following table sets forth the fees paid or accrued by the Company for the audit and other services 
provided by Ernst & Young for fiscal years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013.  

  

 
Fiscal Year Ended 

December 31, 
 2014 2013 
Audit Fees(1) $ 871,040 $ 852,715 
Audit-Related Fees(2) 1,995 340,745 
Tax Fees(3) 206,640 201,557 
All Other Fees —  — 
Total(4) $ 1,079,675 $ 1,395,017 
  

 
 

 

(1) Includes fees and expenses related to fiscal year audits and interim reviews of the Company and its financial services subsidiary, Standard 
Pacific Mortgage, Inc., services rendered related to consents and comfort letters provided in connection with securities offerings, and fees 
incurred in connection with auditing the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.  

(2) Consists primarily of fees to assist with diligence relating to potential acquisitions.  Also includes fees related to an online subscription to 
Ernst & Young’s internal accounting literature database.  

(3) Includes fees related to research with respect to various tax issues.  

(4) All fees listed above were approved by the Audit Committee.  

Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services  

The Audit Committee is responsible for pre-approving all audit and permissible non-audit services provided 
by the independent auditor. For audit services, each year the independent auditor provides the Audit Committee with 
an engagement letter outlining the scope of the audit and review services proposed to be performed during the year 
and the cost for performing such services, which must be formally approved by the Audit Committee before such 
services commence. 

Each year, management submits to the Audit Committee a list of audit-related and non-audit services with 
respect to which the independent auditor may be engaged. When assessing whether it is appropriate to engage the 
independent auditor to perform such services, the Audit Committee considers, among other things, whether such 
services are consistent with the auditor’s independence. For those services approved by the Audit Committee, the 
committee also establishes an aggregate cap on fees associated with such services. In addition, at each regular 
meeting of the Audit Committee management reports to the committee details of audit related and non-audit related 
services that were rendered by the independent auditor since the prior meeting. 

In order to expedite the handling of unexpected matters, the Audit Committee has authorized its Chairman to 
approve audit and non-audit services that do not fall within the pre-approved list. If the Chairman approves such 
services, he reports the action taken to the committee at its next regular meeting. All audit, audit-related and 
permissible non-audit services provided by the Company’s independent auditors to the Company for the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2014 were approved or pre-approved in accordance with the foregoing policy. In addition, the 
Audit Committee considered the provision of the services listed in the table above by Ernst & Young and 
determined that the provision of such services was compatible with maintaining the independence of Ernst & 
Young.   
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT 

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 15, 2015 (except as noted otherwise) regarding 
ownership of the Company’s Shares by (1) each director of the Company, (2) each executive officer of the Company 
named in the summary compensation table, (3) all directors and executive officers of the Company as a group, and 
(4) each person known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of the Company’s 
Shares. This table is based on information supplied to the Company by the Company’s executive officers and 
directors and on Schedule 13Gs filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  Except as noted below, the 
address of the named beneficial owner is c/o Standard Pacific Corp., 15360 Barranca Parkway, Irvine, California 
92618.   

 Common Stock Senior Preferred Stock 

Name of Beneficial Owner Shares(1) 
Percent of 

Class** Shares 
 Percent of 

Class 
Directors and Executive Officers       
Scott D. Stowell 4,761,705 1.7 — —
Jeff J. McCall 2,256,949 * — —
Wendy L. Marlett 714,586 * — —
John P. Babel 481,970 * — —
Bruce A. Choate 190,058 * — —
Ronald R. Foell 529,807 * — —
Douglas C. Jacobs 114,523 * — —
David J. Matlin (2) 126,400,000 (2) 267,829(3) 100
John R. Peshkin 45,083 * — —
Peter Schoels (2) 126,400,000 (2) 267,829(3) 100
Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (10 persons) 135,494,681 267,829(3) 100
5% Beneficial Owners 
MP CA Homes LLC (3) 126,400,000 (3) 267,829(3) 100
BlackRock, Inc. (4) 16,805,034 6.1 — —
 

* Less than one percent. 

** Applicable percentage of ownership is based on 273,767,469 shares of the Common Stock outstanding as of March 15, 2015.  To the 
Company’s knowledge, none of such shares have been pledged as security by any of the Company’s directors or executive officers. 

(1) The total number of shares listed in the "Shares" column for each named executive officer and director includes the following number of 
shares subject to stock options and stock appreciation rights held by such named executive officer or director which are exercisable within 
60 days after March 15, 2015:  Mr. Stowell 3,580,733, Mr. McCall 1,999,136, Ms. Marlett 592,395, Mr. Babel 363,082, and all directors 
and executive officers as a group 6,535,346.   

(2) As a result of his ownership interest in, and employment with, an affiliate of MP CA Homes, LLC, each of Mr. Matlin and Mr. Schoels may 
be deemed to be the beneficial owner of all of the shares of Common Stock and Series B Preferred Stock held by MP CA Homes, LLC, 
over which they may be deemed to have shared voting and dispositive power.  Please see footnote 3 below. 

(3) MP CA Homes LLC (identified as MatlinPatterson throughout the rest of this proxy statement), an affiliate of MatlinPatterson Global 
Advisers LLC, beneficially owns, and is the record holder of 267,829 shares of Series B Preferred Stock ("Junior Preferred Stock") and 
126,400,000 shares of Common Stock, with respect to which it has shared dispositive and voting power. The address of MP CA Homes 
LLC is 520 Madison Avenue, 35th Floor, New York, NY 10022-4213. The Junior Preferred Stock, together with the Common Stock held by 
MatlinPatterson, currently represent 49% of the total voting power of the Shares of the Company.  The Junior Preferred Stock will vote with 
the Common Stock on an as-converted basis provided that the votes attributable to shares of Junior Preferred Stock held by MatlinPatterson, 
together with votes attributable to shares of Common Stock held by MatlinPatterson, cannot exceed 49% of the total voting power of the 
voting power of the Shares of the Company.  The Junior Preferred Stock is initially convertible into up to 87,812,786 shares of Common 
Stock; however, MatlinPatterson is not entitled to convert the Junior Preferred Stock into Common Stock unless after such conversion it 
would hold no more than 49% of the voting power of the Shares of the Company.  Upon a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution 
or winding up of the Company, the holders of Junior Preferred Stock will receive the amount payable if the Junior Preferred Stock had been 
converted into Common Stock immediately prior to the liquidating distribution.  For such purposes, the as-converted number for the Junior 
Preferred Stock would be 87,812,786 shares of Common Stock, which, together with the 126,400,000 shares of Common Stock held by the 
Investor, equals approximately 59.2% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company as of March 15, 2015. 

(4) BlackRock, Inc. beneficially owns 16,805,034 shares of Common Stock, over which it has sole voting power for 16,457,285 of these shares, 
no shared voting power, sole dispositive power for 16,805,034 of these shares and no shared dispositive power.  BalckRock’s address is 40 
East 52nd Street, New York, NY 10022.  This information is based on a Schedule 13G/A filed on January 30, 2015. 
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IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THE AVAILABILITY OF PROXY MATERIALS 
FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON JUNE 3, 2015  

The Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials and this proxy statement and Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014 are available at www.proxyvote.com. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This proxy statement contains "forward-looking statements" as that term is defined in the Private Securities 
Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  These statements are based on management’s current expectations and involve 
substantial risks and uncertainties, which may cause results to differ materially from those set forth in the 
statements.  The forward-looking statements may include, but are not limited to, statements made in the 
Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement regarding the anticipated actions and effects 
of our compensation structure and programs and statements included in the other proposals contained herein.  
Standard Pacific undertakes no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of 
new information, future events, or otherwise.  Forward-looking statements should be evaluated together with the 
many uncertainties that affect Standard Pacific’s business, particularly those mentioned under the heading "Risk 
Factors" in Standard Pacific’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, and in the periodic reports that Standard Pacific files 
with the SEC on Form 10-Q and Form 8-K. 

OTHER MATTERS 

At the time of the preparation of this proxy statement, the Board of Directors of the Company was not aware 
of any other matters that would be presented for action at the Annual Meeting. Should any other matters properly 
come before the meeting, action may be taken thereon pursuant to the proxies in the form enclosed, which confer 
discretionary authority on the persons named therein or their substitutes with respect to such matters.  

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

We have incorporated by reference into this Proxy Statement the following documents: Amended and 
Restated Rights Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Rights Agreement.  We will provide, 
without charge, to each person to whom this Proxy Statement is delivered or made available, upon written or oral 
request of such person and by first class mail or other equally prompt means within one business day of receipt of 
such request, a copy of each of these agreements. 
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result in, among other things, defaults under our joint venture operating agreements, loan agreements, and credit 
enhancements. And, our failure to satisfy our joint venture obligations could also affect our joint venture’s ability to 
carryout its operations or strategy which could impair the value of our investment in the joint venture. 

 Entitlement Risk.    Certain of our joint ventures acquire parcels of unentitled raw land. If the joint venture is unable 
to timely obtain entitlements at a reasonable cost, project delay or even project termination may occur resulting in an 
impairment of the value of our investment.  

 Development Risk.    The projects we build through joint ventures are often larger and have a longer time horizon 
than the typical project developed by our wholly-owned homebuilding operations. Time delays associated with 
obtaining entitlements, unforeseen development issues, unanticipated labor and material cost increases, higher 
carrying costs, and general market deterioration and other changes are more likely to impact larger, long-term 
projects, all of which may negatively impact the profitability of these ventures and our proportionate share of 
income.  

 Financing Risk.    There are generally a limited number of sources willing to provide acquisition, development and 
construction financing to land development and homebuilding joint ventures.  During difficult market conditions, it 
may be difficult or impossible to obtain financing for our joint ventures on commercially reasonable terms, or to 
refinance existing borrowings as such borrowings mature. As a result, we may be required to contribute our 
corporate funds to the joint venture to finance acquisition and development and/or construction costs following 
termination or step-down of joint venture financing that the joint venture is unable to restructure, extend, or 
refinance with another third party lender. In addition, our ability to contribute our funds to or for the joint venture 
may be limited if we do not meet the restricted payment condition discussed above.  

 Contribution Risk.    Under credit enhancements that we typically provide with respect to joint venture borrowings, 
we and our partners could be required to make additional unanticipated investments in these joint ventures, either in 
the form of capital contributions or loan repayments, to reduce such outstanding borrowings. We may have to make 
additional contributions that exceed our proportional share of capital if our partners fail to contribute any or all of 
their share. While in most instances we would be able to exercise remedies available under the applicable joint 
venture documentation if a partner fails to contribute its proportional share of capital, our partner’s financial 
condition may preclude any meaningful cash recovery on the obligation.  

 Completion Risk.    We often sign a completion agreement in connection with obtaining financing for our joint 
ventures. Under such agreements, we may be compelled to complete a project even if we no longer have an 
economic interest in the property.  

 Illiquid Investment Risk.    We lack a controlling interest in our joint ventures and therefore are generally unable to 
compel our joint ventures to sell assets, return invested capital, require additional capital contributions or take any 
other action without the vote of at least one or more of our venture partners. This means that, absent partner 
agreement, we may not be able to liquidate our joint venture investments to generate cash.  

 Partner Dispute.    If we have a dispute with one of our joint venture partners and are unable to resolve it, a buy-sell 
provision in the applicable joint venture agreement could be triggered or we may otherwise pursue a negotiated 
settlement involving the unwinding of the venture and it is possible that litigation between us and our partner(s) 
could result. In such cases, we may sell our interest to our partner or purchase our partner’s interest. If we sell our 
interest, we will forgo the profit we would have otherwise earned with respect to the joint venture project and may 
be required to forfeit our invested capital and/or pay our partner to release us from our joint venture obligations. If 
we are required to purchase our partner’s interest, we will be required to fund this purchase, as well as the 
completion of the project, with corporate level capital and to consolidate the joint venture project onto our balance 
sheet, which could, among other things, adversely impact our liquidity, our leverage and other financial conditions 
or covenants. 

 Consolidation Risk.    The accounting rules for joint ventures are complex and the decision as to whether it is proper 
to consolidate a joint venture onto our balance sheet is fact intensive. If the facts concerning an unconsolidated joint 
venture were to change and a triggering event under applicable accounting rules were to occur, we might be 
required to consolidate previously unconsolidated joint ventures onto our balance sheet which could adversely 
impact our leverage and other financial conditions or covenants. 

  

At times, such as now, when we are pursuing a longer-term land acquisition strategy, we become directly subject to 
some of these risks in varying degrees, including those discussed above related to entitlement, development, financing, 
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completion and illiquid investment. Increasing our direct exposure to these types of risks could have a material adverse effect 
on our financial position or results or operations.  
 

Other Risks 
  
Our principal stockholder has the ability to exercise significant influence over the composition of our Board of 

Directors and matters requiring stockholder approval.  

As of December 31, 2014, MP CA Homes LLC held 49% of the voting power of our voting stock. Pursuant to the 
stockholders’ agreement that we entered into with MP CA Homes LLC on June 27, 2008, MP CA Homes LLC is entitled to 
designate a number of directors to serve on our Board of Directors as is proportionate to the total voting power of its voting 
stock (up to one less than a majority), and is entitled to designate at least one MP CA Homes LLC designated director to each 
committee of the board (subject to limited exceptions), giving MP CA Homes LLC the ability to exercise significant 
influence on the composition and actions of our Board of Directors and its committees. In addition, this large voting block 
may have a significant or decisive effect on the approval or disapproval of matters requiring approval of our stockholders, 
including any amendment to our certificate of incorporation, any proposed merger, consolidation or sale of all or 
substantially all of our assets and other corporate transactions. The interests of MP CA Homes LLC in these other matters 
may not always coincide with the interests of our other stockholders. In addition, the ownership of such a large block of our 
voting power and the right to designate directors by MP CA Homes LLC may discourage someone from making a significant 
equity investment in us, even if we needed the investment to operate our business, or could be a significant factor in delaying 
or preventing a change of control transaction that other stockholders may deem to be in their best interests. 

Our charter, bylaws, stockholders’ rights agreement and debt covenants could prevent a third party from acquiring us 
or limit the price that investors might be willing to pay for shares of our common stock.  

Provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws could have the 
effect of making it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from attempting to acquire, 
control of us. These provisions could delay or prevent a change in control of and could limit the price that investors might be 
willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.  

Our certificate of incorporation also authorizes our Board of Directors to issue new series of common stock and 
preferred stock without stockholder approval. Depending on the rights and terms of any new series created, and the reaction 
of the market to the series, rights of existing stockholders could be negatively affected. For example, subject to applicable 
law, our Board of Directors could create a series of common stock or preferred stock with preferential rights to dividends or 
assets upon liquidation, or with superior voting rights to our existing common stock. The ability of our Board of Directors to 
issue these new series of common stock and preferred stock could also prevent or delay a third party from acquiring us, even 
if doing so would be beneficial to our stockholders.  

We are also subject to the anti-takeover provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which 
prohibits Delaware corporations from engaging in business combinations specified in the statute with an interested 
stockholder, as defined in the statute, for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person first 
becomes an interested stockholder, unless the business combination is approved in advance by a majority of the independent 
directors or by the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding disinterested shares. The application of Section 203 of the 
Delaware General Corporation Law could also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of us.  

We also have a stockholders’ rights agreement that could make it difficult to acquire us without the approval of our 
Board of Directors. Our stockholders’ rights agreement has been filed with and is publicly available at or from the SEC; see 
Part IV, Item 15.  
  

In addition, some of our debt covenants contained in the indentures for our outstanding public notes and our revolving 
credit facility may delay or prevent a change in control. Our outstanding notes contain change of control provisions that give 
the holders of our outstanding notes the right to require us to purchase the notes upon a change in control triggering event at a 
purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount of the notes plus accrued and unpaid interest.  In addition, a change of 
control is an event of default under our revolving credit facility. 
 
ITEM 1B.  UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS  
  

None.  
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES  
  

We lease office facilities for our homebuilding and mortgage operations.  We also lease our corporate headquarters, 
which is located in Irvine, California.  The lease on this facility, which also includes offices for our Orange County division, 
consists of approximately 39,000 square feet and expires in August 2016.  We lease approximately 21 other properties for our 
other division offices, mortgage operations and design centers.  For information about land owned or controlled by us for use 
in our homebuilding activities, please refer to Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and 
Results of Operations”. 
  
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS   

 
Various claims and actions that we consider normal to our business have been asserted and are pending against us. We 

do not believe that any of such claims and actions will have a material adverse effect upon our results of operations or 
financial position.  
  
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES  
 

None. 
  
Executive Officers of the Registrant  
  

Our executive officers’ ages, positions and brief accounts of their business experience as of February 20, 2015, are set 
forth below.  
  
Name 

  
Age  

  
Position 

Scott D. Stowell ..................   57 Chief Executive Officer and President
Jeff J. McCall ......................   43 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
John P. Babel ......................   43 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 
Wendy L. Marlett ................       51 Chief Marketing Officer and Executive Vice President 
  

Scott D. Stowell has served as Chief Executive Officer since January 2012 and President since March 2011.  Prior to 
that, Mr. Stowell served as Chief Operating Officer from May 2007 to March 2011.  Mr. Stowell joined the Company in 
1986 as a project manager.  Since March 2014, Mr. Stowell has also served as a member of the Board of Directors of Pacific 
Mutual Holding Company. 

 
Jeff J. McCall has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since June 2011.  Prior to joining 

the Company, Mr. McCall was Chief Financial Officer – Americas at Regus plc, the world’s largest provider of serviced 
offices, from August 2004 to May 2011.  From December 2003 to August 2004 Mr. McCall served as Chief Financial Officer 
and Executive Vice President of HQ Global Workplaces, Inc., which was acquired by Regus plc in August 2004.  From 1998 
to 2003, Mr. McCall was Principal at Casas, Benjamin & White LLC, a leading boutique advisory services firm specializing 
in middle market mergers, acquisitions, divestitures, restructuring, and private equity investments.   

 
John P. Babel has served as Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since February 2012.  Prior to 

that, Mr. Babel was our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary from February 2009 until February 2012.  Mr. 
Babel joined the Company as Associate General Counsel in October 2002.  Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Babel was a 
corporate lawyer with the international law firm of Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP. 

 
Wendy L. Marlett has served as Chief Marketing Officer and Executive Vice President since September 2010.  Ms. 

Marlett leads all of the Company's sales, marketing, communications and architecture functions across our operations.  Prior 
to joining the Company, Ms. Marlett was Senior Vice President of sales, marketing and communications at KB Home, where 
she held progressive roles since 1995 and was a recognized innovator in marketing and brand management. 
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PART II 
  
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES  
  

Our shares of common stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “SPF.”  The following table 
sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the reported high and low intra-day sales prices per share of our common stock as 
reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape and the common dividends paid per share.  

 

2014 2013
High Low Dividend High Low Dividend

Quarter Ended
March 31………………………..……………   $ 9.20  $ 7.95    $ ― $ 9.18      $ 7.33      $ ―
June 30…………………………………………  8.75  7.55    ― 9.97      7.62      ―
September 30…………………………………   8.81  7.45    ― 8.89      7.03      ―
December 31…………………………………   8.17  6.86    ― 9.13      7.15      ―

Year Ended December 31,

 
 

For further information on our dividend policy, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.” 
 

As of February 20, 2015, the number of record holders of our common stock was 1,266. 
 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 
 
During the three months ended December 31, 2014, we repurchased the following shares under our repurchase 

program: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

(1) On October 28, 2014, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $100 million of our common stock. The stock repurchase plan 
authorized by the Board of Directors has no stated expiration date. 

 
We do not intend to declare cash dividends in the near future. We plan to retain our earnings to finance the continuing 

development of the business.  Future cash dividends, if any, will depend upon our financial condition, results of operations, 
capital requirements, compliance with Delaware law, certain restrictive debt covenants, as well as other factors considered 
relevant by our Board of Directors.  Our senior note indentures and revolving credit facility (other than our convertible senior 
note indenture) contain restrictions on the payment of cash dividends. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Notes 6.b. and 6.c. of the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

 

Total Number Approximate
 of Shares  Dollar Value

 Purchased as  of Shares that
 Part of  May Yet be

Average  Publicly  Purchased
Total Number  Price  Announced  Under the

of Shares  Paid per  Plans or  Plans or
Period  Purchased (1)  Share  Programs (1)  Programs (1)
October 1, 2014 to October 31, 2014…………        ―        ―       ― 100,000,000$   
November 1, 2014 to November 30, 2014……   2,740,900  7.37$      2,740,900   79,800,809$     
December 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014………  2,299,100  7.17$      2,299,100   63,320,258$     
Total……………………………………………  5,040,000  5,040,000   
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The following graph shows a five-year comparison of cumulative total returns to stockholders of the Company, as 
compared with the Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Stock Index and the Dow Jones Industry Group-U.S. Home 
Construction Index.  The graph assumes reinvestment of all dividends. 
  

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Stockholders’ Return 
Among Standard Pacific Corp., The Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Stock Index and  

the Dow Jones Industry Group-U.S. Home Construction Index  
  
  

 
 

The above graph is based upon common stock and index prices calculated as of year-end for each of the last five 
calendar years.  The Company’s common stock closing price on December 31, 2014 was $7.29 per share.  The stock price 
performance of the Company’s common stock depicted in the graph above represents past performance only and is not 
necessarily indicative of future performance.  
 

Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2009 in Standard Pacific Corp. 
Common Stock, the S&P 500 Composite Index and the Dow Jones Industry 

Group-U.S. Home Construction Index 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA  
  

The following should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included 
elsewhere in this Form 10-K.   
 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenues:
Homebuilding……………………..……………………….  $ 2,411,178         $ 1,914,609         $ 1,236,958       $ 882,993          $ 912,418          
Financial Services………………………….………………… 24,119              24,910              21,300            10,907            12,456            

Total revenues……………………………………..……… $ 2,435,297         $ 1,939,519         $ 1,258,258       $ 893,900          $ 924,874          

Pretax income (loss):
Homebuilding (1)…………..………………………...……… $ 340,121            $ 246,269            $ 67,645            $ (18,156)          $ (14,001)           
Financial Services…………………..………………………..  9,843                11,429              10,542            1,683              1,720              

Pretax income (loss)…………………………………… $ 349,964            $ 257,698            $ 78,187            $ (16,473)          $ (12,281)           

Net income (loss) (2)…………...…………………………………  $ 215,865            $ 188,715            $ 531,421          $ (16,417)          $ (11,724)           

Basic income (loss) per common share…………………………… $ 0.59                  $ 0.52                  $ 1.52                $ (0.05)              $ (0.05)               

Diluted income (loss) per common share…………………………  $ 0.54                  $ 0.47                  $ 1.44                $ (0.05)              $ (0.05)               

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic………………………………..…….…………………… 278,687,740     253,118,247     201,953,799   193,909,714   105,202,857   
Diluted ...…………………..…………………….…………… 316,285,412     291,173,953     220,518,897   193,909,714   105,202,857   

Weighted average additional common shares outstanding  
  if preferred shares converted to common shares: 87,812,786       110,826,557     147,812,786   147,812,786   147,812,786   

Total weighted average diluted common shares outstanding  
  if preferred shares converted to common shares: 404,098,198     402,000,510     368,331,683   341,722,500   253,015,643   

Balance Sheet and Other Financial Data:  
Homebuilding cash (including restricted cash)……………… $ 218,650            $ 376,949            $ 366,808          $ 438,157          $ 748,754          
Inventories owned……………………………………………  $ 3,255,204         $ 2,536,102         $ 1,971,418       $ 1,477,239       $ 1,181,697       
Total assets………………………………..…………………  $ 4,174,420         $ 3,662,105         $ 3,113,074       $ 2,200,383       $ 2,133,123       
Homebuilding debt……………………..……………………  $ 2,136,082         $ 1,839,595         $ 1,542,018       $ 1,324,948       $ 1,320,254       
Financial services debt………………………..……………… $ 89,413              $ 100,867            $ 92,159            $ 46,808            $ 30,344            
Stockholders' equity ……………………………….………… $ 1,676,688         $ 1,468,960         $ 1,255,816       $ 623,754          $ 621,862          
Stockholders' equity per common share (3)…………………… $ 6.09                  $ 5.29                  $ 5.89                $ 3.20                $ 3.23                
Pro forma stockholders' equity per common share (4)………  $ 4.62                  $ 4.02                  $ 3.48                $ 1.82                $ 1.83                

Operating Data (excluding unconsolidated joint ventures):  
Deliveries ...…………………..…………………….………… 4,956                4,602                3,291              2,528              2,646              
Average selling price ...…………………..…………………… $ 478                   $ 413                   $ 362                 $ 349                 $ 343                 
Net new orders (homes) ...…………………..………………… 4,967                4,898                4,014              2,795              2,461              
Backlog (homes) ……………………………………………… 1,711                1,700                1,404              681                 414                 
Average active selling communities ...…………………..…… 182                   166                   155                 152                 130                 

 

  

(1) Homebuilding pretax income (loss) for 2011 and 2010 includes pretax impairment charges totaling $13.2 million and $2.3 million, respectively.   
(2) Net income for 2012 includes a $454 million income tax benefit resulting from the reversal of a portion of our deferred tax asset valuation allowance.   
(3) At December 31, 2011 and 2010, common shares outstanding exclude 3.9 million shares issued under a share lending facility related to our 6% convertible senior 

subordinated notes issued September 28, 2007.  On October 11, 2012, the remaining 3.9 million shares outstanding under the share lending facility were returned to 
us and no shares under the share lending facility remain outstanding.  In addition, at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, common shares outstanding exclude 147.8 
million common equivalent shares issued during the year ended December 31, 2008 in the form of preferred stock to MP CA Homes LLC, an affiliate of 
MatlinPatterson Global Advisers LLC (“MP CA Homes”).  On May 20, 2013, MP CA Homes converted 183,000 shares of our preferred stock into 60 million 
shares of our common stock.  As a result, at December 31, 2014 and 2013, common shares outstanding exclude 87.8 million common equivalent shares issuable 
upon conversion of preferred shares outstanding. 

(4) At December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, pro forma common shares outstanding include 147.8 million common equivalent shares issuable upon conversion of 
preferred shares outstanding.  As a result of the conversion of preferred shares by MP CA Homes described above, at December 31, 2014 and 2013, pro forma 
common shares outstanding include 87.8 million common equivalent shares issuable upon conversion of preferred shares outstanding.  In addition, at December 31, 
2011 and 2010, pro forma common shares outstanding exclude 3.9 million shares issued under the share lending facility related to our 6% convertible senior 
subordinated notes.  
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 ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

  

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the section “Selected Financial Data” and our 
consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.  
  
Results of Operations 

Selected Financial Information 
 

2014 2013 2012

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Homebuilding:   
Home sale revenues…………………………………………………...…… $ 2,366,754        $ 1,898,989        $ 1,190,252       
Land sale revenues………………………………………….………………  44,424             15,620             46,706            

Total revenues………………………………………….………..………  2,411,178        1,914,609        1,236,958       
Cost of home sales…………………………………………………..……   (1,748,954)       (1,431,797)       (946,630)         
Cost of land sales…………………………………………..………………  (43,841)            (13,616)            (46,654)           

Total cost of sales…………………………………………..……………  (1,792,795)       (1,445,413)       (993,284)         

Gross margin…………………………………………...……………  618,383           469,196           243,674          

Gross margin percentage……………………………………...………  25.6% 24.5% 19.7%
Selling, general and administrative expenses………………………………  (275,861)          (230,691)          (172,207)         
Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures…………………………  (668)                 949                  (2,090)             
Interest expense……………………………………….……………………   ―   ― (6,396)             
Other income (expense)…………………………………………..….……  (1,733)              6,815               4,664              

Homebuilding pretax income…………………………………………  340,121           246,269           67,645            
Financial Services:   

Revenues………………………………………………………..………...   24,119             24,910             21,300            
Expenses……………………………………………..……………..………  (15,245)            (14,159)            (11,062)           
Other income….…………………………………………………………..   969                  678                  304                 

Financial services pretax income……………………………………  9,843               11,429             10,542            
Income before taxes……………………………………………….…………… 349,964           257,698           78,187            
(Provision) benefit for income taxes……………………………………...……  (134,099)          (68,983)            453,234          

Net income……...……………………………………………...………………  215,865           188,715           531,421          

   Less: Net income allocated to preferred shareholder…………………………  (51,650)            (57,386)            (224,408)         

   Less: Net income allocated to unvested restricted stock………………………  (297)                 (265)                 (410)                
Net income available to common stockholders…...……………………………  $ 163,918           $ 131,064           $ 306,603          

 
Income per common share:   

Basic.…………………………………….….……………………………… $ 0.59                 $ 0.52                 $ 1.52                
Diluted………………………………………....…………………………  $ 0.54                 $ 0.47                 $ 1.44                

Weighted average common shares outstanding:   
Basic……………………………………………….………………………  278,687,740    253,118,247    201,953,799   
Diluted ……………………………………...……………………………  316,285,412  291,173,953  220,518,897   

Weighted average additional common shares outstanding
if preferred shares converted to common shares:   87,812,786    110,826,557  147,812,786   

Total weighted average diluted common shares outstanding
if preferred shares converted to common shares:  404,098,198  402,000,510  368,331,683   

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities………….………………… $ (362,397)        $ (154,216)        $ (283,116)         

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities……………………….……  $ (31,020)            $ (143,857)          $ (105,205)         

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities………………….………… $ 242,519           $ 314,809           $ 324,354           
Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA (1)…………………………………………  $ 480,004           $ 383,621           $ 193,903          

 
  

Year Ended December 31,

 

   

(1) Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA means net income (plus cash distributions of income from unconsolidated joint ventures) before (a) income taxes, (b) 
homebuilding interest expense, (c) expensing of previously capitalized interest included in cost of sales, (d) impairment charges and deposit write-offs, (e) gain 
(loss) on early extinguishment of debt, (f) homebuilding depreciation and amortization, (g) amortization of stock-based compensation, (h) income (loss) from 
unconsolidated joint ventures and (i) income (loss) from financial services subsidiary. Other companies may calculate Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA (or 
similarly titled measures) differently. We believe Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA information is useful to management and investors as one measure of our 
ability to service debt and obtain financing. However, it should be noted that Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA is not a U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles (“GAAP”) financial measure. Due to the significance of the GAAP components excluded, Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA should not be considered 
in isolation or as an alternative to cash flows from operations or any other liquidity performance measure prescribed by GAAP. 
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Selected Financial Information (continued)  
  
(1) Continued  
  

The table set forth below reconciles net cash provided by (used in) operating activities, calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, to 
Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA.  

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities……………………………………………  $ (362,397)   $ (154,216)     $ (283,116)     
Add:  

Provision (benefit) for income taxes…………………………………………...…….……  134,099  68,983        (453,234)    
Deferred income tax benefit (provision)…………………………………………………… (98,998)   (84,214)       454,000     
Homebuilding interest amortized to cost of sales and interest expense……………………  123,112  121,778      110,298     
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements……………………………… 13,404       ―   ― 

Less:   
Income from financial services subsidiary…………………………………………….……  8,874        10,751        10,238        
Depreciation and amortization from financial services subsidiary……………...…………  138           121             108             
Loss on disposal of property and equipment……………...…………………………………  11             17               37               

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:   
Trade and other receivables…………………………………………………….…….....   4,777        3,244          (801)            
Mortgage loans held for sale……………………………………………………………   52,838      2,543          46,339        
Inventories-owned……………..………………………………….………………………  642,008    415,312      315,639      
Inventories-not owned………………………………………………………...…………  33,027      43,319        31,551        
Other assets………………………………………………...……...……………………… (9,306)     (965)            (2,618)        
Accounts payable……………………………………………………..…………………  (9,314)     (13,325)       (4,617)        
Accrued liabilities…………………………………………………..……...……………  (34,223)   (7,949)         (9,155)        

 
Adjusted Homebuilding EBITDA…………………………………………….……..…………  $ 480,004    $ 383,621      $ 193,903      

 

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 
Overview 
 

We remain focused on acquiring and developing strategically located and appropriately priced land and on designing 
and building highly desirable, amenity-rich communities and homes that appeal to the move-up and luxury home buying 
segments we target.  The continued execution of our move-up strategy, coupled with the lift we experienced from improved 
market conditions, drove the strong financial performance we achieved in 2014, the third most profitable year in the 
Company’s 50-year history, with full year pretax income, home sale revenues and backlog value up 36%, 25% and 14%, 
respectively.  We reported net income of $215.9 million, or $0.54 per diluted share, for 2014, compared to net income of 
$188.7 million, or $0.47 per diluted share for 2013 (2013 net income included the aggregate income tax benefit of $30.6 
million related primarily to the partial reversal of our deferred tax asset valuation allowance and the reversal of our liability 
for unrecognized tax benefits during the year), and net income of $531.4 million, or $1.44 per diluted share, for 2012 (2012 
net income included the $454 million tax benefit we received in 2012 from the reversal of a significant portion of our 
deferred tax asset valuation allowance).  Homebuilding pretax income for 2014 was $340.1 million, compared to $246.3 
million in 2013 and $67.6 million in 2012.  Our gross margin from home sales rose to 26.1% for 2014, a 150 basis point 
increase compared to 2013 and our operating margin from home sales for 2014 was 14.4%, a 190 basis point increase 
compared to 2013.   

 
We ended 2014 with $218.7 million of homebuilding cash (including $38.2 million of restricted cash), compared to 

$376.9 million (including $21.5 million of restricted cash) at the end of the prior year.  Net cash used in operating activities 
during 2014 was $362.4 million compared to $154.2 million in 2013.  The higher level of cash used in operating activities for 
2014 as compared to the prior year was driven primarily by a $216.5 million increase in cash land purchase and development 
costs, partially offset by a 26% increase in homebuilding revenues.  Cash flows from financing activities for 2014 included 
$296 million of net proceeds from a senior notes offering during the 2014 fourth quarter.  In July 2014, we amended our 
revolving credit facility to, among other things, increase the aggregate commitment to $450 million, expand the accordion 
feature to permit the aggregate commitment to be increased to a maximum amount of $750 million, subject to the Company’s 
future needs and the availability of additional bank capacity, and extend the maturity date to July 2018.  
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Homebuilding  
 

 

As of December 31,

2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Total Assets:
California………………………………………………...……………… $ 1,542,584   14.7% $ 1,344,605   12.8% $ 1,192,249   
Southwest…………...…………………………………...……………… 826,489      28.8% 641,711      29.1% 496,902      
Southeast………………………………………………….……………… 1,060,343   34.9% 785,988      79.4% 438,122      
Corporate………………………………………..………………………  517,701      (30.1%) 740,950      (12.1%) 842,705      

Total homebuilding………………………………………...………..… 3,947,117   12.3% 3,513,254   18.3% 2,969,978   
Financial services……………………...………………………………… 227,303      52.7% 148,851      4.0% 143,096      

Total Assets………………………………...…………..…………  $ 4,174,420   14.0% $ 3,662,105   17.6% $ 3,113,074   

 
 

For 2014, we generated homebuilding pretax income of $340.1 million compared to $246.3 million in 2013.  This 
improvement was primarily the result of a 25% increase in home sale revenues, an increase in gross margin from home sales 
and the operating leverage inherent in our business.  The improvement in our financial performance in 2014 compared to 
2013 was realized across all three of our reportable segments. 

 
For 2013, we generated homebuilding pretax income of $246.3 million compared to $67.6 million in 2012.  This 

improvement was primarily the result of a 60% increase in home sale revenues, an increase in gross margin from home sales, 
a $6.4 million decrease in interest expense and the operating leverage inherent in our business. The improvement in our 
financial performance in 2013 compared to 2012 was realized across all three of our reportable segments. 

   
Revenues 
 
Homebuilding revenues for 2014 increased 26% from 2013 as a result of an 8% increase in new home deliveries, a 

16% increase in our consolidated average home price to $478 thousand and a $28.8 million increase in land sale revenues.  
Homebuilding revenues for 2013 increased 55% from 2012 as a result of a 40% increase in new home deliveries and a 14% 
increase in our consolidated average home price to $413 thousand, partially offset by a $31.1 million decrease in land sale 
revenues.   

 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Homebuilding revenues:
California…………………………………………………...……………… $ 1,154,847  15% $ 1,006,572  44% $ 699,672     
Southwest…………………………………………………………….……  583,555     42% 411,967     66% 248,421     
Southeast………………………………………………………..…………  672,776     36% 496,070     72% 288,865     

Total homebuilding revenues…………………………………………… $ 2,411,178  26% $ 1,914,609  55% $ 1,236,958  
 

Homebuilding pretax income:
California…………………………………………………...……………… $ 215,259     31% $ 164,805     254% $ 46,491       
Southwest…………………………………………………………….……  58,630       37% 42,792       233% 12,852       
Southeast………………………………………………………..…………  66,232       71% 38,672       366% 8,302         

Total homebuilding pretax income……………………………………… $ 340,121     38% $ 246,269     264% $ 67,645       
 

Homebuilding pretax income as a percentage of homebuilding revenues:
California…………………………………………………...………………  18.6% 2.2% 16.4% 9.8% 6.6%
Southwest…………………………………………………………….……  10.0% (0.4%) 10.4% 5.2% 5.2%
Southeast………………………………………………………..…………  9.8% 2.0% 7.8% 4.9% 2.9%

Total homebuilding pretax income percentage…………………………  14.1% 1.2% 12.9% 7.4% 5.5%
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012
New homes delivered:

California…………………………………………….……..… 1,759     (0%) 1,762     35% 1,304     
Arizona …………………………………………...……..…… 267        3% 258        4% 247        
Texas………………………………………………...……… 826        23% 669        42% 472        
Colorado………………………………………….………...… 233        39% 168        47% 114        
Nevada………………………………………………………    ―     ―     ―  (100%) 9            

Total Southwest………………………………………….… 1,326     21% 1,095     30% 842        
Florida……………………………………………..………... 1,057     3% 1,027     77% 581        
Carolinas……………………………………………...…....… 814        13% 718        27% 564        

Total Southeast…………………………………………… 1,871     7% 1,745     52% 1,145     
Total…………..………………………………..……… 4,956     8% 4,602     40% 3,291     

 

 
New home deliveries increased 8% in 2014 as compared to the prior year, primarily as a result of a 21% increase in the 

number of homes in backlog at the beginning of the year as compared to the year earlier period and a 10% increase in average 
active selling communities throughout 2014 compared to 2013.  These increases were driven largely by a 21% increase in 
deliveries from the Company’s Southwest region as a result of a 41% increase in the number of homes in backlog at the 
beginning of the year as compared to the year earlier period, and where average active selling communities grew 27%.  New 
home deliveries increased 40% in 2013 as compared to 2012, driven largely by a 106% increase in the number of homes in 
backlog at the beginning of 2013 as compared to the beginning of 2012 and a 22% increase in net new orders, partially offset 
by a decrease in speculative homes sold and closed during the year. 

 
Year Ended December 31,

2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012

 (Dollars in thousands)
Average selling prices of homes delivered:

California……………………………………………...…….. $ 638       13% $ 565       12% $ 506       
Arizona …………………………………………….……...… 332       19% 280       31% 213       
Texas……………………………………...…………..……… 453       15% 393       24% 318       
Colorado……………………………………….……...……… 510       13% 450       16% 388       
Nevada…………………………………………………………     ―       ―       ―        ―   192       

Total Southwest……………………………………….….. 438       17% 375       27% 295       
Florida…………...…………………………………………… 378       35% 279       13% 247       
Carolinas…………………………………………………..… 324       12% 289       17% 247       

Total Southeast……………….…………………………… 354       25% 283       15% 247       
Total…….………………………..……………………… $ 478       16% $ 413       14% $ 362       

 

 
During 2014, our consolidated average home price increased 16% to $478 thousand as compared to $413 thousand for 

2013.  This increase was largely due to higher average home prices within the majority of our markets, a shift to more move-
up product and a decrease in the use of sales incentives.  During 2013, our consolidated average home price increased 14% to 
$413 thousand as compared to $362 thousand for 2012.  This increase was largely due to higher average home prices within 
the majority of our markets and a decrease in the use of sales incentives.     

 
Gross Margin  

  
Our 2014 gross margin percentage from home sales was 26.1%, up 150 basis points from 24.6% in 2013.  This 150 

basis point increase resulted primarily from price increases and a higher proportion of deliveries from more profitable 
communities, partially offset by an increase in direct construction costs per home.  Our 2013 gross margin percentage from 
home sales was 24.6%, up 410 basis points from 20.5% in 2012.  This 410 basis point increase resulted primarily from price 
increases, a higher proportion of deliveries from more profitable communities, and improved margins from speculative 
homes sold and delivered during the year.     
 
 SG&A Expenses 

 
Our 2014 SG&A expenses (including corporate G&A) were $275.9 million compared to $230.7 million for the prior 

year.  Despite this increase in dollar amount, our 2014 SG&A rate from home sales was 11.7% versus 12.1% for 2013.  This 
40 basis point improvement was primarily the result of a 25% increase in home sale revenues and our operating leverage.  
We continue to leverage our G&A expenses as our home sale revenues have increased year over year, with G&A expenses as 
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a percentage of home sale revenues improving to 6.8% for 2014 compared to 7.2% for 2013.  Our selling expenses as a 
percentage of home sale revenues remained flat at 4.9% for 2014 and 2013.    

 
Our 2013 SG&A expenses (including corporate G&A) were $230.7 million compared to $172.2 million for 2012.  Our 

2013 SG&A rate from home sales was 12.1% versus 14.5% for 2012.  This 240 basis point improvement was primarily the 
result of a 60% increase in home sale revenues and our operating leverage. 

 
Interest Expense 
 
During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, our qualified assets exceeded our debt, and as of December 31, 

2014 and 2013, the amount of our qualified assets in excess of our debt was $827.7 million and $430.6 million, respectively.  
As a result, all of our interest incurred during 2014 and 2013 was capitalized in accordance with ASC Topic 835, Interest.   

 
Other Income (Expense) 

  
Other expense of $1.7 million for 2014 was primarily attributable to $2.2 million of project abandonment costs and 

$0.3 million of acquisition-related costs, partially offset by $0.6 million of interest income.  Other income of $6.8 million for 
2013 was primarily attributable to the receipt of property insurance claim settlements of approximately $10.2 million and 
interest income of $0.8 million, partially offset by $1.7 million of project abandonment costs and $1.2 million of acquisition-
related costs.   

 
Operating Data 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 % Change
% Absorption 

Change (1) 2013 % Change
% Absorption 

Change (1) 2012
Net new orders (2):  

California………………………… 1,661        (3%) (3%) 1,718       9% 14% 1,570       
Arizona …………………………  258           (10%) (26%) 286          7% (17%) 267          
Texas……………………………  1,007        33% 3% 755          43% (3%) 527          
Colorado………………………… 200           (0%) (20%) 201          29% 13% 156          
Nevada……………………………  ―  ―  ―  ―  (100%)  ―  6              

Total Southwest……………..… 1,465        18% (7%) 1,242       30% (5%) 956          
Florida…………………………… 1,004        (14%) (23%) 1,165       48% 34% 785          
Carolinas………………………… 837           8% 16% 773          10% 24% 703          

Total Southeast………….……  1,841        (5%) (9%) 1,938       30% 30% 1,488       
Total………………………… 4,967        1% (8%) 4,898       22% 14% 4,014       

 

   

(1) Represents the percentage change of net new orders per average number of selling communities during the period. 
(2) Net new orders are new orders for the purchase of homes during the period, less cancellations during such period of existing contracts for the 

purchase of homes. 

 
Year Ended December 31,

2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012

 (Dollars in thousands)
Average selling prices of net new orders:

California……………………………………………...…….. $ 644       9% $ 593       20% $ 494       
Arizona …………………………………………….……...… 321       7% 299       37% 218       
Texas……………………………………...…………..……… 464       13% 410       22% 337       
Colorado……………………………………….……...……… 517       13% 457       18% 387       
Nevada…………………………………………………………     ―       ―       ―        ―   181       

Total Southwest……………………………………….….. 446       14% 392       26% 311       
Florida…………...…………………………………………… 414       22% 339       38% 245       
Carolinas…………………………………………………..… 325       11% 292       14% 256       

Total Southeast……………….…………………………… 374       17% 320       27% 251       
Total…….………………………..……………………… $ 485       12% $ 434       21% $ 360       
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012
Average number of selling communities during the year:

California………………………………………………………. 47            ― 47          (4%) 49           
Arizona ………………………………………………...……… 11          22% 9            29% 7             
Texas…………………………………………………….……… 40          29% 31          48% 21           
Colorado…………………………………………………..…… 10          25% 8            14% 7             

Total Southwest……………………………………………… 61          27% 48          37% 35           
Florida…………………………………………………………. 45          13% 40          11% 36           
Carolinas………………………………………………….……… 29          (6%) 31          (11%) 35           

Total Southeast……………………………………………...… 74          4% 71             ― 71           
Total……………………………………………...………… 182        10% 166        7% 155         

 

  
Net new orders for 2014 increased 1% from the prior year on a 10% increase in the number of average active selling 

communities.  Our monthly sales absorption rate was 2.3 per community for 2014, down from 2.5 for 2013, and reflects our 
continued emphasis on margin over sales pace.  During the 2014 fourth quarter our monthly sales absorption rate was 1.8 per 
community, up 5% from the 2013 fourth quarter and down sequentially 15% compared to the 2014 third quarter.  The 15% 
decrease in sales absorption rate from the 2014 third quarter to the 2014 fourth quarter was favorable compared to the 
approximately 20% decrease in sales absorption rate we have typically experienced from the third quarter to the fourth 
quarter over the last 10 years.  Our consolidated cancellation rate for 2014 was 17% compared to 15% for 2013, and was 21% 
for both the 2014 fourth quarter and 2013 fourth quarter.  Our 2014 fourth quarter cancellation rate was consistent with our 
average historical cancellation rate over the last 10 years.   

 
Net new orders for 2013 increased 22% from 2012 on a 7% increase in the number of average active selling 

communities.  Our monthly sales absorption rate was 2.5 per community for 2013, up from 2.2 for 2012.  Our consolidated 
cancellation rate for 2013 was 15% compared to 13% for 2012. 

 
As of December 31,

2014 2013 % Change

Backlog ($ in thousands): Homes
Dollar
Value Homes

Dollar
Value Homes

Dollar
Value

California…………………………………………   298        $ 227,787      396       $ 262,097      (25%) (13%)
Arizona ……………………………………………  96          33,607        105       35,846        (9%) (6%)
Texas………………………………………………  471        244,231      290       134,583      62% 81%
Colorado……………………………………………  75          45,396        108       54,946        (31%) (17%)

Total Southwest………….………………………  642        323,234      503       225,375      28% 43%
Florida………………………………………………  451        252,569      504       215,312      (11%) 17%
Carolinas……………………………………………  320        112,786      297       97,710        8% 15%

Total Southeast………….………………………  771        365,355      801       313,022      (4%) 17%
Total…………………………………………  1,711     $ 916,376      1,700    $ 800,494      1% 14%

    
   

The dollar value of our backlog as of December 31, 2014 increased 14% from 2013 to $916.4 million.  The increase in 
backlog value from 2013 was driven primarily by the 14% increase in our consolidated average home price in backlog to 
$536 thousand.  The higher average home price in our backlog as of December 31, 2014 compared to the prior year was 
attributable to price increases within the majority of our markets, resulting from the continued execution of our move-up 
homebuyer focused strategy and a favorable pricing environment in select markets.   
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At December 31,
2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012

Homesites owned and controlled:
California……………………………………..… 9,930       3% 9,638       (6%) 10,288     
Arizona ………………………………………… 2,098       (11%) 2,351       20% 1,965       
Texas………………..………………………… 4,733       3% 4,607       (10%) 5,129       
Colorado…………..…………………………… 1,087       (17%) 1,307       65% 792          
Nevada……….………………………………… 1,124           ―  1,124            ―  1,124       

Total Southwest…………………………… 9,042       (4%) 9,389       4% 9,010       
Florida………….……………………………… 12,478     9% 11,461     40% 8,159       
Carolinas……………………………………...… 3,980       (15%) 4,687       42% 3,310       

Total Southeast……………………………… 16,458     2% 16,148     41% 11,469     
Total (including joint ventures)………… 35,430     1% 35,175     14% 30,767     

Homesites owned……………………………… 28,972     4% 27,733     9% 25,475     
Homesites optioned or subject to contract …… 6,260       (11%) 7,047       51% 4,681       
Joint venture homesites (1)…………………… 198          (50%) 395          (35%) 611          

Total (including joint ventures) (1)……… 35,430     1% 35,175     14% 30,767     

Homesites owned:
Raw lots………………………………………… 8,162         31% 6,211         12% 5,522         
Homesites under development………………… 8,119         (13%) 9,340         (0%) 9,357         
Finished homesites……………………………  7,210         3% 7,024         36% 5,178         
Under construction or completed homes……… 3,104         11% 2,804         28% 2,194         
Held for sale…………………………………… 2,377         1% 2,354         (27%) 3,224         

Total………………………………………… 28,972       4% 27,733       9% 25,475       

 
_______________________________ 

(1) Joint venture homesites represent our expected share of land development joint venture homesites and all of the homesites of our homebuilding 
joint ventures. 

 
Total homesites owned and controlled as of December 31, 2014 increased 1% from 2013.  We purchased $585.7 

million of land (6,813 homesites) during 2014, of which 35% (based on homesites) was located in Florida, 26% in California, 
15% in Texas, 12% in the Carolinas, with the balance spread throughout the Company’s other operations.  During 2013, we 
purchased $493.6 million of land (6,911 homesites), of which 37% (based on homesites) was located in Florida, 23% in the 
Carolinas, 19% in California and 12% in Texas, with the balance spread throughout Arizona and Colorado.  As of December 
31, 2014, we owned or controlled 35,430 homesites, of which 24,434 are owned and actively selling or under development, 
6,458 are controlled or under option, and the remaining 4,538 homesites are held for future development or for sale.   

 
 

At December 31,

2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012
Homes under construction and speculative homes:

Homes under construction (excluding specs)……………… 1,131   0% 1,130   17% 963       
Speculative homes under construction…………………… 901      3% 871      43% 611       

Total homes under construction………………………  2,032   2% 2,001   27% 1,574    

Completed homes:  
Completed and unsold homes (excluding models)………… 515        57% 327        52% 215        
Completed and under contract (excluding models)……… 206        21% 170        19% 143        
Model homes………………………………………….….  351        15% 306        17% 262        

Total completed homes ………….....…………………  1,072     33% 803        30% 620        

 
 

Total homes under construction (excluding speculative homes) as of December 31, 2014 were relatively flat compared 
to December 31, 2013, consistent with our homes in backlog which were 1,711 and 1,700 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.  Speculative homes under construction and completed and unsold homes (excluding models) as of December 
31, 2014 increased 18% over the prior year period, resulting primarily from a year over year increase in our number of active 
selling communities and our strategy to maintain a supply of speculative homes in each community. 
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Financial Services 
 

For 2014, our financial services subsidiary generated pretax income of $8.9 million compared to $10.8 million in 2013.  
The decrease in 2014 was driven by lower margins on loans closed and sold and a $0.5 million increase in loan loss expense 
related to indemnification and repurchase allowances.  These changes were partially offset by a $0.3 million decrease in loan 
loss expense (net of recoveries) related to allowances for loans held for investment in 2014 compared to the prior year. 

 

For 2013, our financial services subsidiary generated pretax income of $10.8 million compared to $10.2 million in 
2012.  The increase in 2013 was driven by a 45% increase in the dollar volume of loans closed and sold and a decrease in 
loan loss expense related to indemnification and repurchase allowances, from approximately $1.0 million for 2012 to $0 for 
2013.  These changes were partially offset by lower margins on loan closed and sold, a $0.5 million increase in loan loss 
expense (net of recoveries) related to allowances for loans held for investment, and an increase in personnel expenses as a 
result of higher production levels in 2013 compared to 2012. 

 

The following table details information regarding loan originations and related credit statistics for our mortgage 
financing operations: 

 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Total Originations:  
Loans…………..…………..……………………………… 2,936          2,982          2,352          
Principal……………..………………...…………………  986,335$    933,649$    662,400$    
Capture rate……………..………………...……………… 77% 81% 82%

Loans Sold to Third Parties:  
Loans…………..…………..……………………………… 2,806          2,994          2,234          
Principal……………..………………...…………………  931,786$    925,449$    616,599$    

Mortgage Loan Origination Product Mix:
FHA loans………………………………………………… 8% 18% 23%
Other government loans (VA & USDA)………………… 10% 14% 18%

Total government loans………………………………… 18% 32% 41%
Conforming loans…………..…………..………………… 74% 65% 59%
Jumbo loans……………..………………...……………… 8% 3% ―

100% 100% 100%

Loan Type:
Fixed………………………………...…………….……… 92% 96% 98%
ARM…………………………………………..…….…… 8% 4% 2%

Credit Quality:
Avg. FICO score………………………………………..… 752 744 744

Other Data:
Avg. combined LTV ratio……………………….………… 80% 84% 86%
Full documentation loans………………………………… 100% 100% 100%
Non-Full documentation loans…………………………… ― ― ―  

  
Income Taxes 

   

Our 2014 provision for income taxes was $134.1 million primarily related to our $350.0 million of pretax income.  As 
of December 31, 2014, we had a $279.0 million deferred tax asset which was offset by a valuation allowance of $2.6 million 
related to state net operating loss carryforwards that are limited by shorter carryforward periods.  As of such date, $119.0 
million of our deferred tax asset related to net operating loss carryforwards that are subject to the Internal Revenue Code 
Section 382 gross annual limitation of $15.6 million for both federal and state purposes.  The $160.0 million balance of the 
deferred tax asset is not subject to such limitations.     

 

Each quarter we assess our deferred tax asset to determine whether all or any portion of the asset is more likely than not 
unrealizable in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”).  ASC 740 requires an assessment of available 
positive and negative evidence and, if the available positive evidence outweighs the available negative evidence, such that we 
are able to conclude that it is more likely than not (likelihood of more than 50%) that our deferred tax asset will be realized, 
we are required to reverse any corresponding deferred tax asset valuation allowance.  We continue to evaluate our deferred 
tax asset on a quarterly basis and note that, if economic conditions were to change such that we earn less taxable income than 
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the amount required to fully utilize our deferred tax asset, a portion of the asset may expire unused.  See Note 11 to our 
accompanying consolidated financial statements for further discussion. 
 

Liquidity and Capital Resources  
 

Our principal uses of cash over the last several years have been for: 
 

 land acquisition 
 homebuilder acquisitions 
 construction and development 
 operating expenses  

 principal and interest payments on debt  
 cash collateralization 
 stock repurchases 

 

Cash requirements over the last several years have been met by: 
 

 internally generated funds 
 bank revolving credit and term loans 
 land option contracts and seller notes 
 public and private sales of our equity   
 public and private note offerings 

 joint venture financings 
 assessment district bond financings 
 letters of credit and surety bonds 
 mortgage credit facilities 
 tax refunds 

 

For the year ended December 31, 2014, we used $362.4 million of cash in operating activities versus $154.2 million in 
the year earlier period.  The increase in cash used in operating activities as compared to the prior year period was driven 
primarily by a $216.5 million increase in cash land purchase and development costs, partially offset by a 26% increase in 
homebuilding revenues.  Cash flows used in investing activities for 2014 included the acquisition of approximately 10 current 
and future communities from a homebuilder in Austin, Texas during the 2014 second quarter.  Cash flows from financing 
activities for 2014 included $296 million of net proceeds from a senior notes offering during the 2014 fourth quarter, partially 
offset by $36.8 million of common stock repurchases during the 2014 fourth quarter.  As of December 31, 2014, our 
homebuilding cash balance was $218.7 million (including $38.2 million of restricted cash). 

   

Revolving Credit Facility.  On July 31, 2014, we amended our unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving 
Facility”) to, among other things, increase the aggregate commitment to $450 million, expand the accordion feature to permit 
the aggregate commitment to be increased to a maximum amount of $750 million, subject to the availability of additional 
bank commitments and certain other conditions, and extend the maturity date to July 2018.  Substantially all of our 100% 
owned homebuilding subsidiaries are guarantors of the Revolving Facility.  The July 2014 amendment to our Revolving 
Facility did not modify our covenant requirements.  Our covenant compliance for the Revolving Facility is set forth in the 
table below: 
 

Covenant and Other Requirements
Actual at

December 31, 2014

Covenant 
Requirements at

December 31, 2014

  
Consolidated Tangible Net Worth (1)…………………………………………………………………………  $1,676.1 $983.3
Leverage Ratio:   

Net Homebuilding Debt to Adjusted Consolidated Tangible Net Worth Ratio (2)…………………………  1.18 2.25
Land Not Under Development Ratio:   

Land Not Under Development to Consolidated Tangible Net Worth Ratio (3)……………………………   0.25 1.00
Liquidity or Interest Coverage Ratio (4):   

Liquidity………………………………………………………………………………………………..  $168.8 $142.8
EBITDA (as defined in the Revolving Facility) to Consolidated Interest Incurred (5)………………………  2.84 1.25

Investments in Homebuilding Joint Ventures or Consolidated Homebuilding Non-Guarantor Entities (6)…   $230.2 $666.6
Actual/Permitted Borrowings under the Revolving Facility (7)………………………………………………  $0 $450.0

(Dollars in millions)















 

 

(1) The minimum covenant requirement amount is subject to increase over time based on subsequent earnings (without deductions for losses) and 
proceeds from equity offerings. 

(2) This covenant requirement decreases to 2.00 for the period ending March 31, 2015 and thereafter.  Net Homebuilding Debt represents 
Consolidated Homebuilding Debt reduced for certain cash balances in excess of $5 million. 

(3) Land not under development is land that has not yet undergone physical site improvement and has not been sold to a homebuyer or other third 
party. 

(4) Under the liquidity and interest coverage ratio covenant, we are required to either (i) maintain an unrestricted cash balance in excess of our 
consolidated interest incurred for the previous four fiscal quarters or (ii) satisfy a minimum interest coverage ratio.   

(5) Consolidated Interest Incurred excludes noncash interest expense. 
(6) Net investments in unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures or consolidated homebuilding non-guarantor entities must not exceed 35% of 

consolidated tangible net worth plus $80 million. 
(7) As of December 31, 2014 our availability under the Revolving Facility was $450 million.       
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Letter of Credit Facilities.  As of December 31, 2014, we were party to five committed letter of credit facilities totaling 

$58 million, of which $36.6 million was outstanding.  These facilities require cash collateralization and have maturity dates 
ranging from October 2015 to October 2017.  As of December 31, 2014, these facilities were secured by cash collateral 
deposits of $37.2 million.  Upon maturity, we may renew or enter into new letter of credit facilities with the same or other 
financial institutions.   

   
Senior and Convertible Senior Notes.  As of December 31, 2014, the principal amount outstanding on our senior and 

convertible senior notes payable consisted of the following: 
 

December 31, 2014
(Dollars in thousands)

 
7% Senior Notes due August 2015………………………..……..…………………  $ 29,789               
10¾% Senior Notes due September 2016………..……………...……..……..……  280,000             
8⅜% Senior Notes due May 2018………….………………………..……..………  575,000             
8⅜% Senior Notes due January 2021…………….………………………..……..…  400,000             
6¼% Senior Notes due December 2021……………...……..……..………………  300,000             
5⅞% Senior Notes due November 2024…………………………………………… 300,000             
1¼% Convertible Senior Notes due August 2032…………….……………………  253,000             

$ 2,137,789          
  

 
These notes contain various restrictive covenants.  Our 10¾% Senior Notes due 2016 contain our most restrictive 

covenants, including a limitation on additional indebtedness and a limitation on restricted payments.  Outside of the specified 
categories of indebtedness that are carved out of the additional indebtedness limitation (including a carve-out for up to $1.1 
billion in credit facility indebtedness), the Company must satisfy at least one of two conditions (either a maximum leverage 
condition or a minimum interest coverage condition) to incur additional indebtedness.  The Company must also satisfy at 
least one of these two conditions to make restricted payments.  Restricted payments include dividends, stock repurchases and 
investments in and advances to our joint ventures and other unrestricted subsidiaries.  Our ability to make restricted payments 
is also subject to a basket limitation (as defined in the indenture).   

 
 As of December 31, 2014, as illustrated in the table below, we were able to incur additional indebtedness and make 
restricted payments because we satisfied both conditions. 

 

Covenant Requirements
Actual at

December 31, 2014

Covenant 
Requirements at

December 31, 2014

Total Leverage Ratio:   
Indebtedness to Consolidated Tangible Net Worth Ratio……………………………………………  1.34 2.25

Interest Coverage Ratio:   
EBITDA (as defined in the indenture) to Consolidated Interest Incurred……………………………  2.64 2.00 




 

 

In November 2014, the Company issued $300 million in aggregate principal amount of 5⅞% Senior Notes due 2024, 
which are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and are guaranteed by the guarantors of our other senior notes on a 
senior unsecured basis.  The proceeds were used for general corporate purposes. 

 
In July 2012, the Company issued $253 million in aggregate principal amount of 1¼% Convertible Senior Notes due 

2032 (the “Convertible Notes”).  The Convertible Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and are guaranteed 
by the guarantors of our other senior notes on a senior unsecured basis.  The Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 
1¼% per year and will mature on August 1, 2032, unless earlier converted, redeemed or repurchased.  The holders may 
convert their Convertible Notes at any time into shares of the Company's common stock at an initial conversion rate of 
123.7662 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of Convertible Notes (which is equal to an initial conversion 
price of approximately $8.08 per share), subject to adjustment.  The Company may not redeem the Convertible Notes prior to 
August 5, 2017.  On or after August 5, 2017 and prior to the maturity date, the Company may redeem for cash all or part of 
the Convertible Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes being redeemed.  
On each of August 1, 2017, August 1, 2022 and August 1, 2027, holders of the Convertible Notes may require the Company 
to purchase all or any portion of their Convertible Notes for cash at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 
Convertible Notes to be repurchased. 

Potential Future Transactions.  In the future, we may, from time to time, undertake negotiated or open market purchases 
of, or tender offers for, our notes prior to maturity when they can be purchased at prices that we believe are attractive.  We 
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may also, from time to time, engage in exchange transactions (including debt for equity and debt for debt transactions) for all 
or part of our notes.  Such transactions, if any, will depend on market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual 
restrictions and other factors.   

Joint Venture Loans.  As described more particularly under the heading “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements”, our land 
development and homebuilding joint ventures have historically obtained secured acquisition, development and/or 
construction financing.  This financing is designed to reduce the use of funds from our corporate financing sources.  As of 
December 31, 2014, only one joint venture had $30 million of bank debt outstanding.  This joint venture bank debt was non-
recourse to us. 

Secured Project Debt and Other Notes Payable.  At December 31, 2014, we had $4.7 million outstanding in secured 
project debt and other notes payable.  Our secured project debt and other notes payable consist of seller non-recourse 
financing and community development district and similar assessment district bond financings used to finance land 
acquisition, development and infrastructure costs for which we are responsible.   

Mortgage Credit Facilities.  At December 31, 2014, we had $89.4 million outstanding under our mortgage financing 
subsidiary’s mortgage credit facilities.  These mortgage credit facilities consist of a $125 million repurchase facility with one 
lender, maturing in May 2015, and a $75 million repurchase facility with another lender, maturing in October 2015.  These 
facilities require Standard Pacific Mortgage to maintain cash collateral accounts, which totaled $1.3 million as of December 
31, 2014, and also contain financial covenants which require Standard Pacific Mortgage to, among other things, maintain a 
minimum level of tangible net worth, not to exceed a debt to tangible net worth ratio, maintain a minimum liquidity amount 
based on a measure of total assets (inclusive of the cash collateral requirement), and satisfy pretax income (loss) 
requirements.  As of December 31, 2014, Standard Pacific Mortgage was in compliance with the financial and other 
covenants contained in these facilities. 

Surety Bonds.  Surety bonds serve as a source of liquidity for the Company because they are used in lieu of cash deposits 
and letters of credit that would otherwise be required by governmental entities and other third parties to ensure our 
completion of the infrastructure of our projects and other performance.  At December 31, 2014, we had approximately $504.5 
million in surety bonds outstanding (exclusive of surety bonds related to our joint ventures), with respect to which we had an 
estimated $295.0 million remaining in cost to complete. 

Availability of Additional Liquidity.  Over the last several years we have focused on acquiring and developing 
strategically located and appropriately priced land and on designing and building highly desirable, amenity-rich communities 
and homes that appeal to the move-up and luxury home buying segments we target.  In the near term, so long as we are able 
to continue to find appropriately priced land opportunities, we plan to continue with this strategy.  To that end, we may utilize 
cash generated from our operating activities, our untapped $450 million revolving credit facility (including through the 
exercise of the accordion feature which would allow the facility be increased up to $750 million, subject to the availability of 
additional capital commitments and certain other conditions) and the debt and equity capital markets to finance these 
activities. 

It is important to note, however, that the availability of additional capital, whether from private capital sources (including 
banks) or the public capital markets, fluctuates as market conditions change.  There may be times when the private capital 
markets and the public debt or equity markets lack sufficient liquidity or when our securities cannot be sold at attractive 
prices, in which case we would not be able to access capital from these sources.  A weakening of our financial condition, 
including in particular, a material increase in our leverage or a decrease in our profitability or cash flows, could adversely 
affect our ability to obtain necessary funds, result in a credit rating downgrade or change in outlook, or otherwise increase our 
cost of borrowing.   

Dividends.  We did not pay dividends during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.   

Stock Repurchases.  On October 28, 2014, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a $100 million stock 
repurchase plan.  During 2014, we repurchased 5,040,000 shares of our common stock in open market transactions under the 
plan, and as of December 31, 2014, we had remaining authorization to repurchase $63.3 million of our common stock.  We 
did not repurchase capital stock during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

 
Leverage.  Our homebuilding debt to total book capitalization as of December 31, 2014 was 56.0% and our adjusted net 

homebuilding debt to adjusted total book capitalization was 53.3%.  In addition, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, our 
homebuilding debt to adjusted homebuilding EBITDA was 4.5x and 4.8x, respectively, and our adjusted net homebuilding 
debt to adjusted homebuilding EBITDA was 4.0x and 3.8x, respectively (please see page 20 for the reconciliation of net cash 
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provided by (used in) operating activities, calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, to adjusted homebuilding 
EBITDA).  We believe that these adjusted ratios are useful to investors as additional measures of our ability to service debt.   
 
Contractual Obligations  
  

The following table summarizes our future estimated cash payments under existing contractual obligations as of 
December 31, 2014, including estimated cash payments due by period.   

 

Total
Less Than 1 

Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years
After 

5 Years

(Dollars in thousands)

Contractual Obligations
Long-term debt principal payments (1)…………  2,142,478$     30,475$          282,428$       576,575$     1,253,000$ 
Long-term debt interest payments………………  778,436          152,900          264,032         164,173       197,331      
Operating leases (2)………………………..……  14,070            4,681              6,841             2,504           44               
Purchase obligations (3)……………………….   406,724          277,487          129,237          ―      ―     

        Total………………………………..………  3,341,708$     465,543$        682,538$       743,252$     1,450,375$ 

Payments Due by Period

 
   

(1) Long-term debt represents senior and convertible senior notes payable and secured project debt and other notes payable. For a more detailed 
description of our long-term debt, please see Note 6 in our accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

(2) For a more detailed description of our operating leases, please see Note 10.f. in our accompanying consolidated financial statements. 
(3) Purchase obligations represent commitments (net of deposits) for land purchase and option contracts with non-refundable deposits. For a more 

detailed description of our land purchase and option contracts, please see “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” below and Note 10.a. in our 
accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

 
At December 31, 2014, we had mortgage repurchase facilities with two lenders totaling $200 million, and had $89.4 

million outstanding under these facilities. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
  

Land Purchase and Option Agreements 
 
We are subject to customary obligations associated with entering into contracts for the purchase of land and improved 

homesites. These purchase contracts typically require us to provide a cash deposit or deliver a letter of credit in favor of the 
seller, and our purchase of properties under these contracts is generally contingent upon satisfaction of certain requirements 
by the sellers, including obtaining applicable property and development entitlements.  We also utilize option contracts with 
land sellers as a method of acquiring land in staged takedowns, to help us manage the financial and market risk associated 
with land holdings, and to reduce the near-term use of funds from our corporate financing sources.  Option contracts 
generally require us to provide a non-refundable deposit for the right to acquire lots over a specified period of time at 
predetermined prices.  We generally have the right at our discretion to terminate our obligations under both purchase 
contracts and option contracts by forfeiting our cash deposit or by repaying amounts drawn under our letter of credit with no 
further financial responsibility to the land seller, although in certain instances, the land seller has the right to compel us to 
purchase a specified number of lots at predetermined prices.   

 
In some instances, we may also expend funds for due diligence, development and construction activities with respect to 

our land purchase and option contracts prior to purchase, which we would have to write off should we not purchase the land.  
At December 31, 2014, we had non-refundable cash deposits outstanding of approximately $38.8 million and capitalized pre-
acquisition and other development and construction costs of approximately $7.3 million relating to land purchase and option 
contracts having a total remaining purchase price of approximately $406.7 million.  

 
Our utilization of option contracts is dependent on, among other things, the availability of land sellers willing to enter 

into option takedown arrangements, the availability of capital to financial intermediaries, general housing market conditions, 
and geographic preferences.  Options may be more difficult to procure from land sellers in strong housing markets and are 
more prevalent in certain geographic regions.  
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Land Development and Homebuilding Joint Ventures 
 
Historically, we have entered into land development and homebuilding joint ventures from time to time as a means of: 
 

 accessing larger or highly desirable lot 
positions 

 establishing strategic alliances 
 leveraging our capital base 

 expanding our market opportunities 
 managing the financial and market 

risk associated with land holdings 

 
These joint ventures have historically obtained secured acquisition, development and/or construction financing 

designed to reduce the use of funds from our corporate financing sources.  As of December 31, 2014, we held membership 
interests in 21 homebuilding and land development joint ventures, of which seven were active and 14 were inactive or 
winding down.  As of such date, only one joint venture had $30 million of project specific debt outstanding.   This joint 
venture debt is non-recourse to us and is scheduled to mature in June 2015.  As of December 31, 2014, we had $0.1 million 
of joint venture surety bonds outstanding subject to indemnity arrangements by us related to one project which was 
substantially complete as of such date.  

         
Critical Accounting Policies  

 
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the 

reported amounts of our assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the related disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities.  On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those that impact our most critical 
accounting policies.  We base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and various other assumptions that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions or conditions.  We believe that the accounting policies related to the following accounts or activities are those 
that are most critical to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and require the more significant 
judgments and estimates: 

 
Segment Reporting 

 
We operate two principal businesses: homebuilding and financial services (consisting of our mortgage financing and 

title operations).  In accordance with ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting (“ASC 280”), we have determined that each of our 
homebuilding operating divisions and our financial services operations are our operating segments.  Corporate is a non-
operating segment. 

 
Our homebuilding operations acquire and develop land and construct and sell single-family attached and detached 

homes.  In accordance with the aggregation criteria defined in ASC 280, our homebuilding operating segments have been 
grouped into three reportable segments: California; Southwest, consisting of our operating divisions in Arizona, Texas, 
Colorado and Nevada; and Southeast, consisting of our operating divisions in Florida and the Carolinas.  In particular, we 
have determined that the homebuilding operating divisions within their respective reportable segments have similar economic 
characteristics, including similar historical and expected future long-term gross margin percentages.  In addition, the 
operating divisions also share all other relevant aggregation characteristics prescribed in ASC 280, such as similar product 
types, production processes and methods of distribution. 

 
Our mortgage financing operation provides mortgage financing to many of our homebuyers in substantially all of the 

markets in which we operate, and sells substantially all of the loans it originates in the secondary mortgage market.  Our title 
services operation provides title examinations for our homebuyers in Texas and Florida.  Our mortgage financing and title 
services operations are included in our financial services reportable segment, which is separately reported in our consolidated 
financial statements under “Financial Services.” 

 
Corporate is a non-operating segment that develops and implements strategic initiatives and supports our operating 

segments by centralizing key administrative functions such as accounting, finance and treasury, information technology, 
insurance and risk management, litigation, marketing and human resources.  Corporate also provides the necessary 
administrative functions to support us as a publicly traded company.  A substantial portion of the expenses incurred by 
Corporate are allocated to each of our operating divisions based on their respective percentage of revenues. 
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Inventories and Impairments 
 
Inventories consist of land, land under development, homes under construction, completed homes and model homes 

and are stated at cost, net of any impairment losses.  We capitalize direct carrying costs, including interest, property taxes and 
related development costs to inventories.  Field construction supervision and related direct overhead are also included in the 
capitalized cost of inventories.  Direct construction costs are specifically identified and allocated to homes while other 
common costs, such as land, land improvements and carrying costs, are allocated to homes within a community based upon 
their anticipated relative sales or fair value. 

 
We assess the recoverability of real estate inventories in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 360, Property, 

Plant, and Equipment (“ASC 360”).  ASC 360 requires long-lived assets, including inventories, that are expected to be held 
and used in operations to be carried at the lower of cost or, if impaired, the fair value of the asset.  ASC 360 requires that 
companies evaluate long-lived assets for impairment based on undiscounted future cash flows of the assets at the lowest level 
for which there is identifiable cash flows.  Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or 
fair value less cost to sell. 

 
We evaluate real estate projects (including unconsolidated joint venture real estate projects) for inventory impairments 

when indicators of potential impairment are present.  Indicators of impairment include, but are not limited to: significant 
decreases in local housing market values and selling prices of comparable homes; significant decreases in gross margins and 
sales absorption rates; accumulation of costs in excess of budget; actual or projected operating or cash flow losses; and 
current expectations that a real estate asset will more likely than not be sold before its previously estimated useful life. 

 
We perform a detailed budget and cash flow review of all of our real estate projects (including projects actively selling 

as well as projects under development and on hold) on a periodic basis throughout each fiscal year to, among other things, 
determine whether the estimated remaining undiscounted future cash flows of the project are more or less than the carrying 
value of the asset.  If the undiscounted cash flows are more than the carrying value of the real estate project, then no 
impairment adjustment is required.  However, if the undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount, then the asset 
is deemed impaired and is written-down to its fair value.  We evaluate the identifiable cash flows at the project level.  When 
estimating undiscounted future cash flows of a project, we are required to make various assumptions, including the 
following: (i) the expected sales prices and sales incentives to be offered, including the number of homes available and 
pricing and incentives being offered in other communities by us or by other builders; (ii) the expected sales pace and 
cancellation rates based on local housing market conditions and competition; (iii) costs expended to date and expected to be 
incurred in the future, including, but not limited to, land and land development costs, home construction costs, interest costs, 
indirect construction and overhead costs, and selling and marketing costs; (iv) alternative product offerings that may be 
offered that could have an impact on sales pace, sales price and/or building costs; and (v) alternative uses for the property 
such as the possibility of a sale of lots to a third party versus the sale of individual homes.  Many of these assumptions are 
interdependent and changing one assumption generally requires a corresponding change to one or more of the other 
assumptions.  For example, increasing or decreasing the sales absorption rate has a direct impact on the estimated per unit 
sales price of a home, the level of time sensitive costs (such as indirect construction, overhead and carrying costs), and selling 
and marketing costs (such as model maintenance costs and promotional and advertising campaign costs).  Depending on what 
objective we are trying to accomplish with a community, it could have a significant impact on the project cash flow analysis.  
For example, if our business objective is to drive delivery levels our project cash flow analysis will be different than if the 
business objective is to preserve operating margins.  These objectives may vary significantly from project to project, from 
division to division, and over time with respect to the same project. 

 
Once we have determined a real estate project is impaired, we calculate the fair value of the project under a land 

residual value analysis and in certain cases in conjunction with a discounted cash flow analysis.  Under the land residual 
value analysis, we estimate what a willing buyer (including us) would pay and what a willing seller would sell a parcel of 
land for (other than in a forced liquidation) in order to generate a market rate operating margin based on projected revenues, 
costs to develop land, and costs to construct and sell homes within a community.  Under the discounted cash flow method, all 
estimated future cash inflows and outflows directly associated with the real estate project are discounted to calculate fair 
value.  The net present value of these project cash flows are then compared to the carrying value of the asset to determine the 
amount of the impairment that is required.  The land residual value analysis is the primary method that we use to calculate 
impairments as it is the principal method used by us and land sellers for determining the fair value of a residential parcel of 
land.  In many cases, we also supplement our land residual value analysis with a discounted cash flow analysis in evaluating 
the fair value.  In addition, for projects that require a longer time frame to develop and sell assets, in some instances we 
incorporate a certain level of inflation or deflation into our projected revenue and cost assumptions.  This evaluation and the 
assumptions used by management to determine future estimated cash flows and fair value require a substantial degree of 
judgment, especially with respect to real estate projects that have a substantial amount of development to be completed, have 
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not started selling or are in the early stages of sales, or are longer-term in duration.  Due to the inherent uncertainty in the 
estimation process, significant volatility in the demand for new housing, and the availability of mortgage financing for 
potential homebuyers, actual results could differ significantly from our estimates. 

 
From time to time, we write-off deposits related to land options that we decide not to exercise.  The decision not to 

exercise a land option takes into consideration changes in market conditions, the timing of required land takedowns, the 
willingness of land sellers to modify terms of the land option contract (including the timing of land takedowns), the 
availability and best use of our capital, and other factors.  The write-off is charged to homebuilding other income (expense) in 
our consolidated statement of operations in the period that we determine it is probable that the optioned property will not be 
acquired.  If we recover deposits which were previously written off, the recoveries are recorded to homebuilding other 
income (expense) in the period received. 

 
Stock-Based Compensation 

We account for share-based awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation, which 
requires that compensation expense be measured and recognized at an amount equal to the fair value of share-based payments 
granted under compensation arrangements.  Our outstanding share-based awards include stock options, stock appreciation 
rights, restricted and unrestricted stock, and performance share awards.  The fair value of stock options and stock 
appreciation rights that vest based on time is calculated by using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the fair value of 
stock appreciation rights that vest based on market performance is calculated by using a lattice model.  The fair value of 
restricted stock, unrestricted stock and performance share awards is based on the market value of our common stock as of the 
grant date.  The determination of the fair value of share-based awards at the grant date requires judgment in developing 
assumptions and involves a number of variables.  These variables include, but are not limited to:  expected stock-price 
volatility over the term of the awards and expected stock option exercise behavior.  Additionally, judgment is required in 
estimating the number of share-based awards that are expected to be forfeited and, in the case of performance share awards, 
the level of performance that will be achieved and the number of shares that will be earned.  If actual results differ 
significantly from these estimates, stock-based compensation expense and our consolidated results of operations could be 
significantly impacted.   

Homebuilding Revenue and Cost of Sales 
 
Homebuilding revenue and cost of sales are recognized after construction is completed, a sufficient down payment has 

been received, title has transferred to the homebuyer, collection of the purchase price is reasonably assured and we have no 
continuing involvement. Cost of sales is recorded based upon total estimated costs to be allocated to each home within a 
community. Any changes to the estimated costs are allocated to the remaining undelivered lots and homes within their 
respective community. The estimation and allocation of these costs requires a substantial degree of judgment by 
management. 

 
The estimation process involved in determining relative sales or fair values is inherently uncertain because it involves 

estimating future sales values of homes before delivery. Additionally, in determining the allocation of costs to a particular 
land parcel or individual home, we rely on project budgets that are based on a variety of assumptions, including assumptions 
about construction schedules and future costs to be incurred. It is common that actual results differ from budgeted amounts 
for various reasons, including construction delays, increases in costs that have not been committed or unforeseen issues 
encountered during construction that fall outside the scope of existing contracts, or costs that come in less than originally 
anticipated. While the actual results for a particular construction project are accurately reported over time, a variance between 
the budget and actual costs could result in the understatement or overstatement of costs and have a related impact on gross 
margins between reporting periods. To reduce the potential for such variances, we have procedures that have been applied on 
a consistent basis, including assessing and revising project budgets on a periodic basis, obtaining commitments from 
subcontractors and vendors for future costs to be incurred, and utilizing the most recent information available to estimate 
costs. We believe that these policies and procedures provide for reasonably dependable estimates for purposes of calculating 
amounts to be relieved from inventories and expensed to cost of sales in connection with the sale of homes. 

 
Variable Interest Entities 
 
We account for variable interest entities in accordance with ASC Topic 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”).  Under ASC 

810, a variable interest entity (“VIE”) is created when: (a) the equity investment at risk in the entity is not sufficient to permit 
the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support provided by other parties, including the 
equity holders; (b) the entity’s equity holders as a group either (i) lack the direct or indirect ability to make decisions about 
the entity, (ii) are not obligated to absorb expected losses of the entity or (iii) do not have the right to receive expected 
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residual returns of the entity; or (c) the entity’s equity holders have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic 
interests, and the activities of the entity involve or are conducted on behalf of the equity holder with disproportionately few 
voting rights. If an entity is deemed to be a VIE pursuant to ASC 810, the enterprise that has both (i) the power to direct the 
activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb the 
expected losses of the entity or right to receive benefits from the entity that could be potentially significant to the VIE is 
considered the primary beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE.  In accordance with ASC 810, we perform ongoing 
reassessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE. 

 
Unconsolidated Homebuilding and Land Development Joint Ventures 
 
Investments in our unconsolidated homebuilding and land development joint ventures are accounted for under the 

equity method of accounting.  Under the equity method, we recognize our proportionate share of earnings and losses earned 
by the joint venture upon the delivery of lots or homes to third parties.  All joint venture profits generated from land sales to 
us are deferred and recorded as a reduction to our cost basis in the lots we purchase until we ultimately sell the homes to be 
constructed to third parties.  Our share of joint venture losses from land sales to us are recorded in the period we acquire the 
property from the joint venture.  Our ownership interests in our unconsolidated joint ventures vary but are generally less than 
or equal to 50%.   

 
We review inventory projects within our unconsolidated joint ventures for impairments consistent with the critical 

accounting policy described above under “Inventories and Impairments.”  We also review our investments in unconsolidated 
joint ventures for evidence of an other than temporary decline in value.  To the extent that we deem any portion of our 
investment in unconsolidated joint ventures not recoverable, we impair our investment accordingly. 

 
In addition, we accrue for guarantees provided to unconsolidated joint ventures when it is determined that there is an 

obligation that is due from us.  These obligations consist of various items, including but not limited to, surety indemnities, 
credit enhancements provided in connection with joint venture borrowings such as loan-to-value maintenance agreements, 
construction completion agreements, and environmental indemnities.  In many cases we share these obligations with our joint 
venture partners, and in some cases, we are solely responsible for such obligations.  For further discussion regarding these 
guarantees, please see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations – Off-
Balance Sheet Arrangements”. 

 
Warranty Accruals 
 
In the normal course of business, we incur warranty-related costs associated with homes that have been delivered to 

homebuyers.  Estimated future direct warranty costs are accrued and charged to cost of sales in the period when the related 
homebuilding revenues are recognized while indirect warranty overhead salaries and related costs are charged to cost of sales 
in the period incurred.  Amounts accrued are based upon historical experience rates.  We review the adequacy of the warranty 
accruals each reporting period by evaluating the historical warranty experience in each market in which we operate, and the 
warranty accruals are adjusted as appropriate for current quantitative and qualitative factors.  Factors that affect the warranty 
accruals include the number of homes delivered, historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims, and cost per claim.  
Although we consider the warranty accruals reflected in our consolidated balance sheet to be adequate, actual future costs 
could differ significantly from our currently estimated amounts. 

 
Insurance and Litigation Accruals 
 
Insurance and litigation accruals are established with respect to estimated future claims cost.  We maintain general 

liability insurance designed to protect us against a portion of our risk of loss from construction-related claims.  We also 
generally require our subcontractors and design professionals to indemnify us for liabilities arising from their work, subject to 
various limitations.  However, such indemnity is significantly limited with respect to certain subcontractors that are added to 
our general liability insurance policy.  We record allowances to cover our estimated costs of self-insured retentions and 
deductible amounts under these policies and estimated costs for claims that may not be covered by applicable insurance or 
indemnities.  Estimation of these accruals include consideration of our claims history, including current claims, estimates of 
claims incurred but not yet reported, and potential for recovery of costs from insurance and other sources.  We utilize the 
services of an independent third party actuary to assist us with evaluating the level of our insurance and litigation accruals.  
Because of the high degree of judgment required in determining these estimated accrual amounts, actual future claim costs 
could differ significantly from our currently estimated amounts. 
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Income Taxes 
 
We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”).  This statement requires 

an asset and a liability approach for measuring deferred taxes based on temporary differences between the financial statement 
and tax bases of assets and liabilities existing at each balance sheet date using enacted tax rates for years in which taxes are 
expected to be paid or recovered. 

 
We evaluate our deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis to determine whether a valuation allowance is required.  In 

accordance with ASC 740, we assess whether a valuation allowance should be established based on our determination of 
whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.  The ultimate 
realization of our deferred tax assets depends primarily on our ability to generate future taxable income during the periods in 
which the related temporary differences become deductible.  The assessment of a valuation allowance includes giving 
appropriate consideration to all positive and negative evidence related to the realization of the deferred tax asset.  This 
assessment considers, among other things, the nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses, forecasts of 
future profitability, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, our experience with operating loss and tax credit 
carryforwards not expiring unused, and tax planning alternatives.  Significant judgment is required in determining the future 
tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements and/or tax returns.  Differences 
between anticipated and actual outcomes of these future tax consequences could have a material impact on our consolidated 
financial position or results of operations.  Changes in existing tax laws and tax rates also affect actual tax results and the 
valuation of deferred tax assets over time. 

 
Based on such an analysis and on an evaluation of available positive and negative information and our projection of the 

income we expected to generate in future years, we concluded that it was more likely than not that most of our deferred tax 
asset would be realized.  As of December 31, 2014, the deferred tax asset valuation allowance of $2.6 million related to state 
net operating loss carryforwards that are limited by shorter carryforward periods.  To the extent that we conclude that it is 
more likely than not that the remaining valuation allowance will be utilized, we will be able to reduce our effective tax rate, 
by reducing the valuation allowance and offsetting a portion of taxable income. Conversely, any significant future operating 
losses generated by us in the near term may increase the deferred tax asset valuation allowance and adversely impact our 
income tax provision (benefit) to the extent we enter into a cumulative loss position as described in ASC 740. 

 
Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are recognized in the financial statements as a component of 

income tax expense. Significant judgment is required to evaluate uncertain tax positions. We evaluate our uncertain tax 
positions on a quarterly basis. Our evaluations are based upon a number of factors, including changes in facts or 
circumstances, changes in tax law, correspondence with tax authorities during the course of audits and effective settlement of 
audit issues. Changes in the recognition or measurement of uncertain tax positions could result in material increases or 
decreases in our income tax expense in the period in which we make the change. 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

See Note 2.u. in our accompanying consolidated financial statements.  
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
  

This report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended.  In addition, other statements we may make from time to time, such as press releases, oral statements made by 
Company officials and other reports we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, may also contain such forward-
looking statements.  Forward-looking statements in this report include, but are not limited to, statements regarding:    
 
 our strategy; 
 our plans to continue to use significant portions of our cash resources to make substantial investments in land; 
 our plans to invest in larger land parcels; 
 housing market conditions and trends in the geographic markets in which we operate; 
 the impact of future market rate risks on our financial assets and borrowings; 
 our expectation to convert year-end backlog in 2015;  
 the sufficiency of our warranty and other reserves;  
 trends in new home deliveries, orders, backlog, home pricing, leverage and gross margins; 
 housing market conditions and trends in the geographic markets in which we operate; 
 the sufficiency of our liquidity to implement our strategy and our ability to access additional capital and refinance 

existing indebtedness; 
 litigation outcomes and related costs; 
 plans to purchase our notes prior to maturity and to engage in debt exchange transactions; 
 seasonal trends relating to our operating and leverage levels; 
 our ability to realize the value of our deferred tax assets and the timing relating thereto;  
 our intention of not paying dividends; 
 our plans to enhance revenue while maintaining an appropriate sales pace; 
 our plans to concentrate operations and capital in growing markets; 
 amounts remaining to complete relating to existing surety bonds; and 
 the impact of recent accounting standards. 

 
Forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations or beliefs regarding future events or circumstances, 

and you should not place undue reliance on these statements.  Such statements involve known and unknown risks, 
uncertainties, assumptions and other factors—many of which are out of our control and difficult to forecast—that may cause 
actual results to differ materially from those that may be described or implied.  Such factors include, but are not limited to, 
the risks described in this Annual Report under the heading “Risk Factors,” which are incorporated by reference herein. 

 
Except as required by law, we assume no, and hereby disclaim any, obligation to update any of the foregoing or any 

other forward-looking statements.  We nonetheless reserve the right to make such updates from time to time by press release, 
periodic report or other method of public disclosure without the need for specific reference to this report.  No such update 
shall be deemed to indicate that other statements not addressed by such update remain correct or create an obligation to 
provide any other updates. 
  
ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK  
  

We are exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest rates on our rate-locked loan commitments, mortgage 
loans held for sale and outstanding variable rate debt.  Other than forward sales commitments in connection with preselling 
loans to third party investors, we did not utilize swaps, forward or option contracts on interest rates or commodities, or other 
types of derivative financial instruments as of or during the year ended December 31, 2014.  We have not entered into and 
currently do not hold derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.   

 
As part of our ongoing operations, we provide mortgage loans to our homebuyers through our mortgage financing 

subsidiary, Standard Pacific Mortgage.  Standard Pacific Mortgage manages the interest rate risk associated with making loan 
commitments to our customers and holding loans for sale by preselling loans.  Preselling loans consists of obtaining 
commitments (subject to certain conditions) from third party investors to purchase the mortgage loans while concurrently 
extending interest rate locks to loan applicants.  Before completing the sale to these investors, Standard Pacific Mortgage 
finances these loans under its mortgage credit facilities for a short period of time (typically for 30 to 45 days), while the 
investors complete their administrative review of the applicable loan documents.  While preselling these loans reduces risk, 
we remain subject to risk relating to investor non-performance, particularly during periods of significant market turmoil.  As 
of December 31, 2014, Standard Pacific Mortgage had approximately $172.0 million in closed mortgage loans held for sale 
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and $38.1 million of mortgage loans that we were committed to sell to investors subject to our funding of the loans and 
completion of the investors’ administrative review of the applicable loan documents.   

  
The table below details the principal amount and the average interest rates for the mortgage loans held for sale, 

mortgage loans held for investment and outstanding debt for each category based upon the expected maturity or disposition 
dates.  Certain mortgage loans held for sale require periodic principal payments prior to the expected maturity date.  The fair 
value estimates for these mortgage loans held for sale are based upon future discounted cash flows of similar type notes or 
quoted market prices for similar loans. The fair value of mortgage loans held for investment is based on the estimated market 
value of the underlying collateral based on market data and other factors for similar type properties as further adjusted to 
reflect their estimated net realizable value of carrying the loans through disposition. The fair value of our variable rate debt, 
which consists of our mortgage credit facilities, is based on quoted market prices for the same or similar instruments as of 
December 31, 2014.  Our fixed rate debt consists of secured project debt and other notes payable, senior notes payable and 
convertible senior notes payable.  The interest rates on our secured project debt and other notes payable approximate the 
current rates available for secured real estate financing with similar terms and maturities and, as a result, their carrying 
amounts approximate fair value.  The fair values of our senior notes payable and convertible senior notes payable are based 
on their quoted market prices as of December 31, 2014.  

 
Expected Maturity Date

Estimated
December 31, 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total Fair Value

  
Assets:   

Mortgage loans held for sale (1)………  $ 172,014 $ ― $ ― $ ― $ ― $ ― $ 172,014    $ 176,511    
Average interest rate…………..   3.8%

Mortgage loans held for   
investment, net………………………  $ 261        $ 273        $ 286        $ 300        $ 314        $ 12,946       $ 14,380      $ 14,380      

Average interest rate…………..   4.7% 4.8% 4.8% 4.8% 4.8% 4.8% 4.8%  
Liabilities:   

Fixed rate debt …………………………  $ 30,475   $ 281,256 $ 1,172     $ 576,055 $ 520        $ 1,253,000  $ 2,142,478 $ 2,342,528 
Average interest rate…………..   6.9% 10.7% 7.5% 8.4% 7.5% 5.8% 7.2%

  
Variable rate debt………………………  $ 89,413   $ ― $ ― $ ― $ ― $ ― $ 89,413      $ 89,413      

Average interest rate…………..   2.4%

Off-Balance Sheet Financial   
Instruments:     

Commitments to originate   
mortgage loans:   

Notional amount…………………  $ 38,060   $ ― $ ― $ ― $ ― $ ― $ 38,060      $ 38,047      
Average interest rate…………..   3.8%

   

(Dollars in thousands)

 

_____________  
(1) All of the amounts presented in this line item reflect the expected 2015 disposition of the loans rather than the actual scheduled maturity dates of these 

mortgages. 

 
Based on the current interest rate management policies we have in place with respect to most of our mortgage loans 

held for sale, mortgage loans held for investment, commitments to originate rate-locked mortgage loans and outstanding debt, 
we do not believe that the future market rate risks related to the above securities will have a material adverse impact on our 
financial position, results of operations or liquidity. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA  
  

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  
  

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Standard Pacific Corp: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ 
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of 
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), Standard Pacific Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated February 23, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

Irvine, California 
February 23, 2015 
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STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Homebuilding:     
Home sale revenues………………………………………………………  $ 2,366,754        $ 1,898,989        $ 1,190,252        
Land sale revenues…………………………………………………………  44,424             15,620             46,706             

Total revenues…………………………...……..………………………   2,411,178        1,914,609        1,236,958        
Cost of home sales…………………………………………………………  (1,748,954)       (1,431,797)       (946,630)          
Cost of land sales…………………………………………………………   (43,841)            (13,616)            (46,654)            

Total cost of sales………………………..…………………..…………  (1,792,795)       (1,445,413)       (993,284)          

Gross margin…………...…………………………...………………   618,383           469,196           243,674           

Selling, general and administrative expenses……………………………… (275,861)          (230,691)          (172,207)          
Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures………………………… (668)                 949                  (2,090)              
Interest expense…………………………...………………………………  ―  ― (6,396)              
Other income (expense)………….………………………..……………… (1,733)              6,815               4,664               

Homebuilding pretax income………………………………..…..…… 340,121           246,269           67,645             

Financial Services:  
Revenues………………………..………………...………………………  24,119             24,910             21,300             
Expenses……………………………...……………..……………………  (15,245)            (14,159)            (11,062)            
Other income ….………………………………...……...………………… 969                  678                  304                  

Financial services pretax income……………………………….….… 9,843               11,429             10,542             

Income before taxes…………………………….………….………………… 349,964           257,698           78,187             
(Provision) benefit for income taxes…………………………..……….……  (134,099)          (68,983)            453,234           

Net income……………………...…………………………………………… 215,865           188,715           531,421           

  Less: Net income allocated to preferred shareholder…………….………… (51,650)            (57,386)            (224,408)          

  Less: Net income allocated to unvested restricted stock…………….……… (297)                 (265)                 (410)                 
Net income available to common stockholders……………………………… $ 163,918           $ 131,064           $ 306,603           

 
Income per common share:

Basic………………………………..……….……………………………… $ 0.59                 $ 0.52                 $ 1.52                 
Diluted……………………………...…….………………………………  $ 0.54                 $ 0.47                 $ 1.44                 

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic……………………….…………………..…….……………………   278,687,740    253,118,247    201,953,799    
Diluted……………………………………...………………………………   316,285,412    291,173,953    220,518,897    

Weighted average additional common shares outstanding
if preferred shares converted to common shares………………………   87,812,786      110,826,557    147,812,786    

   
Total weighted average diluted common shares outstanding

if preferred shares converted to common shares………………………   404,098,198    402,000,510    368,331,683    

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

    
Net income……………………….………………………………………… $ 215,865           $ 188,715           $ 531,421           
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:   

Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps…………………………...…….                ― 2,228               6,419               
Total comprehensive income……………………………………………… $ 215,865           $ 190,943           $ 537,840           

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  
 

2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands)

 
Homebuilding:  

Cash and equivalents………………………..……………………………………...……………… $ 180,428      $ 355,489       
Restricted cash……………………………………………………………………………………… 38,222        21,460         
Trade and other receivables………………..…………………………………….………………… 19,005        14,431         
Inventories:  

Owned……………………………...……….………………………………………………….… 3,255,204   2,536,102    
Not owned……………………………………..…………………………………….…………… 85,153        98,341         

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures……………………………………………...……… 50,111        66,054         
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowance of $2,561 and $4,591 at  

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively……………………………………………………… 276,402      375,400       
Other assets….……………………………………………………………..……………………… 42,592        45,977         

Total Homebuilding Assets……………………………………………………………………… 3,947,117   3,513,254    
Financial Services:  

Cash and equivalents………………………..…………………………………………...………… 31,965        7,802           
Restricted cash……………………………………………………………………………………… 1,295          1,295           
Mortgage loans held for sale, net…………………….……………………………...……………… 174,420      122,031       
Mortgage loans held for investment, net……………………...…………………………………… 14,380        12,220         
Other assets………………………...…………………………………………….………………… 5,243          5,503           

Total Financial Services Assets………………………………………………………………… 227,303      148,851       
Total Assets…………………..………………………...………………………………… $ 4,174,420   $ 3,662,105    

 
Homebuilding:  

Accounts payable………………….………………………………………….…………………… $ 45,085        $ 35,771         
Accrued liabilities………………………..…………………………………………….…………… 223,783      214,266       
Secured project debt and other notes payable…………………….…………………...…………… 4,689          6,351           
Senior notes payable…………………………...……………………………………………..…… 2,131,393   1,833,244    

Total Homebuilding Liabilities…………………………………………………………………  2,404,950   2,089,632    
Financial Services:  

Accounts payable and other liabilities…………...……………………………….………………… 3,369          2,646           
Mortgage credit facilities…………………………...…………………..…………………………  89,413        100,867       

Total Financial Services Liabilities……………………………………………………………… 92,782        103,513       
Total Liabilities…………………………………….……………………...……………… 2,497,732   2,193,145    

Equity:  
Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized; 267,829 shares  
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013………………………...……………… 3                 3                  

Common stock, $0.01 par value; 600,000,000 shares authorized; 275,141,189 and  
277,618,177 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively……  2,751          2,776           

Additional paid-in capital………………………………………...………………………………… 1,346,702   1,354,814    
Accumulated earnings………………….…………………………………………………………… 327,232      111,367       
       Total Equity…………………………………………………………………………………… 1,676,688   1,468,960    

Total Liabilities and Equity……………………………………...…………………..…… $ 4,174,420   $ 3,662,105    

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

December 31,

 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES  
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
 

Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2013 and 2014

Number of 
Preferred

Shares
Preferred 

Stock

Number of 
Common
Shares

Common 
Stock

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Accumulated 
Earnings 
(Deficit)

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Loss

Total
Stockholders' 

Equity
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance, December 31, 2011………………  450,829     $ 5            198,563,273     $ 1,985      $ 1,239,180      $ (608,769)     $ (8,647)          $ 623,754        
Net income…………………………………  ― ― ― ― ― 531,421      ― 531,421        
Change in fair value of interest rate   

swaps, net of tax………………………  ― ― ― ― ― ― 6,419           6,419            
Total comprehensive income………………  537,840        
Stock issuances under employee   

plans, including income tax   
benefits…………………………………  ― ― 5,224,948         52           15,172           ― ― 15,224          

Issuance of common stock in   
connection with equity offering,
net of issuance costs……………………  ― ― 13,377,171       134         71,713           ― ― 71,847          

Common stock returned under   
share lending facility…………………  ― ― (3,919,904)        (39)         39                  ― ― ― 

Amortization of stock-based   
compensation…………………………  ― ― ― ― 7,151             ― ― 7,151            

Balance, December 31, 2012………………  450,829     5            213,245,488     2,132      1,333,255      (77,348)       (2,228)          1,255,816     
Net income…………………………………  ― ― ― ― ― 188,715      ― 188,715        
Change in fair value of interest rate   

swaps, net of tax………………………  ― ― ― ― ― ― 2,228           2,228            
Total comprehensive income………………  190,943        
Stock issuances under employee   

plans, including income tax   
benefits…………………………………  ― ― 4,372,689         44           13,492           ― ― 13,536          

Issuance of common stock in   
connection with preferred stock
conversion, net of issuance costs………  (183,000)    (2)           60,000,000       600         (948)               ― ― (350)              

Amortization of stock-based   
compensation…………………………  ― ― ― ― 9,015             ― ― 9,015            

Balance, December 31, 2013………………  267,829     3            277,618,177     2,776      1,354,814      111,367      ― 1,468,960     
Net income…………………………………  ― ― ― ― ― 215,865      ― 215,865        
Stock issuances under employee   

plans, including income tax   
benefits…………………………………  ― ― 2,563,012         25           20,150           ― ― 20,175          

Repurchase and retirement of common   
stock, net of expenses…………………  ― ― (5,040,000)        (50)         (36,731)          ― ― (36,781)         

Amortization of stock-based   
compensation…………………………  ― ― ― ― 8,469             ― ― 8,469            

Balance, December 31, 2014………………  267,829     $ 3            275,141,189     $ 2,751      $ 1,346,702      $ 327,232      $ ― $ 1,676,688     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.  
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STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

(Dollars in thousands)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income………………………………………..…………………………………………  $ 215,865      $ 188,715         $ 531,421      
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)   

operating activities:   
(Income) loss from unconsolidated joint ventures……………………………...……  668             (949)               2,090          
Cash distributions of income from unconsolidated joint ventures……………………  1,875          3,375             3,910          
Depreciation and amortization………………………..………………………………  4,928          3,576             2,480          
Loss on disposal of property and equipment…………………………………………  11               17                  37               
Amortization of stock-based compensation………………….………………………  8,469          9,015             7,151          
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements………………………  (13,404)      ― ―
Deferred income tax provision (benefit)………………………..……………………  98,998        84,214           (454,000)    
Deposit write-offs……………………………………………………………………  ― ― 133             
Changes in cash and equivalents due to:   

Trade and other receivables………………………...……………………………  (4,777)        (3,244)            801             
Mortgage loans held for sale…………………………...…………………………  (52,838)      (2,543)            (46,339)      
Inventories - owned…………………………………….…………………………  (642,008)    (415,312)        (315,639)    
Inventories - not owned…………….……………………………………………  (33,027)      (43,319)          (31,551)      
Other assets…………………………..…………………………………………   9,306          965                2,618          
Accounts payable…………………………………………………………………  9,314          13,325           4,617          
Accrued liabilities…………………..……………………………………………  34,223        7,949             9,155          

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities………………………………………  (362,397)    (154,216)        (283,116)     
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:   

Investments in unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures……………………..…………  (10,506)      (24,328)          (57,458)      
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures…………………  18,010        4,763             14,530        
Net cash paid for acquisitions………………………………………………………………  (33,770)      (116,262)        (60,752)      
Other investing activities……………………………………………………………………  (4,754)        (8,030)            (1,525)        

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities………………………………………  (31,020)      (143,857)        (105,205)     
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:   

Change in restricted cash……………………………………………………………………  (16,762)      6,565             3,347          
Principal payments on secured project debt and other notes payable……………..…………  (1,458)        (8,334)            (866)           
Principal payments on senior notes payable…………………………………………………  (4,971)        ― ―
Principal payments on senior subordinated notes payable……………..………………….   ― ― (49,603)      
Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes payable……………………….………………   300,000      300,000         253,000      
Payment of debt issuance costs………………………………………………………………  (6,230)        (5,316)            (11,761)      
Net proceeds from (payments on) mortgage credit facilities………………………………   (11,454)      8,708             45,351        
Repurchases of common stock………………………………………………………………  (36,781)      ― ―
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock ……………………………………..………  ― ― 75,849        
Payment of common stock issuance costs…………………………..……………………… ― ― (4,002)        
Payment of issuance costs in connection with preferred shareholder equity transactions…  ― (350)               ―
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options……………………..…………………………  6,771          13,536           13,039        
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements………………………………  13,404        ― ―

Net cash provided by (used in) by financing activities…………………………………   242,519      314,809         324,354       
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents………………………………………………   (150,898)    16,736           (63,967)      
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year……………………..………………………………  363,291      346,555         410,522      

Cash and equivalents at end of year………………………...…………………………………   $ 212,393      $ 363,291         $ 346,555      

  
Cash and equivalents at end of year……………………………………………………………  $ 212,393      $ 363,291         $ 346,555      
Homebuilding restricted cash at end of year……………………………………………………  38,222        21,460           26,900        
Financial services restricted cash at end of year………………………………………………   1,295          1,295             2,420          

Cash and equivalents and restricted cash at end of year………………………………………   $ 251,910      $ 386,046         $ 375,875      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements. 
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1. Company Organization and Operations  
  

We are a geographically diversified builder of single-family attached and detached homes.  We construct homes within 
a wide range of price and size targeting a broad range of homebuyers, with an emphasis on move-up buyers.  We have 
operations in major metropolitan markets in California, Florida, the Carolinas, Texas, Arizona and Colorado.  We also 
provide mortgage financing services to our homebuyers through our mortgage financing subsidiary and title examination 
services to our Texas and Florida homebuyers through our title services subsidiary.  Unless the context otherwise requires, 
the terms “we,” “us,” “our” and “the Company” refer to Standard Pacific Corp. and its subsidiaries. 

 
The percentages of our homes delivered by state for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were as 

follows:  
  

  
Year Ended December 31,

  

State 
  

2014 
  

2013  
  

2012

California ...................................................................................................................  36%  38%  40%
Florida ........................................................................................................................  21  22  18
Texas ..........................................................................................................................  17   14   14  
Carolinas ....................................................................................................................  16  16  17 
Arizona .......................................................................................................................  5  6  8 
Colorado .....................................................................................................................  5  4  3

        

Total ..................................................................................................................  100%  100%  100%
    

  
We generate a significant amount of our revenues and profits in California.     

  
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
  

a. Basis of Presentation  
  

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Standard Pacific Corp. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. 
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain reclassifications have been made to 
prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation. 
  

b. Use of Estimates  
  

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
  

c. Segment Reporting  
 

ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting (“ASC 280”) established standards for the manner in which public enterprises 
report information about operating segments.  In accordance with ASC 280, we have determined that each of our 
homebuilding operating divisions and our financial services operations (consisting of our mortgage financing and title 
operations) are our operating segments.  Corporate is a non-operating segment.  In accordance with the aggregation criteria 
defined in ASC 280, we have grouped our homebuilding operations into three reportable segments: California; Southwest, 
consisting of our operating divisions in Arizona, Texas, Colorado and Nevada; and Southeast, consisting of our operating 
divisions in Florida and the Carolinas.  In particular, we have determined that the homebuilding operating divisions within 
their respective reportable segments have similar economic characteristics, including similar historical and expected future 
long-term gross margin percentages.  In addition, our homebuilding operating divisions also share all other relevant 
aggregation characteristics prescribed in ASC 280, such as similar product types, production processes and methods of 
distribution. 
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d. Variable Interest Entities  

  
We account for variable interest entities in accordance with ASC Topic 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”).  Under ASC 

810, a variable interest entity (“VIE”) is created when: (a) the equity investment at risk in the entity is not sufficient to permit 
the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support provided by other parties, including the 
equity holders; (b) the entity’s equity holders as a group either (i) lack the direct or indirect ability to make decisions about 
the entity, (ii) are not obligated to absorb expected losses of the entity or (iii) do not have the right to receive expected 
residual returns of the entity; or (c) the entity’s equity holders have voting rights that are not proportionate to their economic 
interests, and the activities of the entity involve or are conducted on behalf of the equity holder with disproportionately few 
voting rights. If an entity is deemed to be a VIE pursuant to ASC 810, the enterprise that has both (i) the power to direct the 
activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the entity’s economic performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb the 
expected losses of the entity or right to receive benefits from the entity that could be potentially significant to the VIE is 
considered the primary beneficiary and must consolidate the VIE.  In accordance with ASC 810, we perform ongoing 
reassessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE. 
  

e. Limited Partnerships and Limited Liability Companies  
  

We analyze our homebuilding and land development joint ventures under the provisions of ASC 810 (as discussed 
above) when determining whether the entity should be consolidated. In accordance with the provisions of ASC 810, limited 
partnerships or similar entities, such as limited liability companies, must be further evaluated under the presumption that the 
general partner, or the managing member in the case of a limited liability company, is deemed to have a controlling interest 
and therefore must consolidate the entity unless the limited partners or non-managing members have: (1) the ability, either by 
a single limited partner or through a simple majority vote, to dissolve or liquidate the entity, or kick-out the managing 
member/general partner without cause, or (2) substantive participatory rights that are exercised in the ordinary course of 
business. Under the provisions of ASC 810, we may be required to consolidate certain investments in which we hold a 
general partner or managing member interest.   
  

f. Revenue Recognition  
  

In accordance with ASC Topic 360-20, Property, Plant, and Equipment – Real Estate Sales (“ASC 360-20”), 
homebuilding revenues are recorded after construction is completed, a sufficient down payment has been received, title has 
passed to the homebuyer, collection of the purchase price is reasonably assured and we have no other continuing 
involvement.  In instances where the homebuyer’s financing is originated by our mortgage financing subsidiary and the buyer 
has not made an adequate initial or continuing investment as prescribed by ASC 360-20, the profit on such home sales is 
deferred until the sale of the related mortgage loan to a third-party investor has been completed and the contractual terms of 
the applicable early payment default provisions have lapsed.   

 
In accordance with ASC Topic 825, Financial Instruments (“ASC 825”), loan origination fees and expenses are 

recognized upon origination of loans by our mortgage financing operation.  Generally our policy is to sell all mortgage loans 
originated.  These sales generally occur within a short period of time (typically 30-45 days of origination).  Mortgage loan 
interest is accrued only so long as it is deemed collectible.   
  

g. Cost of Sales  
  

Homebuilding cost of sales is recognized in the period when the related homebuilding revenues are recognized.  Cost 
of sales is recorded based upon total estimated costs to be allocated to each home within a community. Certain direct 
construction costs are specifically identified and allocated to homes while other common costs, such as land, land 
improvements and carrying costs, are allocated to homes within a community based upon their anticipated relative sales or 
fair value.  Any changes to the estimated costs are allocated to the remaining undelivered lots and homes within their 
respective community.  The estimation of these costs requires a substantial degree of judgment by management.  
  

h. Warranty Costs  
  

Estimated future direct warranty costs are accrued and charged to cost of sales in the period when the related 
homebuilding revenues are recognized.  Amounts accrued are based upon historical experience.  Indirect warranty overhead 
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salaries and related costs are charged to cost of sales in the period incurred.  We assess the adequacy of our warranty accrual 
on a quarterly basis and adjust the amounts recorded if necessary.  During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 
2012, we did not record any warranty adjustments.  Our warranty accrual is included in accrued liabilities in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  Changes in our warranty accrual are detailed in the table set forth below: 

  

2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Warranty accrual, beginning of the year……………………………………  13,811$    15,514$    17,572$    
Warranty costs accrued during the year……………………………………  7,550        2,495        1,497        
Warranty costs paid during the year………………………………………  (7,777)       (4,198)      (3,555)       
Warranty accrual, end of the year…………………………………………  13,584$    13,811$    15,514$    

Year Ended December 31,

 
   

i. Earnings Per Common Share  
  

We compute earnings per share in accordance with ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share (“ASC 260”), which requires 
earnings per share for each class of stock (common stock and participating preferred stock) to be calculated using the two-
class method.  The two-class method is an allocation of earnings between the holders of common stock and a company's 
participating security holders.  Under the two-class method, earnings for the reporting period are allocated between common 
shareholders and other security holders based on their respective participation rights in undistributed earnings.  Unvested 
share-based payment awards that contain non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents are participating securities 
and, therefore, are included in computing earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. 

 
Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing income or loss available to common stockholders by the 

weighted average number of shares of basic common stock outstanding.  Our Series B junior participating convertible 
preferred stock (“Series B Preferred Stock”), which is convertible into shares of our common stock at the holder’s option 
(subject to a limitation based upon voting interest), and our unvested restricted stock, are classified as participating securities 
in accordance with ASC 260.  Net income allocated to the holders of our Series B Preferred Stock and unvested restricted 
stock is calculated based on the shareholders’ proportionate share of weighted average shares of common stock outstanding on 
an if-converted basis. 

 
For purposes of determining diluted earnings per common share, basic earnings per common share is further adjusted to 

include the effect of potential dilutive common shares outstanding, including stock options, stock appreciation rights, 
performance share awards and unvested restricted stock using the more dilutive of either the two-class method or the treasury 
stock method, and Series B Preferred Stock and convertible debt using the if-converted method.  Under the two-class method 
of calculating diluted earnings per share, net income is reallocated to common stock, the Series B Preferred stock and all 
dilutive securities based on the contractual participating rights of the security to share in the current earnings as if all of the 
earnings for the period had been distributed.  In the computation of diluted earnings per share, the two-class method and if-
converted method for the Series B Preferred Stock resulted in the same earnings per share amounts as the holder of the Series 
B Preferred Stock has the same economic rights as the holders of the common stock.  Shares outstanding under the share 
lending facility in 2012 were not treated as outstanding for earnings per share purposes in accordance with ASC 260, because 
the share borrower was required to return to us all borrowed shares (or identical shares) upon the maturity of our 6% 
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes, which occurred in October 2012.  On October 11, 2012, the remaining 3.9 million 
shares outstanding under the share lending facility were returned to us.  We cancelled and retired the shares upon receipt and 
no shares under the share lending facility remain outstanding. 
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The following table sets forth the components used in the computation of basic and diluted income per share. 
 

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

    
Numerator:

Net income……..…………………………………………………….…………………………   $ 215,865           $ 188,715          $ 531,421          
Less: Net income allocated to preferred shareholder…………………..…………………………  (51,650)           (57,386)           (224,408)         
Less: Net income allocated to unvested restricted stock…………………..……………………  (297)                (265)                (410)                
Net income available to common stockholders for basic   

earnings per common share…………………………………………………….……………  163,918           131,064          306,603          
Effect of dilutive securities:

Net income allocated to preferred shareholder……………………………………….………  51,650             57,386            224,408          
Interest on 1¼% convertible senior notes due 2032…………………………………………  899                  899                 268                 

Net income available to common and preferred stock for diluted   
earnings per share…………………………………….………………………………………  $ 216,467           $ 189,349          $ 531,279          

 
Denominator:   

Weighted average basic common shares outstanding…………………………...………………  278,687,740    253,118,247   201,953,799   
Weighted average additional common shares outstanding if preferred shares   

converted to common shares (if dilutive)……………………………………………………  87,812,786      110,826,557   147,812,786   
Total weighted average common shares outstanding if preferred shares

converted to common shares…………………………………..……………………………  366,500,526    363,944,804   349,766,585   
Effect of dilutive securities:   

Share-based awards…………………………………………………………………………  6,284,822        6,742,856       5,988,625       
1¼% convertible senior notes due 2032…………………..…………………………………  31,312,850      31,312,850     12,576,473     

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding……………….……………………………………  404,098,198    402,000,510   368,331,683   
 

Income per share:
Basic…………………………...…………………………………………………………………  $ 0.59                 $ 0.52                $ 1.52                
Diluted…………………………………..………………………………………………………  $ 0.54                 $ 0.47                $ 1.44                

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

 
j. Stock-Based Compensation  

  
We account for share-based awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation (“ASC 

718”).  ASC 718 requires that the cost resulting from all share-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial 
statements.  ASC 718 requires all entities to apply a fair value-based measurement method in accounting for share-based 
payment transactions with employees except for equity instruments held by employee share ownership plans. 
 

k. Cash and Equivalents and Restricted Cash  
  

Cash and equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and all highly liquid short-term investments, including 
interest-bearing securities purchased with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase.  At December 31, 
2014, restricted cash included $39.5 million of cash held in cash collateral accounts primarily related to certain letters of 
credit that have been issued and a portion related to our financial services subsidiary mortgage credit facilities ($38.2 million 
of homebuilding cash and $1.3 million of financial services cash).   
  

l. Mortgage Loans Held for Sale  
  

In accordance with ASC 825, mortgage loans held for sale are recorded at fair value and loan origination and related 
costs are recognized upon loan closing.  In addition, we recognize net interest income on loans held for sale from the date of 
origination through the date of disposition. We sell substantially all of the loans we originate in the secondary mortgage 
market, with servicing rights released on a non-recourse basis.  These sales are generally subject to our obligation to repay 
the gain on sale if the loan is prepaid by the borrower within a certain time period following such sale, or to repurchase loans 
or indemnify investors for losses from borrower defaults if, among other things, the loan purchaser’s underwriting guidelines 
are not met or there is fraud in connection with the loan.  We establish liabilities for such anticipated losses based upon, 
among other things, an analysis of indemnification and repurchase requests received, an estimate of potential indemnification 
or repurchase claims not yet received, our historical amount of indemnification payments and repurchases, and losses 
incurred through the disposition of affected loans.  During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we recorded 
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loan loss expense related to indemnification and repurchase allowances of $0.5 million, $0 and $1.0 million, respectively.  As 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had indemnity and repurchase allowances related to loans sold of $2.2 million.   
 
 m. Mortgage Loans Held for Investment 
 

Certain mortgage loans are classified as held for investment based on our intent and ability to hold the loans for the 
foreseeable future or to maturity.  Mortgage loans held for investment are recorded at their unpaid principal balance, net of 
discounts and premiums, unamortized net deferred loan origination costs and fees and allowance for loan losses.  Discounts, 
premiums, and net deferred loan origination costs and fees are amortized into income over the contractual life of the loan.  
Mortgage loans held for investment are continually evaluated for collectability and, if appropriate, specific allowances are 
established based on estimates of collateral value.  Loans are placed on non-accrual status for first trust deeds when the loan 
is 90 days past due and for second trust deeds when the loan is 30 days past due, and previously accrued interest is reversed 
from income if deemed uncollectible.  As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had allowances for loan losses for loans held 
for investment of $1.5 million and $2.3 million, respectively. 

 
n. Inventories  

  
Inventories consist of land, land under development, homes under construction, completed homes and model homes 

and are stated at cost, net of any impairment charges.  We capitalize direct carrying costs, including interest, property taxes 
and related development costs to inventories.  Field construction supervision and related direct overhead are also included in 
the capitalized cost of inventories.  Direct construction costs are specifically identified and allocated to homes while other 
common costs, such as land, land improvements and carrying costs, are allocated to homes within a community based upon 
their anticipated relative sales or fair value. 

 
We assess the recoverability of real estate inventories in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 360, Property, 

Plant, and Equipment (“ASC 360”).  ASC 360 requires long-lived assets, including inventories, that are expected to be held 
and used in operations to be carried at the lower of cost or, if impaired, the fair value of the asset.  ASC 360 requires that 
companies evaluate long-lived assets for impairment based on undiscounted future cash flows of the assets at the lowest level 
for which there is identifiable cash flows. Long-lived assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or 
fair value less cost to sell. 
  

o. Capitalization of Interest  
  
 We follow the practice of capitalizing interest to inventories owned during the period of development and to 
investments in unconsolidated homebuilding and land development joint ventures in accordance with ASC Topic 835, 
Interest (“ASC 835”).  Homebuilding interest capitalized as a cost of inventories owned is included in cost of sales as related 
units or lots are sold.  Interest capitalized to investments in unconsolidated homebuilding and land development joint 
ventures is included as a reduction of income from unconsolidated joint ventures when the related homes or lots are sold to 
third parties.  Interest capitalized to investments in unconsolidated land development joint ventures is transferred to 
inventories owned if the underlying lots are purchased by us.  To the extent our homebuilding debt exceeds our qualified 
assets as defined in ASC 835, we expense a portion of the interest incurred by us.  Qualified assets represent projects that are 
actively selling or under development as well as investments in unconsolidated joint ventures.  For the year ended December 
31, 2012 we expensed $6.4 million of interest costs related to the portion of our homebuilding debt in excess of our qualified 
assets in accordance with ASC 835.  During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, our qualified assets exceeded our 
homebuilding debt, and as a result, our interest incurred during 2014 and 2013 was capitalized in accordance with ASC 835.  
 



STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

49 

The following is a summary of homebuilding interest capitalized to inventories owned and investments in 
unconsolidated joint ventures, amortized to cost of sales and income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures and expensed 
as interest expense, for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012: 

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

  
Total interest incurred (1)……..………………………………...……………………………………  $ 153,695     $ 140,865     $ 141,827     
Less: Interest capitalized to inventories owned…………………..………………………….………  (151,962)    (137,990)    (129,136)   
Less: Interest capitalized to investments in unconsolidated joint ventures………………………...   (1,733)        (2,875)        (6,295)       
Interest expense …………………………………………………….…………………………….…  $  ―  $  ―  $ 6,396         

Interest previously capitalized to inventories owned, included in home cost of home sales………   $ 119,422     $ 120,714     $ 100,683     
Interest previously capitalized to inventories owned, included in land cost of land sales…………   $ 3,690         $ 1,064         $ 3,219         
Interest previously capitalized to investments in unconsolidated joint ventures,   

included in income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures……………………………………  $ 30              $ 441            $ 843            
Interest capitalized in ending inventories owned (2)…………………………………………………  $ 275,607     $ 240,734     $ 221,402     
Interest capitalized as a percentage of inventories owned……………………………………………  8.5% 9.5% 11.2%
Interest capitalized in ending investments in unconsolidated joint ventures (2)…………………..…  $ 665            $ 4,985         $ 6,921         
Interest capitalized as a percentage of investments in unconsolidated joint ventures………………  1.3% 7.5% 13.2%

(Dollars in thousands)

 
  

(1) For the years ended December 31,  2013 and 2012, interest incurred included the noncash amortization of $3.6 million and $10.4 million, 
respectively, of interest related to the Term Loan B swap that was unwound in the 2010 fourth quarter (please see Note 2.s. “Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities”).   

(2) During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, in connection with lot purchases from our joint ventures, $6.0 million, $4.4 million 
and $7.6 million, respectively, of capitalized interest was transferred from investments in unconsolidated joint ventures to inventories owned.  In 
addition, during the year ended December 31, 2013, approximately $0.8 million of capitalized interest was included in other income (expense) in 
connection with the abandonment of a project. 

 
p. Investments in Unconsolidated Land Development and Homebuilding Joint Ventures  

  
Investments in our unconsolidated land development and homebuilding joint ventures are accounted for under the 

equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, we recognize our proportionate share of earnings and losses 
generated by the joint venture upon the delivery of lots or homes to third parties.  All joint venture profits generated from 
land sales to us are deferred and recorded as a reduction to our cost basis in the lots purchased until the homes to be 
constructed are ultimately sold by us to third parties. Our ownership interests in our unconsolidated joint ventures vary, but 
are generally less than or equal to 50 percent.  

 
We review inventory projects within our unconsolidated joint ventures for impairments consistent with our real estate 

inventories described in Note 2.n.  We also review our investments in unconsolidated joint ventures for evidence of an other 
than temporary decline in value.  To the extent we deem any portion of our investment in unconsolidated joint ventures as not 
recoverable, we impair our investment accordingly. 
  

q. Income Taxes  
  

We account for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“ASC 740”).  ASC 740 requires an 
asset and liability approach for measuring deferred taxes based on temporary differences between the financial statement and 
tax bases of assets and liabilities existing at each balance sheet date using enacted tax rates for years in which taxes are 
expected to be paid or recovered. 

 
We evaluate our deferred tax assets on a quarterly basis to determine whether a valuation allowance is required.  In 

accordance with ASC 740, we assess whether a valuation allowance should be established based on our determination of 
whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.  The ultimate 
realization of deferred tax assets depends primarily on: (i) our ability to carry back net operating losses to tax years where we 
have previously paid income taxes based on applicable federal law; and (ii) our ability to generate future taxable income 
during the periods in which the related temporary differences become deductible.  The assessment of a valuation allowance 
includes giving appropriate consideration to all positive and negative evidence related to the realization of the deferred tax 
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asset.  This assessment considers, among other things, the nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses, 
forecasts of future profitability, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, our experience with operating loss and tax 
credit carryforwards not expiring unused, and tax planning alternatives.  Significant judgment is required in determining the 
future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements and/or tax returns.  
Actual outcomes of these future tax consequences could differ materially from the outcomes we currently anticipate. 
 

ASC 740 defines the methodology for recognizing the benefits of uncertain tax return positions as well as guidance 
regarding the measurement of the resulting tax benefits.  These provisions require an enterprise to recognize the financial 
statement effects of a tax position when it is more likely than not (defined as a likelihood of more than 50%), based on the 
technical merits, that the position will be sustained upon examination.  In addition, these provisions provide guidance on 
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition.  The evaluation 
of whether a tax position meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold requires a substantial degree of judgment by 
management based on the individual facts and circumstances.  Actual results could differ from estimates. 
  

r. Insurance and Litigation Accruals  
  

Insurance and litigation accruals are established with respect to estimated future claims cost.  We maintain general 
liability insurance designed to protect us against a portion of our risk of loss from construction-related claims.  We also 
generally require our subcontractors and design professionals to indemnify us for liabilities arising from their work, subject to 
various limitations.  However, such indemnity is significantly limited with respect to certain subcontractors that are added to 
our general liability insurance policy.  We record allowances to cover our estimated costs of self-insured retentions and 
deductible amounts under these policies and estimated costs for claims that may not be covered by applicable insurance or 
indemnities.  Our total insurance and litigation accruals as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $62.8 million and $64.8 
million, respectively, which are included in accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  Estimation 
of these accruals include consideration of our claims history, including current claims, estimates of claims incurred but not 
yet reported, and potential for recovery of costs from insurance and other sources.  We utilize the services of an independent 
third party actuary to assist us with evaluating the level of our insurance and litigation accruals.  Because of the high degree 
of judgment required in determining these estimated accrual amounts, actual future claim costs could differ from our 
currently estimated amounts. 
  

s. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities  
  

We account for derivatives and certain hedging activities in accordance with ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging 
(“ASC 815”).  ASC 815 establishes the accounting and reporting standards requiring that every derivative instrument, 
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, be recorded as either assets or liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheets and to measure these instruments at fair market value. Gains and losses resulting from changes in 
the fair market value of derivatives are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations or recorded in accumulated 
other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, and recognized in the consolidated statement of operations when the hedged 
item affects earnings, depending on the purpose of the derivative and whether the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting 
treatment. 

 
Our policy is to designate at a derivative’s inception the specific assets, liabilities or future commitments being hedged 

and monitor the derivative to determine if the derivative remains an effective hedge. The effectiveness of a derivative as a 
hedge is based on a high correlation between changes in the derivative’s value and changes in the value of the underlying 
hedged item.  We recognize gains or losses for amounts received or paid when the underlying transaction settles.  We do not 
enter into or hold derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. 

 
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, we recorded after-tax other comprehensive income of $2.2 million 

and $6.4 million, respectively, related to interest rate swap agreements that we terminated in December 2010.  These swap 
agreements qualified for hedge accounting treatment prior to their termination and the related gain or loss was deferred, net 
of tax, in stockholders’ equity as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).  The cost associated with the early unwind 
of the interest rate swap agreements was amortized as a component of our interest incurred through May 2013, at which time 
the total cost was completely amortized. 
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t. Accounting for Guarantees  

  
We account for guarantees in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 470, Debt (“ASC 470”).  Under ASC 470, 

recognition of a liability is recorded at its estimated fair value based on the present value of the expected contingent payments 
under the guarantee arrangement. The types of guarantees that we generally provide that are subject to ASC 470 generally are 
made to third parties on behalf of our unconsolidated homebuilding and land development joint ventures.  As of December 
31, 2014, these guarantees included, but were not limited to, surety bond indemnities.  
  

u. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
  
In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 

2013-11, Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a 
Tax Credit Carryforward Exists (“ASU 2013-11”).  ASU 2013-11 is intended to end inconsistent practices regarding the 
presentation of unrecognized tax benefits when a net operating loss, a similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward is available 
to reduce the taxable income or tax payable that would result from the disallowance of a tax position.  For public companies, 
the amendments in ASU 2013-11 were effective prospectively for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 
2013.  Our adoption of ASU 2013-11 on January 1, 2014 did not have an effect on our consolidated financial statements. 

 
In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-04, Receivables - Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (“ASU 

2014-04”), which clarifies when an in-substance repossession or foreclosure of residential real estate property collateralizing 
a consumer mortgage loan has occurred.  By doing so, this guidance helps determine when the creditor should derecognize 
the loan receivable and recognize the real estate property.  For public companies, ASU 2014-04 is effective prospectively for 
interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2014.  Our adoption of ASU 2014-04 is not expected to have a 
material effect on our consolidated financial statements. 

 
In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals 

of Components of an Entity (“ASU 2014-08”).  The amendments in ASU 2014-08 change the criteria for reporting 
discontinued operations while enhancing disclosures in this area.  The new guidance requires expanded disclosures about 
discontinued operations, including more information about the assets, liabilities, income, and expenses of discontinued 
operations.  The new guidance also requires disclosure of the pre-tax income attributable to a disposal of a significant part of 
an organization that does not qualify for discontinued operations reporting.  For public companies, the amendments in ASU 
2014-08 are effective prospectively for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2014.  Our adoption of ASU 
2014-08 is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements. 

 
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“ASU 2014-09”), which 

supersedes existing accounting literature relating to how and when a company recognizes revenue.  Under ASU 2014-09, a 
company will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services.  For public companies, 
the amendments in ASU 2014-09 are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, 
and are to be applied retrospectively, with early application not permitted.  We are currently evaluating the impact the 
pronouncement will have on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. 

 
In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-12, Accounting for Share-Based Payments When the Terms of an Award 

Provide That a Performance Target Could Be Achieved after the Requisite Service Period (“ASU 2014-12”), which requires 
that a performance target that affects vesting and that could be achieved after the requisite service period be treated as a 
performance condition.  A reporting entity should apply existing guidance in ASC 718, Compensation — Stock 
Compensation, as it relates to awards with performance conditions that affect vesting to account for such awards.  The 
amendments in ASU 2014-12 are effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  Early 
adoption is permitted.  Our adoption of ASU 2014-12 is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial 
statements and related disclosures.  

 
In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties About an Entity's Ability to Continue 

as a Going Concern, (“ASU 2014-15”), which requires management to perform interim and annual assessments on whether 
there are conditions or events that raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern within one 
year of the date the financial statements are issued and to provide related disclosures, if required.  The amendments in ASU 
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2014-15 are effective for the annual period ending after December 15, 2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter.  
Early adoption is permitted.  Our adoption of ASU 2014-15 is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated 
financial statements and related disclosures. 
 
3. Segment Reporting 
 
 We operate two principal businesses: homebuilding and financial services. 
 
 Our homebuilding operations acquire and develop land and construct and sell single-family attached and detached 
homes.  In accordance with the aggregation criteria defined in ASC 280, our homebuilding operating segments have been 
grouped into three reportable segments: California; Southwest, consisting of our operating divisions in Arizona, Texas, 
Colorado and Nevada; and Southeast, consisting of our operating divisions in Florida and the Carolinas.   
 
 Our mortgage financing operation provides mortgage financing to many of our homebuyers in substantially all of the 
markets in which we operate, and sells substantially all of the loans it originates in the secondary mortgage market.  Our title 
services operation provides title examinations for our homebuyers in Texas and Florida.  Our mortgage financing and title 
services operations are included in our financial services reportable segment, which is separately reported in our consolidated 
financial statements under “Financial Services.” 
 
 Corporate is a non-operating segment that develops and implements strategic initiatives and supports our operating 
segments by centralizing key administrative functions such as accounting, finance and treasury, information technology, 
insurance and risk management, litigation, marketing and human resources.  Corporate also provides the necessary 
administrative functions to support us as a publicly traded company.  All of the expenses incurred by Corporate are allocated 
to each of our operating divisions based on their respective percentage of revenues.  

  
Segment financial information relating to the Company’s homebuilding operations was as follows:  
 

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Homebuilding revenues:     
California………………………...……………...…...………………..….……  $ 1,154,847  $ 1,006,572   $ 699,672       
Southwest…………..……………………...…….…………...………………   583,555     411,967      248,421       
Southeast……………….………………………….……………...………..…  672,776     496,070      288,865       
     Total homebuilding revenues………………...……………………………  $ 2,411,178  $ 1,914,609   $ 1,236,958    

Homebuilding pretax income:   
California………………..….……...………………..…………………….…   $ 215,259     $ 164,805      $ 46,491         
Southwest…………………………….……………..………..………………   58,630       42,792        12,852         
Southeast…………………………..……...….……………..……………..…   66,232       38,672        8,302           
     Total homebuilding pretax income…..……………………...………...……  $ 340,121     $ 246,269      $ 67,645         

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 

Segment financial information relating to the Company’s homebuilding assets was as follows: 
 

  December 31,

  2014 2013
  

Homebuilding assets:   
California…...………………..……...………………………..………………….………  1,542,584$     1,344,605$     
Southwest………………………...………...…………..………………………...………  826,489          641,711          
Southeast……………………..……………...……..……………………………………  1,060,343       785,988          
Corporate………………….…………...…..…..……………………………………...…  517,701          740,950          
     Total homebuilding assets…………………………...………………………………  3,947,117$     3,513,254$     

  

(Dollars in thousands)
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4. Inventories 
 

a. Inventories Owned 
 

Inventories owned consisted of the following at:  
 

December 31, 2014
California Southwest Southeast Total

  

Land and land under development……………………………   1,021,585$    504,538$    722,166$      2,248,289$     
Homes completed and under construction……………………   318,982         250,498      258,132        827,612          
Model homes……………………………………………..……  81,763           44,437        53,103          179,303          
   Total inventories owned……………………...………………  1,422,330$    799,473$    1,033,401$   3,255,204$     

  
  December 31, 2013
  California Southwest Southeast Total
  

Land and land under development……………………………   819,278$       415,910$    536,473$      1,771,661$     
Homes completed and under construction……………………   280,875         159,927      187,569        628,371          
Model homes………………………………………………….  82,367           27,466        26,237          136,070          
   Total inventories owned………………………….…………   1,182,520$    603,303$    750,279$      2,536,102$     

 

(Dollars in thousands)

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 

In accordance with ASC 360, we record impairment losses on inventories when events and circumstances indicate that 
they may be impaired, and the future undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than their 
carrying amounts.  Inventories that are determined to be impaired are written down to their estimated fair value.  We 
calculate the fair value of a project under a land residual value analysis and in certain cases in conjunction with a discounted 
cash flow analysis.  As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the total active and future projects that we owned were 368, 
343 and 290, respectively.  During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we reviewed all projects for 
indicators of impairment and based on our review, we did not record any inventory impairments during these periods. 

 
During the 2014 second quarter, we acquired control of approximately 10 current and future communities from a 

homebuilder in Austin, Texas, which we accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC Topic 805, 
Business Combinations (“ASC 805”).  As a result of this transaction, we recorded approximately $31.5 million of inventories 
owned, $4.9 million of inventories not owned, $1.2 million of other assets and $4.2 million of other accrued liabilities.  In 
addition, we incurred approximately $0.3 million of transaction costs, which is included in homebuilding other income 
(expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

 
During the 2013 second quarter, we acquired control of approximately 30 current and future communities from a 

homebuilder in the Southeast, which we accounted for as a business combination in accordance with ASC 805.  As a result of 
this transaction, we recorded approximately $108.6 million of inventories owned, $8.1 million of inventories not owned (as 
of December 31, 2013, $5.7 million was included in inventories not owned), $2.2 million of intangible assets, $4.2 million of 
other accrued liabilities and $0.9 million of secured project debt.  In addition, we incurred approximately $1.2 million of 
transaction costs, which is included in homebuilding other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations. 
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b. Inventories Not Owned  
 
Inventories not owned consisted of the following at: 
 

December 31,
2014 2013

Land purchase and lot option deposits………………………………  47,472$       44,005$         
Other lot option contracts, net of deposits…………………………   37,681         54,336           

Total inventories not owned……………….……………………  85,153$      98,341$         

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 

 Under ASC 810, a non-refundable deposit paid to an entity is deemed to be a variable interest that will absorb some or 
all of the entity’s expected losses if they occur.  Our land purchase and lot option deposits generally represent our maximum 
exposure to the land seller if we elect not to purchase the optioned property.  In some instances, we may also expend funds 
for due diligence, development and construction activities with respect to optioned land prior to takedown.  Such costs are 
classified as inventories owned, which we would have to absorb should we not exercise the option.  Therefore, whenever we 
enter into a land option or purchase contract with an entity and make a non-refundable deposit, a variable interest entity 
(“VIE”) may have been created.  In accordance with ASC 810, we perform ongoing reassessments of whether we are the 
primary beneficiary of a VIE.  As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had consolidated $7.6 million and $21.7 million, 
respectively, within inventories not owned (with a corresponding increase in accrued liabilities) related to land option and 
purchase contracts where we were deemed to be the primary beneficiary of a VIE.   
 
 Other lot option contracts also included $27.0 million as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, related to a land purchase 
contract where we made a significant deposit and as a result we were deemed to be economically compelled to purchase the 
land, and $3.1 million and $5.7 million, as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, of purchase price allocated in 
connection with business acquisitions during the 2014 and 2013 second quarters. 
  
5. Investments in Unconsolidated Land Development and Homebuilding Joint Ventures  
  

The table set forth below summarizes the combined statements of operations for our unconsolidated land development 
and homebuilding joint ventures that we accounted for under the equity method: 

 

Year December 31,
2014 2013 2012

  

 
Revenues……………………………………….………………..……………   39,898$        32,546$        21,178$        
Cost of sales and expenses……………………………………….……………  (47,519)         (30,465)         (18,788)         
Income (loss) of unconsolidated joint ventures………………………………   (7,621)$         2,081$          2,390$          

Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures reflected in the   
   accompanying consolidated statements of operations………………………  (668)$           949$             (2,090)$        

  

(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)

 
 
Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations 

represents our share of the income (loss) of our unconsolidated land development and homebuilding joint ventures, which is 
allocated based on the provisions of the underlying joint venture operating agreements less any additional impairments 
recorded against our investments in joint ventures which we do not deem recoverable.  In addition, we defer recognition of 
our share of income that relates to lots purchased by us from land development joint ventures until we ultimately sell the 
homes to be constructed to third parties, at which time we account for these earnings as a reduction of the cost basis of the 
lots purchased from these joint ventures.  For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, income (loss) from 
unconsolidated joint ventures was primarily attributable to our share of income (loss) related to our California joint ventures, 
which was allocated based on the provisions of the underlying joint venture operating agreements. 

 
During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, all of our unconsolidated joint ventures were reviewed for 

impairment.  Based on the impairment review, no joint venture projects were determined to be impaired for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. 
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The table set forth below summarizes the combined balance sheets for our unconsolidated land development and 
homebuilding joint ventures that we accounted for under the equity method: 
 

2014 2013

Assets:   
Cash…………………………...……………………………...…  $ 29,472         $ 37,884          
Inventories……………………………………………...………  197,727       211,929        
Other assets………………………………………………...……  10,372         8,600            
              Total assets……………………………………..………  $ 237,571       $ 258,413        

  
Liabilities and Equity:   

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities………………………  $ 16,173         $ 20,496          
Bank debt………………………………………………………  30,000         30,000          
Standard Pacific equity…………………………………………  54,347         66,363          
Other Members' equity…………………………………………  137,051       141,554        
              Total liabilities and equity…………………………..…  $ 237,571       $ 258,413        

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures reflected in   
   the accompanying consolidated balance sheets………………..   $ 50,111         $ 66,054          

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)

 
 

In some cases our net investment in these unconsolidated joint ventures is not equal to our proportionate share of equity 
reflected in the table above primarily because of differences between asset impairments that we recorded in prior periods 
against our joint venture investments and the impairments recorded by the applicable joint venture.  As of December 31, 
2014 and 2013, substantially all of our investments in unconsolidated joint ventures were in California.  Our investments in 
unconsolidated joint ventures also included approximately $0.7 million and $5.0 million of homebuilding interest capitalized 
to investments in unconsolidated joint ventures as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which capitalized interest is 
not included in the combined balance sheets above.  

 
Our investments in these unconsolidated joint ventures may represent a variable interest in a VIE depending on, among 

other things, the economic interests of the members of the entity and the contractual terms of the arrangement.  We analyze 
all of our unconsolidated joint ventures under the provisions of ASC 810 to determine whether these entities are deemed to be 
VIEs, and if so, whether we are the primary beneficiary.  As of December 31, 2014, all of our homebuilding and land 
development joint ventures with unrelated parties were determined under the provisions of ASC 810 to be unconsolidated 
joint ventures either because they were not deemed to be VIEs, or, if they were a VIE, we were not deemed to be the primary 
beneficiary.   

    
6. Homebuilding Indebtedness 
  

a. Letter of Credit Facilities 
  

As of December 31, 2014, we were party to five committed letter of credit facilities totaling $58 million, of which 
$36.6 million was outstanding.  These facilities require cash collateralization and have maturity dates ranging from October 
2015 to October 2017.  As of December 31, 2014, these facilities were secured by cash collateral deposits of $37.2 million.  
Upon maturity, we may renew or enter into new letter of credit facilities with the same or other financial institutions. 
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b. Senior Notes Payable  
 

Senior notes payable consist of the following at:  
 

December 31,
2014 2013

6¼% Senior Notes due April 2014………………………….……………………$    ―   $ 4,971              
7% Senior Notes due August 2015……………………………………………… 29,789        29,789            
10¾% Senior Notes due September 2016, net of discount……………………… 272,684      269,046          
8⅜% Senior Notes due May 2018, net of premium……………………………… 578,278      579,085          
8⅜% Senior Notes due January 2021, net of discount…………………………… 397,642      397,353          
6¼% Senior Notes due December 2021………………………………………… 300,000      300,000          
5⅞% Senior Notes due November 2024……………………………………………… 300,000          ―   
1¼% Convertible Senior Notes due August 2032………………………………  253,000      253,000          

$ 2,131,393     $ 1,833,244       

(Dollars in thousands)

 
In September 2009, we issued $280 million of 10¾% Senior Notes due September 15, 2016 (the “2016 Notes”).  These 

notes were issued at a discount to yield approximately 12.50% under the effective interest method and have been reflected net 
of the unamortized discount in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.   

 
 In May 2010, we issued $300 million of 8⅜% Senior Notes due May 15, 2018 (the “2018 Notes”).  In December 2010, 

we issued an additional $275 million of 2018 Notes (issued at a premium to yield approximately 7.964% under the effective 
interest method) and $400 million of 8⅜% Senior Notes due January 15, 2021 (issued at a discount to yield approximately 
8.50% under the effective interest method), which have been reflected net of their unamortized premium and discount, 
respectively, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.   
 

In August 2013, we issued $300 million in aggregate principal amount of 6¼% Senior Notes.  These notes were issued 
at par and mature on December 15, 2021. 

 
In November 2014, we issued $300 million in aggregate principal amount of 5⅞% Senior Notes.  These notes were 

issued at par and mature on November 15, 2024. 
 
In July 2012, we issued $253 million of 1¼% Convertible Senior Notes due 2032 (the “Convertible Notes”).  The 

Convertible Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and are guaranteed by the guarantors of our other senior 
notes on a senior unsecured basis.  The Convertible Notes bear interest at a rate of 1¼% and will mature on August 1, 2032, 
unless earlier converted, redeemed or repurchased.  The holders may at any time convert their Convertible Notes into shares 
of the Company's common stock at an initial conversion rate of 123.7662 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal 
amount of Convertible Notes (which is equal to an initial conversion price of approximately $8.08 per share), subject to 
adjustment.  The Company may not redeem the Convertible Notes prior to August 5, 2017.  On or after August 5, 2017 and 
prior to the maturity date, the Company may redeem for cash all or part of the Convertible Notes at a redemption price equal 
to 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes being redeemed.  On each of August 1, 2017, August 1, 2022 and 
August 1, 2027, holders of the Convertible Notes may require the Company to purchase all or any portion of their 
Convertible Notes for cash at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes to be repurchased. 

 
Our senior notes payable are all senior obligations and rank equally with our other existing senior indebtedness and, 

with the exception of our Convertible Notes, are redeemable at our option, in whole or in part, pursuant to a “make whole” 
formula.  These notes contain various restrictive covenants.  Our 2016 Notes contain our most restrictive covenants, 
including a limitation on additional indebtedness and a limitation on restricted payments.  Outside of the specified categories 
of indebtedness that are carved out of the additional indebtedness limitation (including a carve-out for up to $1.1 billion in 
credit facility indebtedness), the Company must satisfy at least one of two conditions (either a maximum leverage condition 
or a minimum interest coverage condition) to incur additional indebtedness.  The Company must also satisfy at least one of 
these two conditions to make restricted payments.  Restricted payments include dividends, stock repurchases and investments 
in and advances to our joint ventures and other unrestricted subsidiaries.  Our ability to make restricted payments is also 
subject to a basket limitation (as defined in the indenture).  As of December 31, 2014, we were able to incur additional 
indebtedness and make restricted payments because we satisfied both conditions.  Many of our 100% owned direct and 
indirect subsidiaries (collectively, the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”) guaranty our outstanding senior notes.  The guarantees are 
full and unconditional, and joint and several.  The indentures further provide that a Guarantor Subsidiary will be released and 
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relieved of any obligations under its note guarantee in the event (i) of a sale or other disposition (whether by merger, stock 
purchase, asset sale or otherwise) of a Guarantor Subsidiary to an entity which is not Standard Pacific Corp. or a Guarantor 
Subsidiary; (ii) the requirements for legal defeasance or covenant defeasance have been satisfied; (iii) a Guarantor Subsidiary 
ceases to be a restricted subsidiary as the result of the Company owning less than 80% of such Guarantor Subsidiary; (iv) a 
Guarantor Subsidiary ceases to guarantee all other public notes of the Company; or (v) a Guarantor Subsidiary is designated 
as an Unrestricted Subsidiary under the indentures for covenant purposes.  Please see Note 16 for supplemental financial 
statement information about our guarantor subsidiaries group and non-guarantor subsidiaries group.  

 
We repaid the remaining $5.0 million principal balance of our 6¼% Senior Notes upon maturity in April 2014. 

 
  c. Secured Project Debt and Other Notes Payable  

 
Our secured project debt and other notes payable consist of seller non-recourse financing and community development 

district and similar assessment district bond financings used to finance land acquisition, development and infrastructure costs 
for which we are responsible.  At December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had approximately $4.7 million and $6.4 million, 
outstanding, respectively, in secured project debt and other notes payable. 

 
d. Borrowings and Maturities  
 
The principal amount of maturities of senior and convertible senior notes payable, and secured project debt and other 

notes payable are as follows:  
 

Year Ended
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

  
2015……………………………….…………………………………….……  30,475$          
2016……………………………….…………………………………….……  281,256          
2017……………………………….…………………………………….……  1,172              
2018……………………………….…………………………………….……  576,055          
2019……………………………….…………………………………….……  520                 
Thereafter……………………………….……………………………………  1,253,000       
    Total principal amount……………………………….…………………… 2,142,478       
    Less: Net (discount) premium……………………………………………  (6,396)             
    Total homebuilding debt…………………………………………………  2,136,082$     

 
 

The weighted average interest rate of our borrowings outstanding under our revolving credit facility, bank term loans, 
senior and convertible senior notes payable, secured project debt and other notes payable as of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 
2012, was 7.2%, 7.4%, and 7.6%, respectively.   

 
e. Revolving Credit Facility 

 
On July 31, 2014, we amended our unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”) to, among other 

things, increase the aggregate commitment to $450 million and extend the maturity date to July 2018.  The Revolving 
Facility has an accordion feature under which the commitment may be increased up to a maximum aggregate commitment of 
$750 million, subject to the availability of additional bank commitments and certain other conditions.  As of December 31, 
2014, the Revolving Facility contained financial covenants (which were not modified in connection with the July 2014 
amendment), including, but not limited to, (i) a minimum consolidated tangible net worth covenant; (ii) a covenant to 
maintain either (a) a minimum liquidity level or (b) a minimum interest coverage ratio; (iii) a maximum net homebuilding 
leverage ratio and (iv) a maximum land not under development to tangible net worth ratio.  This facility also contains a 
limitation on our investments in joint ventures.  Interest rates charged under the Revolving Facility include LIBOR and prime 
rate pricing options.  As of December 31, 2014, we satisfied the conditions that would allow us to borrow up to $450 million 
under the facility and had no amounts outstanding.   
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7. Stockholders’ Equity 
 

a. Common Stock  

During the 2012 third quarter, the Company issued 13.4 million shares of its common stock in a secondary public 
offering at a price of $5.67 per share and received $71.8 million in net proceeds.  

 
b. Preferred Stock  

Our Series B junior participating convertible preferred stock (“Series B Preferred Stock”) is convertible at the holder’s 
option into shares of our common stock provided that no holder, with its affiliates, may beneficially own total voting power 
of our voting stock in excess of 49%.  The number of shares of common stock into which our Series B Preferred Stock is 
convertible is determined by dividing $1,000 by the applicable conversion price ($3.05, subject to customary anti-dilution 
adjustments) plus cash in lieu of fractional shares.  The Series B Preferred Stock also mandatorily converts into our common 
stock upon its sale, transfer or other disposition by MP CA Homes LLC (“MatlinPatterson”) or its affiliates to an unaffiliated 
third party.  The Series B Preferred Stock votes together with our common stock on all matters upon which holders of our 
common stock are entitled to vote.  Each share of Series B Preferred Stock is entitled to such number of votes as the number 
of shares of our common stock into which such share of Series B Preferred Stock is convertible, provided that the aggregate 
votes attributable to such shares with respect to any holder of Series B Preferred Stock (including its affiliates), taking into 
consideration any other voting securities of the Company held by such stockholder, cannot exceed more than 49% of the total 
voting power of the voting stock of the Company.  Shares of Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive only those 
dividends declared and paid on the common stock.   

During the 2013 second quarter, MatlinPatterson converted 183,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock into 60,000,000 
shares of our common stock in accordance with the original terms of the Series B Preferred Stock Agreement and sold 
23,000,000 shares of our common stock in a secondary public offering.  We did not sell any shares and did not receive any 
proceeds from these transactions.  At December 31, 2014, MatlinPatterson owned 267,829 shares of Series B Preferred 
Stock, which are convertible into 87.8 million shares of our common stock.  As of December 31, 2014, the outstanding shares 
of Series B Preferred Stock on an as converted basis plus the 126.4 million shares of common stock owned by 
MatlinPatterson represented approximately 59% of the total number of shares of our common stock outstanding on an if-
converted basis. 
 
8. Mortgage Credit Facilities  
  

At December 31, 2014, we had $89.4 million outstanding under our mortgage financing subsidiary’s mortgage credit 
facilities.  These mortgage credit facilities consist of a $125 million repurchase facility with one lender, maturing in May 
2015, and a $75 million repurchase facility with another lender, maturing in October 2015.  These facilities require Standard 
Pacific Mortgage to maintain cash collateral accounts, which totaled $1.3 million as of December 31, 2014, and also contain 
financial covenants which require Standard Pacific Mortgage to, among other things, maintain a minimum level of tangible 
net worth, not to exceed a debt to tangible net worth ratio, maintain a minimum liquidity amount based on a measure of total 
assets (inclusive of the cash collateral requirement), and satisfy pretax income (loss) requirements.  As of December 31, 
2014, Standard Pacific Mortgage was in compliance with the financial and other covenants contained in these facilities. 
  
9. Disclosures about Fair Value 

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”), establishes a framework for measuring fair 
value, expands disclosures regarding fair value measurements and defines fair value as the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  
Further, ASC 820 requires us to maximize the use of observable market inputs, minimize the use of unobservable market 
inputs and disclose in the form of an outlined hierarchy the details of such fair value measurements. ASC 820 specifies a 
hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to a fair value measurement are considered to be observable or 
unobservable in a marketplace. The three levels of the hierarchy are as follows: 

• Level 1 – quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets; 
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• Level 2 – quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets 
or liabilities in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in which significant inputs and significant value 
drivers are observable in active markets; and 

• Level 3 – valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs or significant value 
drivers are unobservable. 

The following table presents the Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 
 

Fair Value at December 31,

Fair Value 
Hierarchy

(Dollars in thousands)

  
Mortgage loans held for sale……..………………………  Level 2   $ 176,511         $ 124,184         

  

Description 2014 2013

 
Mortgage loans held for sale consist of FHA, VA, USDA and agency first mortgages on single-family residences 

which are eligible for sale to FNMA/FHLMC, GNMA or other investors, as applicable.  Fair values of these loans are based 
on quoted prices from third party investors when preselling loans. 

 
The following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values of our other financial instruments for which 

we have not elected the fair value option in accordance with ASC 825: 
 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Fair Value 
Hierarchy

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands)
 

Financial services assets:   
Mortgage loans held for investment, net…………………  Level 2   $ 14,380        $ 14,380        $ 12,220        $ 12,220        

Homebuilding liabilities:   
Senior notes payable, net…………………………………  Level 2   $ 2,131,393   $ 2,337,839   $ 1,833,244   $ 2,165,193   

Description

 
 
Mortgage Loans Held for Investment – Fair value of these loans is based on the estimated market value of the 

underlying collateral based on market data and other factors for similar type properties as further adjusted to reflect the 
estimated net realizable value of carrying the loans through disposition. 

 
Senior Notes Payable – The senior notes are traded over the counter and their fair values were estimated based upon the 

values of their last trade at the end of the period.    
 
The fair value of our cash and equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other receivables, accounts payable and other 

liabilities, secured project debt and other notes payable, mortgage credit facilities approximate their carrying amounts due to 
the short-term nature of these assets and liabilities. 
 
10. Commitments and Contingencies  
  

a. Land Purchase and Option Agreements 
 
We are subject to obligations associated with entering into contracts for the purchase of land and improved homesites. 

These purchase contracts typically require us to provide a cash deposit or deliver a letter of credit in favor of the seller, and 
our purchase of properties under these contracts is generally contingent upon satisfaction of certain requirements by the 
sellers, including obtaining applicable property and development entitlements.  We also utilize option contracts with land 
sellers as a method of acquiring land in staged takedowns, to help us manage the financial and market risk associated with 
land holdings, and to reduce the near-term use of funds from our corporate financing sources.  Option contracts generally 
require a non-refundable deposit for the right to acquire lots over a specified period of time at predetermined prices.  We 
generally have the right at our discretion to terminate our obligations under both purchase contracts and option contracts by 
forfeiting our cash deposit or by repaying amounts drawn under our letter of credit with no further financial responsibility to 
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the land seller, although in certain instances, the land seller has the right to compel us to purchase a specified number of lots 
at predetermined prices.     

 
In some instances, we may also expend funds for due diligence, development and construction activities with respect to 

our land purchase and option contracts prior to purchase, which we would have to write off should we not purchase the land.  
At December 31, 2014, we had non-refundable cash deposits outstanding of approximately $38.8 million and capitalized pre-
acquisition and other development and construction costs of approximately $7.3 million relating to land purchase and option 
contracts having a total remaining purchase price of approximately $406.7 million. 

 
Our utilization of option contracts is dependent on, among other things, the availability of land sellers willing to enter 

into option takedown arrangements, the availability of capital to financial intermediaries, general housing market conditions, 
and geographic preferences.  Options may be more difficult to procure from land sellers in strong housing markets and are 
more prevalent in certain geographic regions. 

 
b. Land Development and Homebuilding Joint Ventures 

 
Our joint ventures have historically obtained secured acquisition, development and construction financing designed to 

reduce the use of funds from corporate financing sources.  As of December 31, 2014, we held membership interests in 21 
homebuilding and land development joint ventures, of which seven were active and 14 were inactive or winding down.  As of 
such date, only one joint venture had $30 million of project specific debt outstanding.  This joint venture bank debt is non-
recourse to us and is scheduled to mature in June 2015.  As of December 31, 2014, we had $0.1 million of joint venture 
surety bonds outstanding subject to indemnity arrangements by us related to one project which was substantially complete as 
of such date. 
 

c. Surety Bonds 
 
We obtain surety bonds in the normal course of business to ensure completion of the infrastructure of our projects.  At 

December 31, 2014, we had approximately $504.5 million in surety bonds outstanding (exclusive of surety bonds related to 
our joint ventures), with respect to which we had an estimated $295.0 million remaining in cost to complete. 

 
d. Mortgage Loans and Commitments  
 
We commit to making mortgage loans to our homebuyers through our mortgage financing subsidiary, Standard Pacific 

Mortgage.  Standard Pacific Mortgage sells substantially all of the loans it originates in the secondary mortgage market and 
finances these loans under its mortgage credit facilities for a short period of time (typically for 30 to 45 days), as investors 
complete their administrative review of applicable loan documents.  Mortgage loans in process for which interest rates were 
committed to borrowers totaled approximately $37.8 million at December 31, 2014 and carried a weighted average interest 
rate of approximately 3.8%.  Interest rate risks related to these obligations are mitigated through the preselling of loans to 
investors.  As of December 31, 2014, Standard Pacific Mortgage had approximately $172.0 million in closed mortgage loans 
held for sale and $38.1 million of mortgage loans that we were committed to sell to investors subject to our funding of the 
loans and completion of the investors’ administrative review of the applicable loan documents. 

 
Substantially all of the loans originated by Standard Pacific Mortgage are sold with servicing rights released on a non-

recourse basis.  These sales are generally subject to Standard Pacific Mortgage’s obligation to repay its gain on sale if the 
loan is prepaid by the borrower within a certain time period following such sale, or to repurchase the loan if, among other 
things, the purchaser’s underwriting guidelines are not met, or there is fraud in connection with the loan.  As of December 31, 
2014, we had incurred an aggregate of $10.8 million in losses related to loan repurchases and make-whole payments we had 
been required to make on the $9.0 billion total dollar value of the loans we originated from the beginning of 2004 through the 
end of 2014.  During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, Standard Pacific Mortgage recorded loan loss 
expense related to indemnification and repurchase allowances of $0.5 million, $0 and $1.0 million, respectively.  As of 
December 31, 2014, Standard Pacific Mortgage had indemnity and repurchase allowances related to loans sold of 
approximately $2.2 million.  In addition, during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, Standard Pacific 
Mortgage made make-whole payments totaling approximately $0.5 million related to 12 loans, $0.8 million related to nine 
loans and $1.0 million related to eight loans, respectively.   
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e. Insurance and Litigation Accruals 
 
We are involved in various litigation and legal claims arising in the ordinary course of business and have established 

insurance and litigation accruals for estimated future claim costs (please see Note 2.r. for further discussion). 
 

f. Operating Leases 
 
We lease office facilities and certain equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Future minimum rental 

payments under these leases having an initial term in excess of one year as of December 31, 2014 are as follows: 
Year Ended

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)
 

2015……………………………….…………………………………….…   $ 4,681          
2016……………………………….…………………………………….…   4,004          
2017……………………………….…………………………………….…   2,837          
2018……………………………….…………………………………….…   1,631          
2019……………………………….…………………………………….…   873             
Thereafter……………………………….…………………………………   44               

Total rental obligations…………………………………………………  $ 14,070        
  

   
Rent expense under noncancelable operating leases, net of sublease income, for each of the years ended December 31, 

2014, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $4.4 million, $3.8 million and $3.6 million, respectively.  
  

 
11. Income Taxes  
  

The (provision) benefit for income taxes includes the following components:  
 

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

  (Dollars in thousands)

Current (provision) benefit for income taxes:   
Federal……………………………………………………………   $ (28,942)       $ 11,766          $ (766)             
State………………………………………………………………   (6,159)         (1,880)                 ―

  (35,101)       9,886            (766)             
Deferred (provision) benefit for income taxes:   

Federal……………………………………………………………   (84,704)       (56,752)         338,500       
State………………………………………………………………   (14,294)       (22,117)         115,500       

  (98,998)       (78,869)         454,000       
(Provision) benefit for income taxes…………………………………   $ (134,099)     $ (68,983)         $ 453,234       
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The components of our net deferred income tax asset are as follows:  
 

December 31,

2014 2013

Inventory valuation adjustments…………………………………………………  84,443$         114,063$    
Financial accruals………………………………………………………………  39,653           42,450        
Federal net operating loss carryforwards………………………………………  102,971         161,265      
State net operating loss carryforwards…………………………………………  40,731           48,901        
Tax credit carryforwards……………………………………………………..   4,428             4,445          
Goodwill impairment charges…………………………………………………   7,150             8,566          
Other, net………………………………………………………………………  (413)            301             

Total deferred tax asset………………………………………………………  278,963         379,991      
Less: Valuation allowance…………………………………………………   (2,561)           (4,591)         
  Net deferred tax asset………………………………………………………  276,402$       375,400$    

(Dollars in thousands)

 
Each quarter we assess our deferred tax asset to determine whether all or any portion of the asset is more likely than not 

unrealizable under ASC 740.  We are required to establish a valuation allowance for any portion of the asset we conclude is 
more likely than not to be unrealizable.  Our assessment considers, among other things, the nature, frequency and severity of 
our prior and cumulative losses, forecasts of our future taxable income, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, our 
utilization experience with operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, and tax planning alternatives.  
 

As of December 31, 2014, we had a $279.0 million deferred tax asset which was partially offset by a deferred tax asset 
valuation allowance of $2.6 million related to state net operating loss carryforwards that are limited by shorter carryforward 
periods.  In addition, as of such date, $119.0 million (or approximately $294.2 million and $278.7 million, respectively, of 
federal and state net operating loss carryforwards on a gross basis) of our deferred tax asset related to net operating loss 
carryforwards is subject to the Internal Revenue Code Section 382 (“Section 382”) gross annual deduction limitation of $15.6 
million for both federal and state purposes.  The remaining $24.7 million represents state net operating loss carryfowards that 
are not limited by Section 382.  Our gross federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $294 million 
and $743 million, respectively, if unused, will begin to expire in 2028 and 2015, respectively.  The remaining deferred tax 
asset represented deductible timing differences, primarily related to inventory impairments and financial accruals, which have 
no expiration date.   

 
As of December 31, 2013, we had a $380.0 million deferred tax asset which was partially offset by a deferred tax asset 

valuation allowance of $4.6 million related to state net operating loss carryforwards that are limited by shorter carryforward 
periods.  In addition, as of such date, $125.5 million (or approximately $310 million and $297 million, respectively, of 
federal and state net operating loss carryforwards on a gross basis) of our deferred tax asset related to net operating loss 
carryforwards was subject to the Section 382 limitation for both federal and state purposes.  The remaining $84.7 million (or 
approximately $165 million and $598 million, respectively, of federal and state net operating loss carryforwards on a gross 
basis) was not limited by Section 382.  The remaining deferred tax asset represented deductible timing differences, primarily 
related to inventory impairments and financial accruals, which have no expiration date.    
  



STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
  

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

63 

Our 2014 provision for income taxes was $134.1 million related primarily to our $350.0 million of pretax income.  The 
effective tax rate differs from the federal statutory rate of 35% due to the following items:  

 
Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
  (Dollars in thousands)

Income before taxes……………………………………………………  $ 349,964       $ 257,698      $ 78,187        

(Provision) benefit for income taxes at federal statutory rate…………  $ (122,488)     $ (90,194)       $ (27,365)       
(Increases) decreases in tax resulting from:   

State income taxes, net of federal benefit…………………………  (12,961)       (9,426)         (2,947)         
Net deferred tax asset valuation (allowance) benefit………………  2,030           13,115        483,724      
(Increases) decreases in liability for unrecognized tax benefits……  (1,605)         16,105               ― 
Domestic production activities deduction…………………………  1,562                  ―        ― 
Other, net…………………………………………………………   (637)            1,417          (178)            

(Provision) benefit for income taxes…………………………………   $ (134,099)     $ (68,983)       $ 453,234      

Effective tax rate………………………………………………………  38.3% 26.8%        ― 
 

   
As of December 31, 2014, our liability for unrecognized tax benefits was $2.5 million, of which $1.6 million, if 

recognized, would affect our effective tax rate.  Our liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits are included in accrued liabilities 
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  We classify estimated interest expense and penalties related to 
unrecognized tax benefits in our provision for income taxes. As of December 31, 2014, accrued interest and penalties related 
to unrecognized tax benefits was $0.3 million, all of which was recorded during 2014.  A reconciliation of the beginning and 
ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits, excluding accrued interest, is as follows: 

 
Year Ended December 31, 

2014 2013
(Dollars in thousands)

  
Balance, beginning of the year……………………………………………   $ 472          $ 13,484     
Changes based on tax positions related to the current year…………………  1,567       472          
Changes for tax position in prior years……………………………………  497                 ―
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitations……………………………         ― (13,484)   
Settlements…………………………………………………………………         ―        ―
Balance, end of the year……………………………………………………  $ 2,536       $ 472          

 
 

We do not expect a significant change in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits during the next twelve months.  In 
addition, as of December 31, 2014, we remained subject to examination by various tax jurisdictions for the tax years ended 
December 31, 2009 through 2014.   
 
12. Stock Incentive and Employee Benefit Plans  
 

a. Stock Incentive Plans 
  

The Company has share-based awards outstanding under three different plans, pursuant to which we have granted stock 
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted and unrestricted stock, and performance share awards to key officers, employees, 
and directors.  The exercise price of our share-based awards may not be less than the market value of our common stock on 
the date of grant.  Stock options and stock appreciation rights vest based on either time (generally over a one to four year 
period) or market performance (based on stock price appreciation) and generally expire between five and ten years after the 
date of grant.  The fair value for stock options and stock appreciation rights is established at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes model for awards that vest based on time and a lattice model for awards that vest based on market performance.  
Restricted stock typically vests over a three year period and are valued at the closing price on the date of grant.  

 
During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we granted 6.5 million, 6.3 million and 3.5 million capped 

stock appreciation rights, respectively, to our officers and key employees.  The 2013 and 2012 capped stock appreciation 
rights have a grant price equal to the Company’s common stock closing price on the issuance date, with the value per share of 
the award capped at the difference between $12.00 and the grant price, and the 2014 capped stock appreciation rights have a 
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grant price equal to the Company’s common stock closing price on the issuance date, with the value per share of the award 
capped at $4.00 above the grant price.  Additionally, on April 2, 2012 the Compensation Committee of our Board of 
Directors provided a one-time grant of 2.7 million market based capped stock appreciation rights to 12 senior executives.  
These market based awards have a five year term and vest in three equal tranches only if the Company’s common stock 
closing price reaches eight ($8), nine ($9) and ten ($10) dollars, respectively, for twenty consecutive trading days.  During 
the year ended December 31, 2013, one-third of the market based award vested as the criteria for the $8 tranche was met, and 
as of December 31, 2014, two-thirds of the award remain unvested.  The value per share of the award is capped at the 
difference between twelve dollars ($12) and the grant price.   

 
The following is a summary of stock option and stock appreciation rights activity relating to our three plans on a 

combined basis for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012:  

Number of 
Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
Number of 

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
Number of 

Shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Outstanding, beginning of year…………  19,781,866   $ 5.54      18,616,382   $ 4.21      17,877,785    $ 4.33      
Granted…………………………………  6,515,269     7.90      6,261,602     8.40      6,222,222      4.24      
Exercised…………………………………  (2,620,925)   3.64      (4,479,325)   3.55      (4,677,271)     2.79      
Canceled…………………………………  (1,584,669)   14.24    (616,793)      8.79      (806,354)        16.04    

  
Outstanding, end of year…………………  22,091,541   $ 5.84      19,781,866   $ 5.54      18,616,382    $ 4.21      

  
Exercisable at end of year………………  9,762,383     $ 3.98      9,736,564     $ 4.28      11,956,258    $ 4.17      

  
Available for future grant………………  51,230,067   13,971,091   23,283,953    

  

201220132014

 
 

At December 31, 2014, 20,375,919 stock options and stock appreciation rights were vested or expected to vest in the 
future with a weighted average exercise price of $5.66 and a weighted average expected life of 2.9 years.  During the years 
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the total fair value of stock options and stock appreciation rights vested was $2.5 
million, $3.0 million and $5.9 million, respectively.  The total intrinsic value of stock options and stock appreciation rights 
exercised during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $12.6 million, $23.0 million and $17.3 million, 
respectively.  The intrinsic value of options exercised is the difference between the fair market value of the Company’s 
common stock on the date of exercise and the exercise price. 

 
The following table summarizes information about stock options and stock appreciation rights outstanding and 

exercisable at December 31, 2014:  
 

Outstanding Exercisable

Low High
0.67$      4.29$      10,384,020    3.28$       1.91 7,900,969     3.28$       
5.67$      7.93$      3,522,760      7.39$       4.66 70,693          7.39$       
8.17$      9.29$      8,184,761      8.42$       3.59 1,790,721     8.42$       

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price
Number
of Shares

Exercise Prices
Number
of Shares

Weighted
Average

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

 
   

As of December 31, 2014, the total intrinsic value of stock options and stock appreciation rights outstanding was $41.8 
million, of which $34.3 million related to stock options and stock appreciation rights exercisable, and the total intrinsic value 
of stock options and stock appreciation rights vested and expected to vest in the future was $41.6 million.  The intrinsic value 
of these stock options and stock appreciation rights outstanding, is the difference between the fair market value of the 
Company’s common stock on the last trading day of fiscal 2014 and the exercise price.   
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The fair value of each stock option and stock appreciation right granted during each of the three years ended December 
31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was estimated using the following weighted average assumptions:  

 

2014 2013 2012
 

Dividend yield………………………………………...……………  0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected volatility…………………………………………………   48.44% 57.70% 82.09%
Risk-free interest rate……………………………...…………………  0.95% 0.36% 0.73%
Expected life………………………………………………...………  3.5 years 3.5 years 2.5 years

 
 

Based on the above assumptions, the weighted average per share fair value of stock options and stock appreciation 
rights granted during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, was $0.99, $0.86 and $0.91, respectively.  

 
Restricted Stock Awards.  During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we issued 0.5 million shares, 0.3 

million shares and 0.4 million shares, respectively, of restricted common stock to our officers and key employees.  The shares 
of restricted common stock issued vest in three equal installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the issuance date.  
Compensation expense for these awards is being recognized using the straight-line method over the vesting period. 

 
The following is a summary of unvested restricted stock activity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 

2012: 
 

Number of
Shares

Weighted 
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

Weighted 
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

Weighted 
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Outstanding, beginning of year………… 538,530   6.72$       344,448   4.31$               ― $        ―
Granted………………………………… 472,951   7.84         317,643   8.39         359,599   4.31         
Vested…………………………………  (211,550)  6.32         (114,820)  4.31                 ―           ―
Canceled………………………………   (29,216)    6.73         (8,741)      4.29         (15,151)    4.29         
Outstanding, end of year………………  770,715   7.51$       538,530   6.72$       344,448   4.31$       

2014 2013 2012

 
 
Performance Share Awards.  During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we granted 0.1 million, 0.2 

million and 0.4 million performance share awards, respectively, to our officers and key employees for which the number of 
performance share awards ultimately issued will be based on the Company’s actual earnings per share for the years ended 
December 31, 2014 (with respect to the 2012 awards (“2012 PSAs”)), 2015 (with respect to the 2013 awards (“2013 PSAs”)) 
and 2016 (with respect to the 2014 awards (“2014 EPS PSAs”)), with payouts at 1-4 times the target number of shares based 
on actual earnings per share for these periods, subject to a minimum earnings per share threshold.  We evaluate the 
probability of achieving earnings per share targets established under each of the performance share awards quarterly and 
estimate the number of shares underlying the performance share awards that are probable of being issued.  Compensation 
expense for these awards is being recognized using the straight-line method over the requisite service period, subject to 
cumulative catch-up adjustments required as a result of changes in the number shares probable of being issued.  As of 
December 31, 2014, the unamortized compensation cost related to the 2014 EPS PSAs, 2013 PSAs and 2012 PSAs 
considered probable of being issued was $0.9 million, $0.9 million and $0.5 million, expected to be recognized over a 
weighted average period of 2.2 years, 1.2 years and 0.2 years, respectively.  Additionally, during the year ended December 
31, 2014, we granted 0.1 million performance share awards to our officers and key employees for which the number of 
performance share awards ultimately issued will be based on the Company’s relative total shareholder return (“TSR”) 
performance over a three-year period from 2014-2016 (“2014 TSR PSAs”) in comparison to the TSR performance of a 
comparative peer group selected by our Compensation Committee, with payouts at 1-4 times the target number of shares 
based on actual TSR performance, subject to minimum TSR thresholds.  Compensation expense for these awards is being 
recognized using the straight-line method over the requisite service period.  As of December 31, 2014, the unamortized 
compensation cost related to the 2014 TSR PSAs considered probable of being issued was $1.0 million, expected to be 
recognized over a weighted average period of 2.2 years.   
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The following is a summary of performance share award activity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 
2012: 

 

Number of
Shares

Weighted 
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

Weighted 
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares

Weighted 
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Outstanding, beginning of year………… 602,242   5.81$       405,012   4.29$              ― $       ―
Granted………………………………… 227,914   11.01       223,454   8.39         405,012   4.29         
Vested…………………………………        ―              ―         ―              ―         ―         ―
Canceled………………………………         ―              ―  (26,224)    4.29                ―         ―
Outstanding, end of year………………  830,156   7.24$       602,242   5.81$       405,012   4.29$       

2014 2013 2012

 
Other Stock-Based Awards.  During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we issued 60,872 shares, 

47,272 shares and 77,948 shares, respectively, of unrestricted common stock to our independent directors (excluding 
directors appointed by MatlinPatterson who did not receive any stock awards).  Additionally, during 2012 we issued 462,119 
shares of unrestricted common stock to our officers and key employees in connection with bonuses earned for the year ended 
December 31, 2011. 

 
Total compensation expense recognized related to stock-based compensation was as follows: 
 

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

 
Stock options and stock appreciation rights…………………………  3,618$         3,875$         4,523$         
Unrestricted stock grants………………………………………….…  480              400              488              
Restricted stock grants………………………………………….……  1,842           1,073           378              
Performance share awards………………………………………….  2,529           3,667           1,762           
Total………………………………………………...………………  8,469$         9,015$         7,151$         

(Dollars in thousands)

 
 
Total unrecognized compensation expense related to stock-based compensation was as follows: 
 

Unrecognized
Expense

Weighted 
Average
Period

Unrecognized
Expense

Weighted 
Average
Period

Unrecognized
Expense

Weighted 
Average
Period

  
Unvested stock options and stock appreciation rights……  6,777$           2.1 years 5,260$           1.9 years 4,395$           1.7 years
Unvested restricted stock grants…………………………  4,090             2.1 years 2,473             2.0 years 1,098             2.2 years
Unvested performance share awards……………………  3,267             1.7 years 7,320             1.8 years 5,188             2.2 years
Total unrecognized compensation expense………………  14,134$         2.0 years 15,053$         1.9 years 10,681$         2.0 years

(Dollars in thousands)

As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012

 
 

 b. Employee Benefit Plan  
  

We have a defined contribution plan pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.  Each employee may 
elect to make before-tax contributions up to the current tax limits.  The Company matches employee contributions up to 
$5,000 per employee per year.  The Company provides this plan to help its employees save a portion of their cash 
compensation for retirement in a tax efficient environment.  Our contributions to the plan for the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013 and 2012, were $3.6 million, $2.8 million and $2.2 million, respectively.  

 
13.  Stockholder Rights Plan  
  

On October 30, 2014, we entered into Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Rights Agreement ("Amendment 
No. 1") with Computershare Inc. (as successor in interest to Mellon Investor Services LLC), as Rights Agent, which amended 
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our Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2011, (the "Rights Agreement").  The Rights 
Agreement and the rights issued thereunder were scheduled to expire on December 31, 2014.  Amendment No. 1 extended 
the expiration date of each right issued pursuant to the Rights Agreement to December 31, 2017, revised the definition of 
beneficial ownership to capture ownership through derivative contracts and contained certain other clarifying and technical 
amendments.  The Rights Agreement amended and restated in its entirety the Company’s rights agreement, which had been 
effective since December 31, 2001 (as in effect prior to December 20, 2011, the “Original Rights Agreement”).  Under the 
Original Rights Agreement, one preferred stock purchase right was granted for each share of outstanding common stock of 
Standard Pacific payable to holders of record on December 31, 2001, and all subsequently issued shares of our common 
stock.  Each right entitles the holder, in certain situations where a person acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or more of 
our common stock, as described in the Rights Agreement, and upon paying the exercise price (currently $20.00), to purchase 
common stock or other securities having a market value equal to two times the exercise price.  Also, after any such 
acquisition of 15% of our common stock, if we merge with another corporation, or if 50% or more of our assets are sold, the 
rights holders may be entitled, upon payment of the exercise price, to buy common shares of the acquiring party at a 50% 
discount from the then-current market value.  In either situation, the rights are not exercisable by the acquiring party.  Until 
the occurrence of certain events described in the Rights Agreement, the rights may be terminated at any time or redeemed at 
the rate of $0.001 per right and the Rights Agreement amended by Standard Pacific’s Board of Directors including, if it 
believes a proposed acquisition to be in the best interests of our stockholders.  As provided in the Original Rights Agreement, 
under the Rights Agreement, MP CA Homes, LLC and its affiliates generally will not be deemed an acquiring party under the 
Rights Agreement.  The rights will expire on December 31, 2017, unless earlier terminated, redeemed or exchanged.  Initially 
the rights trade with our common stock and are not exercisable, however, if the rights are separated from the common shares, 
the rights expire three years from the date of such separation. 

 

14. Results of Quarterly Operations (Unaudited)  
 
 
 

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter Total (1)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2014:
Revenues…………………………………………...……………  465,183$    598,598$    611,028$    760,488$      2,435,297$     
Homebuilding gross margin……………………………………  118,950$    157,940$    159,060$    182,433$      618,383$        

Net income…………………………………...………..………   38,159$      56,463$      56,599$      64,644$        215,865$        
Basic income per common share………………………………  0.10$          0.15$          0.15$          0.18$            0.59$              
Diluted income per common share……………………………   0.09$          0.14$          0.14$          0.16$            0.54$              

2013:
Revenues…………………………………………...……………  363,398$    446,092$    517,595$    612,434$      1,939,519$     
Homebuilding gross margin……………………………………  74,526$      102,762$    129,390$    162,518$      469,196$        

Net income…………………………………...………..………   21,824$      43,136$      58,935$      64,820$        188,715$        
Basic income per common share………………………………  0.06$          0.12$          0.16$          0.18$            0.52$              
Diluted income per common share……………………………   0.05$          0.11$          0.15$          0.16$            0.47$              

 
 

 
 
   

(1) Per share amounts do not add across due to rounding differences in quarterly amounts and due to the impact of differences between the quarterly and annual 
weighted average share calculations.  

  
15. Supplemental Disclosure to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
 

 The following are supplemental disclosures to the consolidated statements of cash flows: 
Year Ended December 31,

 2014 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:   
Cash paid during the period for:   

Interest………………………………..……………………………………………………………  $ 141,527  $ 128,061  $ 122,352  
Income taxes……………………………...………………………………………………………… $ 7,297      $ 3,792      $ 206         

  
Supplemental Disclosure of Noncash Activities:   

Increase in inventory in connection with purchase or consolidation of joint ventures………………… $ ― $ ― $ 66,323    
Liabilities assumed in connection with acquisition…………………………...………………………  $ 3,659      $ 4,983      $ ―
Changes in inventories not owned…………………….………………………………………………  $ 14,074    $ 1,171      $ 5,139      
Changes in liabilities from inventories not owned…………………………...………………………… $ 14,074    $ 1,171      $ 5,139        
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16. Supplemental Guarantor Information  
  

Certain of our 100% owned direct and indirect subsidiaries guarantee our outstanding senior notes payable (please see 
Note 6.b. "Senior Notes Payable").  Presented below are the condensed consolidated financial statements for our guarantor 
subsidiaries and non-guarantor subsidiaries.   
  

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  
 

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Consolidating 
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard

Pacific Corp.

Homebuilding:   
Revenues…………………………………..……………………  $ 813,423       $ 1,025,404      $ 572,351    $    ―   $ 2,411,178       
Cost of sales……………………………………….……………   (599,911)      (779,578)        (413,306)    ―   (1,792,795)      

Gross margin…………………………………………...……  213,512       245,826         159,045     ―   618,383          

Selling, general and administrative expenses……………………  (101,020)      (131,068)        (43,773)      ―   (275,861)         
Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures………………  (71)               88                  (685)           ―   (668)                
Equity income of subsidiaries………………….…………..   155,943        ―    ―   (155,943)        ―   
Interest income (expense), net……………………………………  13,718         (11,497)          (2,221)        ―    ―   
Other income (expense)…………………..………………..……  (3,954)          (469)               2,690         ―   (1,733)             

Homebuilding pretax income…………………...…………  278,128       102,880         115,056    (155,943)       340,121          

Financial Services:   
Financial services pretax income…………...……………………  ―    ―   9,843         ―   9,843              

Income before taxes…………………………….……………………  278,128       102,880         124,899    (155,943)       349,964          
Provision for income taxes…………………………..……………..   (62,263)        (40,469)          (31,367)      ―   (134,099)         
Net income……………………………………...……………..……… $ 215,865       $ 62,411           $ 93,532      $ (155,943)       $ 215,865          

  

(Dollars in thousands)

 

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Consolidating 
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard

Pacific Corp.

Homebuilding:   
Revenues…………………………………..……………………  $ 819,044       $ 826,245         $ 269,320    $    ―   $ 1,914,609       
Cost of sales……………………………………….……………   (609,858)      (632,733)        (202,822)    ―   (1,445,413)      

Gross margin…………………………………………...……  209,186       193,512         66,498       ―   469,196          

Selling, general and administrative expenses……………………  (94,819)        (111,746)        (24,126)      ―   (230,691)         
Income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures………………  1,369           (137)               (283)           ―   949                 
Equity income of subsidiaries………………….…………..   81,140          ―    ―   (81,140)          ―   
Interest income (expense), net……………………………………  16,419         (11,651)          (4,768)        ―    ―   
Other income (expense)…………………..………………..……  7,515           (321)               (379)           ―   6,815              

Homebuilding pretax income………….……………………  220,810       69,657           36,942      (81,140)         246,269          

Financial Services:   
Financial services pretax income…………...……………………  ―    ―   11,429       ―   11,429            

Income before income taxes…………………………………………  220,810       69,657           48,371      (81,140)         257,698          
Provision for income taxes…………………………..……………..   (32,095)        (23,676)          (13,212)      ―   (68,983)           
Net income…….………………………………………..……………  $ 188,715       $ 45,981           $ 35,159      $ (81,140)         $ 188,715          

  

(Dollars in thousands)
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16. Supplemental Guarantor Information  
  

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS  
  

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries
Consolidating 
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard

Pacific Corp.

Homebuilding:   
Revenues…………………………………..……………………  $ 518,040       $ 580,419         $ 138,499    $    ―   $ 1,236,958       
Cost of sales……………………………………….……………   (408,569)      (463,566)        (121,149)    ―   (993,284)         

Gross margin…………………………………………...……  109,471       116,853         17,350       ―   243,674          

Selling, general and administrative expenses……………………  (78,335)        (81,490)          (12,382)      ―   (172,207)         
Loss from unconsolidated joint ventures…………………………  (166)             (659)               (1,265)        ―   (2,090)             
Equity income of subsidiaries………………….…………..   13,314          ―    ―   (13,314)          ―   
Interest income (expense), net……………………………………  17,319         (17,052)          (6,663)        ―   (6,396)             
Other income (expense)…………………..………………..……  4,695           194                (225)           ―   4,664              

Homebuilding pretax income (loss)………………………   66,298         17,846           (3,185)       (13,314)         67,645            

Financial Services:   
Financial services pretax income……………..…………………  ―    ―   10,542       ―   10,542            

Income before taxes…………………...………………………………  66,298         17,846           7,357        (13,314)         78,187            
Benefit (provision) for income taxes…………………………..……   465,123       (6,668)            (5,221)        ―   453,234          
Net income………………..………………………………………..… $ 531,421       $ 11,178           $ 2,136        $ (13,314)         $ 531,421          

  

(Dollars in thousands)
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16. Supplemental Guarantor Information  
 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET  
 

December 31, 2014

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard 

Pacific Corp.

ASSETS  
Homebuilding:  

Cash and equivalents………….…………………………  $ 133,304      $ 1,061           $ 46,063           $ ―  $ 180,428       
Restricted cash…………………………………………… ―  ―  38,222            ―  38,222         
Trade, intercompany and other receivables……………… 1,645,356   4,379           191,268         (1,821,998)    19,005         
Inventories:  

Owned…………………………………….....……… 1,059,197   1,234,233    961,774          ―  3,255,204    
Not owned……………………………………...…… 17,360        28,520         39,273            ―  85,153         

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures…………… (1,653)         497              51,267            ―  50,111         
Investments in subsidiaries……………………………… 957,933      ―  ―  (957,933)        ―  
Deferred income taxes, net……………………………… 283,890      ―  ―  (7,488)           276,402       
Other assets……………………………………...………  34,094        6,855           1,643              ―  42,592         

Total Homebuilding Assets…………………… 4,129,481   1,275,545    1,329,510      (2,787,419)    3,947,117    
Financial Services:  

Cash and equivalents…………………………………….   ―   ―  31,965            ―  31,965         
Restricted cash…………………………………………… ―   ―  1,295             ―  1,295           
Mortgage loans held for sale, net…………………………  ―  ―  174,420          ―  174,420       
Mortgage loans held for investment, net…………………  ―   ―  14,380            ―  14,380         
Other assets………………………………………..………  ―   ―  6,980             (1,737)           5,243           

Total Financial Services Assets………………   ―   ―  229,040         (1,737)           227,303       

     Total Assets………………………………… $ 4,129,481   $ 1,275,545    $ 1,558,550      $ (2,789,156)    $ 4,174,420    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Homebuilding:  

Accounts payable…………………………..……………  $ 13,856        $ 16,202         $ 15,027           $  ―  $ 45,085         
Accrued liabilities and intercompany payables…………… 206,731      868,922       783,324         (1,635,194)    223,783       
Secured project debt and other notes payable…………… 100,813       ―  4,689             (100,813)       4,689           
Senior notes payable…………………………………..… 2,131,393    ―   ―   ―  2,131,393    

Total Homebuilding Liabilities………………  2,452,793   885,124       803,040         (1,736,007)    2,404,950    
Financial Services:  

Accounts payable and other liabilities……………………  ―   ―  18,585           (15,216)         3,369           
Mortgage credit facilities…………………………………  ―   ―  169,413         (80,000)         89,413         

Total Financial Services Liabilities……………  ―   ―  187,998         (95,216)         92,782         

     Total Liabilities…………………………… 2,452,793   885,124       991,038         (1,831,223)    2,497,732    

Equity:  
Total Stockholders' Equity………………………………  1,676,688   390,421       567,512         (957,933)       1,676,688    

     Total Liabilities and Equity………………… $ 4,129,481   $ 1,275,545    $ 1,558,550      $ (2,789,156)    $ 4,174,420    

(Dollars in thousands)
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16. Supplemental Guarantor Information  
 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET 
 

 

December 31, 2013

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard 

Pacific Corp.

ASSETS  
Homebuilding:  

Cash and equivalents………….…………………………  $ 175,289      $ 494              $ 179,706         $ ―  $ 355,489       
Restricted cash…………………………………………… ―  ―  21,460            ―  21,460         
Trade, intercompany and other receivables……………… 1,278,567   3,565           8,167             (1,275,868)    14,431         
Inventories:  

Owned…………………………………….....……… 804,099      1,012,841    719,162          ―  2,536,102    
Not owned……………………………………...…… 9,737          41,734         46,870            ―  98,341         

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures…………… 586             422              65,046            ―  66,054         
Investments in subsidiaries……………………………… 810,340      ―  ―  (810,340)        ―  
Deferred income taxes, net……………………………… 379,313      ―  ―  (3,913)           375,400       
Other assets……………………………………...………  38,024        5,478           2,475              ―  45,977         

Total Homebuilding Assets…………………… 3,495,955   1,064,534    1,042,886      (2,090,121)    3,513,254    
Financial Services:  

Cash and equivalents…………………………………….   ―   ―  7,802              ―  7,802           
Restricted cash…………………………………………… ―   ―  1,295             ―  1,295           
Mortgage loans held for sale, net…………………………  ―  ―  122,031          ―  122,031       
Mortgage loans held for investment, net…………………  ―   ―  12,220            ―  12,220         
Other assets………………………………………..………  ―   ―  7,490             (1,987)           5,503           

Total Financial Services Assets………………   ―   ―  150,838         (1,987)           148,851       

     Total Assets………………………………… $ 3,495,955   $ 1,064,534    $ 1,193,724      $ (2,092,108)    $ 3,662,105    

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Homebuilding:  

Accounts payable…………………………..……………  $ 11,685        $ 13,442         $ 10,644           $  ―  $ 35,771         
Accrued liabilities and intercompany payables…………… 182,066      723,082       578,995         (1,269,877)    214,266       
Secured project debt and other notes payable……………  ―   ―  6,351              ―  6,351           
Senior notes payable…………………………………..… 1,833,244    ―   ―   ―  1,833,244    

Total Homebuilding Liabilities………………  2,026,995   736,524       595,990         (1,269,877)    2,089,632    
Financial Services:  

Accounts payable and other liabilities……………………  ―   ―  14,537           (11,891)         2,646           
Mortgage credit facilities…………………………………  ―   ―  100,867          ―  100,867       

Total Financial Services Liabilities……………  ―   ―  115,404         (11,891)         103,513       

     Total Liabilities…………………………… 2,026,995   736,524       711,394         (1,281,768)    2,193,145    

Equity:  
Total Stockholders' Equity………………………………  1,468,960   328,010       482,330         (810,340)       1,468,960    

     Total Liabilities and Equity………………… $ 3,495,955   $ 1,064,534    $ 1,193,724      $ (2,092,108)    $ 3,662,105    

(Dollars in thousands)
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16. Supplemental Guarantor Information  
 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
  

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard 

Pacific Corp.

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:  
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities………………………..……..…  $ (56,158)      $ (118,941)   $ (187,298)   $    ―     $ (362,397)      

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:  
Investments in unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures……………………………………    ―        ―     (10,506)        ―     (10,506)        
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures…………………… 227            228            17,555          ―     18,010         
Net cash paid for acquisitions…………………………………………………………………     ―     (36,047)     2,277            ―     (33,770)        
Loan to parent and subsidiaries…………………………………………………………………    ―        ―     (180,000)   180,000         ―     
Other investing activities…………………………………….………………...……………… (1,571)        (1,351)       (1,832)          ―     (4,754)          

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities………………………………………  (1,344)        (37,170)     (172,506)   180,000      (31,020)        

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:  
Change in restricted cash………………………………………………………………………    ―        ―     (16,762)        ―     (16,762)        
Principal payments on secured project debt and other notes payable……………..……………    ―        ―     (1,458)          ―     (1,458)          
Loan from subsidiary…………………………………………………………………………… 100,000        ―        ―     (100,000)        ―     
Principal payment on senior notes payable……………………………………………………  (4,971)           ―        ―        ―     (4,971)          
Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes payable………………………………………….  300,000        ―        ―        ―     300,000       
Payment of debt issuance costs………………………………………………………………… (6,230)           ―        ―        ―     (6,230)          
Net proceeds from (payments on) mortgage credit facilities…………………...………………    ―        ―     68,546       (80,000)       (11,454)        
(Contributions to) distributions from Corporate and subsidiaries……………………………… 8,350            ―     (8,350)          ―        ―     
Repurchases of common stock………………………………………………………………… (36,781)         ―        ―        ―     (36,781)        
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options…………………………….…………………..… 6,771            ―        ―        ―     6,771           
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements………………………………… 13,404          ―        ―        ―     13,404         
Intercompany advances, net…………………………………………………………………… (365,026)    156,678     208,348        ―        ―     

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities…………………….……………...… 15,517       156,678     250,324     (180,000)     242,519       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents………………………………...………….……  (41,985)      567            (109,480)      ―     (150,898)      
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year………………………………….……..……………… 175,289     494            187,508        ―     363,291       
Cash and equivalents at end of year………………………………………...…………………..… $ 133,304     $ 1,061         $ 78,028       $  ―     $ 212,393       

(Dollars in thousands)

 
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard 

Pacific Corp.

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:  
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities………………………..……..…  $ 163,640     $ (172,687)   $ (145,169)   $    ―     $ (154,216)      

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:  
Investments in unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures…………………………………… (534)           (50)            (23,744)        ―     (24,328)        
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures……………………    ―     244            4,519            ―     4,763           
Net cash paid for acquisitions…………………………………………………………………     ―     (27,113)     (89,149)        ―     (116,262)      
Other investing activities…………………………………….………………...……………… (1,946)        (3,768)       (2,316)          ―     (8,030)          

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities………………………………………  (2,480)        (30,687)     (110,690)      ―     (143,857)      

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:  
Change in restricted cash………………………………………………………………………    ―        ―     6,565            ―     6,565           
Principal payments on secured project debt and other notes payable……………..…………… (6,804)           ―     (1,530)          ―     (8,334)          
Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes payable………………………………………….  300,000        ―        ―        ―     300,000       
Payment of debt issuance costs………………………………………………………………… (5,316)           ―        ―        ―     (5,316)          
Net proceeds from (payments on) mortgage credit facilities…………………...………………    ―        ―     8,708            ―     8,708           
(Contributions to) distributions from Corporate and subsidiaries……………………………… (11,691)         ―     11,691          ―        ―     
Payment of issuance costs in connection with preferred shareholder equity transactions……… (350)              ―        ―        ―     (350)             
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options…………………………….…………………..… 13,536          ―        ―        ―     13,536         
Intercompany advances, net…………………………………………………………………… (429,968)    203,754     226,214        ―        ―     

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities…………………….……………...… (140,593)    203,754     251,648        ―     314,809       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents………………………………...………….……  20,567       380            (4,211)          ―     16,736         
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year………………………………….……..……………… 154,722     114            191,719        ―     346,555       
Cash and equivalents at end of year………………………………………...…………………..… $ 175,289     $ 494            $ 187,508     $  ―     $ 363,291       

 

(Dollars in thousands)
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16. Supplemental Guarantor Information  
 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
 

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Standard
Pacific Corp.

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Standard 

Pacific Corp.

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:  
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities………………………..……..…  $ 97,150       $ (132,732)   $ (221,934)   $ (25,600)       $ (283,116)      

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:  
Investments in unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures………………………………… (2,630)        (180)          (80,248)     25,600        (57,458)        
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated homebuilding joint ventures…………………… 1,392         1,500         11,638          ―     14,530         
Net cash paid for acquisitions…………………………………………………………………    ―        ―     (60,752)        ―     (60,752)        
Other investing activities…………………………………….………………...……………… (1,429)        (588)          492               ―     (1,525)          

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities……………………………………… (2,667)        732            (128,870)   25,600        (105,205)      

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:  
Change in restricted cash………………………………………………………………………    ―        ―     3,347            ―     3,347           
Principal payments on secured project debt and other notes payable……………..…………     ―        ―     (866)             ―     (866)             
Principal payments on senior subordinated notes payable…………………………………… (49,603)         ―        ―        ―     (49,603)        
Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes payable…………………………………………  253,000        ―        ―        ―     253,000       
Payment of debt issuance costs………………………………………………………………  (11,761)         ―        ―        ―     (11,761)        
Net proceeds from (payments on) mortgage credit facilities…………………...……………     ―        ―     45,351          ―     45,351         
Net proceeds from the issuance of common stock…………………………………………… 71,847          ―        ―        ―     71,847         
(Contributions to) distributions from Corporate and subsidiaries…………………………… 62,605          ―     (62,605)        ―        ―     
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options…………………………….…………………..… 13,039          ―        ―        ―     13,039         
Intercompany advances, net…………………………………………………………………… (345,645)    131,938     213,707        ―        ―     

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities…………………….……………...… (6,518)        131,938     198,934        ―     324,354       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents………………………………...………….…… 87,965       (62)            (151,870)      ―     (63,967)        
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year………………………………….……..…………… 66,757       176            343,589        ―     410,522       
Cash and equivalents at end of year………………………………………...………………….. $ 154,722     $ 114            $ 191,719     $  ―     $ 346,555       

(Dollars in thousands)



  

74 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE  

  
Not applicable.  

  
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES  
  
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  
  

As of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation, under the 
supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, 
of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined in Exchange 
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e), including controls and procedures to timely alert management to material information 
relating to Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries required to be included in our periodic SEC filings. Based on that 
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and 
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.  
  
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 

 Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as 
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent 
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief 

Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on 
the criteria in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013 framework) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control—Integrated 
Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 
2014. 

 
The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014 has been audited by Ernst & 

Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in its attestation report which is included herein.  
 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
  

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated our internal control 
over financial reporting to determine whether any change occurred during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 
2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 
Based on that evaluation, there has been no such change during the fourth quarter of the period covered by this report.  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Standard Pacific Corp.: 

We have audited Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries’ 
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an 
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

In our opinion, Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and 
the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 of Standard Pacific Corp. and subsidiaries and our report dated February 
23, 2015 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 

Irvine, California 
February 23, 2015 
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 
  

 None. 
  

PART III  
  
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
  

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Company’s 2015 Annual Meeting Proxy Statement, 
which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after December 31, 2014 (the 
“2015 Proxy Statement”). For the limited purpose of providing the information necessary to comply with this Item 10, the 
2015 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this reference. All references to the 2015 Proxy Statement in this Part III are 
exclusive of the information set forth under the captions “Compensation Committee Report” and “Audit Committee Report.” 
  
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION  
  

The information required by this item will be set forth in the 2015 Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of 
providing the information necessary to comply with this Item 11, the 2015 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this 
reference.  
  
ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND 

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS  
  

The information required by this item will be set forth in the 2015 Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of 
providing the information necessary to comply with this Item 12, the 2015 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this 
reference.  
  
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR 

INDEPENDENCE  
  

The information required by this item will be set forth in the 2015 Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of 
providing the information necessary to comply with this Item 13, the 2015 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this 
reference.  

  
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES  
  

This information required by this item will be set forth in the 2015 Proxy Statement.  For the limited purpose of 
providing the information necessary to comply with this Item 14, the 2015 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
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PART IV 
  
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 
  

     

Page 
Reference

(a)(1) Financial Statements, included in Part II of this report:
  

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm ....................................................................... 38 
  

Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended  
December 31, 2014 ................................................................................................................................ 39 

  

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for each of the three years in the period  
ended December 31, 2014 ...................................................................................................................... 40 

  

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013................................................................... 41 
  

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2014 ................................................................................................................................ 42 

  

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended  
December 31, 2014 ................................................................................................................................ 43 

  

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............................................................................................... 44 
   
    (2) Financial Statement Schedules: 
   

  

Financial Statement Schedules are omitted since the required information is not present or is not present 
in the amounts sufficient to require submission of a schedule, or because the information required is 
included in the consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto.

   

    (3) Index to Exhibits 
   

  

See Index to Exhibits on pages 79-81 below.
   

(b) Index to Exhibits. See Index to Exhibits on pages 79-81 below.
   

(c) Financial Statements required by Regulation S-X excluded from the annual report to shareholders by Rule 
14a-3(b). Not applicable. 
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SIGNATURES  
  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
 

STANDARD PACIFIC CORP. 
(Registrant) 
  
By: /s/  SCOTT D. STOWELL
 Scott D. Stowell 

 Chief Executive Officer 
and President 

  

 February 23, 2015 
  

POWER OF ATTORNEY 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned officers and/or directors of the Registrant, by virtue 
of their signatures to this report, appearing below, hereby constitute and appoint Scott D. Stowell and Jeff J. McCall, or any 
one of them, with full power of substitution, as attorneys-in-fact in their names, places and steads to execute any and all 
amendments to this report in the capacities set forth opposite their names and hereby ratify all that said attorneys-in-fact do 
by virtue hereof. 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 

following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
  

Signature  Title Date 
    

/S/  SCOTT D. STOWELL 
 (Scott D. Stowell) 

Chief Executive Officer, President 
and Director

February 23, 2015

    
 /S/  RONALD R. FOELL 

 (Ronald R. Foell) 
Chairman of the Board February 23, 2015

    
/S/  JEFF J. MCCALL 

 (Jeff J. McCall) 
Executive Vice President and Chief 

Financial Officer (Principal 
Financial and Accounting Officer) 

February 23, 2015

    
/S/  BRUCE A. CHOATE 

 (Bruce A. Choate) 
Director February 23, 2015

    
 /S/  DOUGLAS C. JACOBS 

 (Douglas C. Jacobs) 
Director February 23, 2015

    
/S/  DAVID J. MATLIN 

 (David J. Matlin ) 
Director February 23, 2015

   
/S/  JOHN R. PESHKIN 

 (John R. Peshkin) 
Director February 23, 2015

    
 /S/  PETER SCHOELS 

 (Peter Schoels) 
Director February 23, 2015
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS  
 

*3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to 
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 19, 2008. 
 

*3.2 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock of the Registrant, 
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 19, 2008. 
 

*3.3 Certificate of Designations of Series B Junior Participating Convertible Preferred Stock of the Registrant, 
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 19, 2008. 
 

*3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 31, 2014. 
 

*4.1 Form of Specimen Stock Certificate, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 28.3 to the Registrant’s Registration 
Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 33-42293) filed on August 16, 1991. 
 

*4.2 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2011, between the Registrant and Mellon 
Investor Services LLC, as Rights Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 22, 2011. 

  
*4.3 Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2014, by and between 

Standard Pacific Corp. and Computershare Inc. (as successor in interest to Mellon Investor Services LLC), as 
Rights Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on 
October 31, 2014. 

  
*4.4 Senior Debt Securities Indenture, dated as of April 1, 1999, by and between the Company and The First National 

Bank of Chicago, as Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 
8-K filed on April 16, 1999. 

  
*4.5 Tenth Supplemental Indenture relating to the Registrant’s 7% Senior Notes due 2015, dated as of August 1, 2005, 

by and between the Company and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association, as Trustee, incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 5, 2005. 

  
*4.6 Eleventh Supplemental Indenture relating to the addition of certain of the Registrant’s wholly owned subsidiaries 

as guarantors of all of the Registrant’s outstanding senior notes (including the form of guaranty), dated as of 
February 22, 2006, by and between the Company and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, National Association, as 
Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 31, 2005. 

  
*4.7 Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, relating to the amendment of the security provisions of the Registrant’s 

outstanding senior notes, dated as of May 5, 2006, by and between the Company and J.P. Morgan Trust Company, 
National Association, as Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2006. 

  
*4.8 Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 8, 2009, between the Company and The Bank of New 

York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed on October 9, 2009. 

  
*4.9 Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture relating to the Registrant’s 8⅜% Senior Notes due 2018, dated as of May 3, 

2010, by and between the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 3, 2010. 

  
*4.10 Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture relating to the Registrant’s 8⅜% Senior Notes due 2018, dated as of December 

22, 2010, by and among the Company, the subsidiary guarantors party thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2010. 

  
*4.11 Sixteenth Supplemental Indenture relating to the Registrant’s 8⅜% Senior Notes due 2021, dated as of December 

22, 2010, by and among the Company, the subsidiary guarantors party thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon 
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Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on 
Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2010. 

  
*4.12 Seventeenth Supplemental Indenture relating to the Registrant’s 6¼% Senior Notes due 2014 and 7% Senior Notes 

due 2015, dated as of December 22, 2010, by and among the Company, the subsidiary guarantors party thereto and 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the 
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 23, 2010. 

  
*4.13 Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 6, 2012, relating to the Registrant’s 1¼% Convertible 

Senior Notes due 2032, by and among the Company, the guarantors thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon 
Trust Company, N.A, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K 
filed on August 6, 2012. 

  
*4.14 Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 6, 2012, by and among the Company, the guarantors 

thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the 
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 6, 2012. 

  
*4.15 Twentieth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 6, 2013, by and among the Company, the guarantors 

thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the 
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 6, 2013. 

  
*4.16 Twenty-First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 6, 2014, by and among the Company, the guarantors 

thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the 
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 6, 2014. 

  
*4.17 Indenture relating to Standard Pacific Escrow LLC’s 10¾% Senior Notes due 2016 (which were subsequently 

assumed by the Registrant), dated as of September 17, 2009, between Standard Pacific Escrow LLC and The Bank 
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current 
Report on Form 8-K filed on September 17, 2009. 

  
*4.18 First Supplemental Indenture relating to Standard Pacific Escrow LLC’s 10¾% Senior Notes due 2016 (which 

were subsequently assumed by the Registrant), dated as of October 8, 2009, between the Company, Standard 
Pacific Escrow LLC and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 9, 2009. 

  
*10.1 Stockholders Agreement, dated June 27, 2008, between the Company and MP CA Homes, LLC, incorporated by 

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 1, 2008. 
  

*10.2 Letter Agreement, dated April 27, 2011, amending the June 27, 2008 Stockholders Agreement between the 
Company and MP CA Homes, LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report 
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2011. 

  
+*10.3 2000 Stock Incentive Plan of Standard Pacific Corp., as amended and restated, effective May 12, 2004, 

incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders. 

  
+*10.4 Standard Pacific Corp. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s 

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 11, 2005. 
  

+*10.5 Standard Pacific Corp. 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (as amended and restated May 18, 2011), incorporated by 
reference to Appendix A to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2011 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders. 

  
+*10.6 Standard Terms and Conditions for Non-Qualified Stock Options to be used in connection with the Company’s  

equity incentive plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 2008. 

  

+*10.7 Standard Terms and Conditions for Non-Qualified Stock Options to be used in connection with the Company’s  
equity incentive plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended December 31, 2008. 
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+*10.8 Standard Terms and Conditions for Capped Stock Appreciation Rights, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 

to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2012. 
  

+*10.9 Standard Terms and Conditions for Restricted Stock Grants, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2012. 

  
+*10.10 Standard Terms and Conditions for Performance Share Awards, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the 

Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2012. 
  

+*10.11 Form of Executive Officers Indemnification Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the 
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. 

  
+*10.12 Form of Severance and Change in Control Protection Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the 

Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2012. 
  

*10.13 Standard Pacific Corp. 2014 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to Appendix A to 
the Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. 

  
*10.14 Description of CEO compensation changes, incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 

8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 1, 2014. 
  

*10.15 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of October 19, 2012, among the Company, JPMorgan Chase 
Bank, N.A., and the several lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 19, 2012. 

  
*10.16 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of September 26, 2013, by and among the 

Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A, and the several lenders named therein, incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 1, 2013. 

  
*10.17 Letter Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2013, regarding Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, by and 

among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., and the several lenders named therein, incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 25, 2013. 

  
*10.18 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2014, by and among the 

Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and the other lenders named therein, incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on August 1, 2014. 

  
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant. 

  
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 

  
24.1 Powers of Attorney.  See Signatures page. 

  
31.1 Certification of the CEO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

  
31.2 Certification of the CFO pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

  
32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 

Sarbanes–Oxley Act of 2002. 
  

101 The following materials from Standard Pacific Corp.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 
31, 2014, formatted in eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL): (i) Consolidated Statements of 
Operations, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, 
(iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

  

(*) Previously filed.  
(+) Management contract, compensation plan or arrangement. 
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